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R E S O N A  G R O U P

The members of the Resona Group will combine the same high quality services offered by Japan’s city banks 

with know-how in the trust business and the close ties of regional banks with the communities they serve. 

This will be a different style of management from those of Japan’s four major banking groups and conventional

regional banks. For example, for individual customers, we will offer user-friendly financial services, including

housing loans, a broad range of advice on asset management, services tailored for senior citizens, and other services

suited to customer needs at various stages in their lives. On the other hand, for corporate customers, we will provide

the optimal products, services, and overall solutions to meet their needs at each stage of their development.

Each of the banks within the Resona Group will conduct its activities to match the special features and

requirements of its home market. In addition, specialist capabilities will be concentrated in Resona Bank, Ltd.,

which will provide derivatives, real estate, and other professional services, and Resona Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.,

which will offer pension and corporate trust services. This will create a common platform to make available 

the highest quality services to all the customers of the Resona Group.

Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc., and the Daiwa Trust & Banking Co., Ltd., are scheduled to change their names to 
Resona Holdings, Inc., on October 1, 2002, and Resona Trust & Banking Co., Ltd., on October 15, 2002, respectively.

Concerning Forward-Looking Statements: This material contains forward-looking statements regarding the Group’s operations. These
statements are not intended to provide any guarantees of the Group’s future performance, which will be subject to risks and uncertainties.
Please note that future performance may differ from targets and plans because of changes in the operating environment and other factors.
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C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  S U M M A R Y
Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc.
Year ended March 31, 2002

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

2002 2002

For the year

Total income .................................................................................................................................. ¥ 1,373,407 $ 10,306

Total expenses ............................................................................................................................... 2,547,197 19,115

Loss before income taxes and minority interests.......................................................................... 1,173,789 8,808

Net loss............................................................................................................................................ 931,876 6,993

At year-end

Total assets ..................................................................................................................................... ¥44,952,488 $337,354

Loans and bills discounted ........................................................................................................... 30,021,204 225,299

Securities ........................................................................................................................................ 6,864,323 51,514

Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees ................................................................ 2,062,934 15,481

Deposits ......................................................................................................................................... 33,822,170 253,824

Total shareholders’ equity ............................................................................................................. 1,289,058 9,673

Per share data (in yen)

Net loss............................................................................................................................................ ¥174.57 $1.31

Cash dividends declared per share:

Common stock ............................................................................................................................ — —

Preferred stock:

Class A No. 1 preferred stock.................................................................................................... 24.75 0.18

Class B No. 1 preferred stock.................................................................................................... 6.36 0.04

Class C No. 1 preferred stock.................................................................................................... 6.33 0.04

Class D No. 1 preferred stock.................................................................................................... 10.00 0.07

Class E No. 1 preferred stock.................................................................................................... 14.38 0.10

Class F No. 1 preferred stock.................................................................................................... 18.50 0.13

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.

Super Regional Bank Group
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Super Regional Bank Group

Concept of the New Group Logo

The Resona Group’s corporate name was derived from the Latin word (resonus)
meaning “resonate“ or “resound.”

The origin and starting point for the businesses of financial institutions are the
strong bonds of trust we create through working together with our customers. By
adopting the corporate name Resona, we want to express our desire to build
stronger ties with our customers by “resonating” or “resounding” with them
based on the bonds of trust that we have established thus far.

We designed our Group logo to suggest the resonance between the “R“ in
Resona and the “R“ in the Resona Group’s key word “Regional.“ We then
enclosed the two “Rs“ inside a perfect circle to express a sense of security 
and trust.

We chose green as our principal Group color because it suggests “gentleness“
and “transparency“ and orange as the Group’s sub-color to create a sense of
“familiarity“ and “warmth.“

Strengths and Features of the Resona Group

Strong customer base in the Tokyo metropolitan area and Kansai region

Loan portfolio centered around small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs)
and individuals

Concentration of management resources in domestic commercial banking 
and trust business operations

Elimination of former “universal” and “global” banking strategies�

�

�

�
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[Osaka Prefecture]
Population: Approximately 9 million
GDP: Approximately $359 billion

[Saitama Prefecture]
Population: Approximately 7 million
GDP: Approximately $182 billion

Ratio of individual deposits = 
Individual deposits/Total deposits

Note: Ratio of loans to SMEs and individuals = 
Loans to SMEs and individuals/
Total domestic loans outstanding

Concentration of Management Resources in Retail Banking Business
Ratio of Housing Loans 
to Total Lending

� Ratio of Individual Deposits� Ratio of Loans to SMEs 
and Individuals

�

Average of four
 major banking

groups
16.5％ 

Resona 
28.9%

Average of four
major banking

groups
50.2％ 

Resona 
58.3%

Average of four
major banking

groups
65.6％ 

Resona 
78.2%

Saitama

Osaka

Solid Presence in Japan’s Two Principal Economic Regions
Regional Shares Based on Combined Data for the Four Group Banks

(Trillions of yen)

�

GDP Comparisons with European Countries
($ billion)

�

Population figures (Approx.)
Germany 82 million
United Kingdom 60 million
Spain 40 million
Netherlands 16 million
Osaka + Saitama 16 million
Switzerland 7 million

Germany

United Kingdom

Spain

Osaka+Saitama

Netherlands

Switzerland

1,873

1,414

558

541

364

241
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Ratio of housing loans = 
Housing loans outstanding (after securitization)/
Total domestic loans outstanding

Deposits Loans

Outstanding at March 31 Outstanding at March 31

2002 Share (%) 2002 Share (%)

Nationwide ¥33.8 6.8 ¥29.8 6.9

Tokyo metropolitan area 19.0 9.5 17.5 8.0

Saitama Prefecture 8.3 40.9 5.1 41.5

Tokyo 8.7 6.5 10.6 6.0

Kinki region 13.4 14.8 10.9 14.8

Osaka 11.1 21.9 9.3 18.9

Note: Data for the four Group banks is
the sum of the non-consolidated
amounts for the Daiwa Bank, the
Kinki Osaka Bank, the Nara Bank,
and the Asahi Bank. 

Source: Bank of Japan

Notes: 1. Figures for various countries are for calendar 2000, and figures for
Osaka and Saitama Prefecture are for fiscal 1999.

2. GDP figures in U.S. dollars for Osaka and Saitama Prefecture were
computed using the following rate: US$1=¥110.52, the average rate
for fiscal 2000.

Sources: OECD, Main Economic Indicators, and others



In February 1999, the Daiwa Bank, Ltd., the Kinki Bank, Ltd.,

and the Osaka Bank, Ltd., reached agreement to conclude a

strategic alliance, with an eye toward the eventual consoli-

dation of their operations. In April 2000, the Kinki Bank

and the Osaka Bank merged to form today’s Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd., and, in October 2000, the Nara

Bank, Ltd., also joined our alliance. In August 2001, the member banks reached basic agreement to

further develop and expand their strategic alliance by creating a holding company and consolidating

their operations. Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc., was, therefore, established in December 2001. 

In February 2001, the Daiwa Bank and the Kinki Osaka Bank took over the operations of the

Namihaya Bank, Ltd., which had become insolvent. As a result, the Group’s operating base was

strengthened through the addition of the 135 branches of the Namihaya Bank—67 of which

were merged into branches in close proximity to those of the Daiwa or Kinki Osaka banks—and

approximately 1,000 of the Namihaya Bank’s employees. This consolidation also reflected the Group’s

efforts to contribute to the stability of the regional financial system. 

In addition, in September 2001, we reached basic agreement with the Asahi Bank, Ltd.,

which supported the basic ideals and objectives of the consolidation that led to the formation of

today’s Resona Group, and, in March 2002, the Asahi Bank became a member of the Group. At the

same time, we split off the pension and corporate trust operations of the Daiwa Bank into a sepa-

rate company, which began operations as the Daiwa Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.

As a result of the entry of the Asahi Bank into the Group, we were able to expand our network

to include both the Kansai region and the Tokyo metropolitan area, thus vastly increasing the 

convenience of our customer services. Moreover, by combining our sophisticated trust business 

capabilities, accumulated over many years, with our retail banking activities, which have deep 

roots in local communities, we are now able to offer our customers substantially higher quality 

financial services. 

To realize the benefits of this management consolidation at an early date, the members of the

Resona Group are actively proceeding with operating tie-ups in a wide range of areas, the exchange 

of personnel, and other activities. At the same time, we are working to rationalize our operations

while ensuring convenience for customers and endeavoring to substantially increase the efficiency

of our activities. The Resona Group is thus beginning to take steady and decisive steps toward the

creation of a super regional bank.

M E S S A G E  F R O M  T H E  P R E S I D E N T

Super Regional Bank Group
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I would like to take this opportunity to outline the current state
and future direction of the newly formed Resona Group.
The Resona Group was created through the consolidation of several financial institutions based in Japan with
the fundamental objective of “creating a super regional bank that will be known as a key member of Japan’s
banking industry.” The Resona Group differs from the so-called megabanks and regional banks and was
formed based on a new business model that has not existed in Japan before. In the following pages, I would
like to explain the current state of the Resona Group, what kind of financial institution we are seeking to
become, the issues we face, and our strategies. 

Looking back at the consolidation that led
to the formation of the Resona Group,
what is your appraisal?

Question



Super  Reg iona l  Bank  Group   5

We are aiming to become a super regional bank—built

around a “federation of regional financial institutions”—

that will be one of Japan’s leading financial institutions. 

To move toward the realization of this objective and

achieve significantly greater convenience for our customers

and increased efficiency, we will realign the banking divisions of Group members and consolidate

our trust business divisions. We will also combine the know-how of the Group banks and create 

systems that will allow us to offer sophisticated services to our customers.

Looking first at the realignment of banking operations, we are aiming to implement a new 

business model based on the concept of a “federation of regional financial institutions.” In 2003 

and subsequent years, we will consolidate and realign the branches of the Daiwa Bank, the Kinki 

Osaka Bank, the Nara Bank, as well as the Asahi Bank by region to create “regional banks” as well as

a more broadly based “interregional bank” that supplement the functions and capabilities of the

regional banks. 

In our trust business activities, we are strengthening the operating base of the Daiwa Trust & 

Banking, enhancing its capabilities, eliminating companies or departments within the Group that 

have similar functions, and working to create a uniform platform within the Group to offer 

financial services. 

Also, along with this realignment of our business activities, we will consolidate and close 

offices with overlapping coverage, reduce the number of personnel, consolidate and realign our 

associated companies, consolidate our operating systems, and aggressively take other steps to

improve efficiency. 

For the Resona Group to move forward smoothly with these business restructuring activities, 

we have concentrated our planning and administrative functions within our holding company and

are establishing systems that will allow us to institute uniform and efficient Group management. 

Could you explain the type of financial
institution that the Resona Group will aim
to become and how you view the prospects
for the Group?

Question
Yasuhisa Katsuta President
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As a result of these restructuring measures, we are aiming to increase the convenience of our

services for customers, strengthen our operating base, and enhance the efficiency of our operations.

We believe that these activities will lead to a substantial increase in earnings power and strengthen

our financial position. 

Each of the banks in the Resona Group has developed its

operations by building close ties with the local communities

they serve and by taking the perspectives of their customers

among small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) as well as

individuals. Looking forward, the pillar of our corporate strategy will continue to be to specialize in

retail banking, focusing primarily on SMEs and individuals. As a result of the realignment of our bank-

ing divisions, we will be positioned to conduct marketing activities deeply rooted in local markets

and carefully tailored to customer needs. 

In addition, in our trust business operations, which are another special feature of the Group’s

activities, we are working to strengthen our capabilities and our business base through the split-off

of these activities into a separate, joint venture company. We will work to increase the quality of 

services we offer by drawing on the capabilities of this common platform for the Group. 

Based on the fundamental strategy of focusing on our areas of special strength and on specific

regions, we will realign our banking divisions to increase the efficiency of our activities and will aim

to achieve net operating profit of ¥444.0 billion and an expense ratio of about 50% for the year end-

ing March 31, 2006. 

Next, what strategies will you be implement-
ing to achieve the Group’s objectives, and
what are your goals for performance?

Question

■■■■ Net operating profit

Yearly Targets for Group Profitability�

[Objectives for the Year Ending March 31, 2006]

Realignment of Banking Operations and Consolidation
of Trust Business Activities

Beneficial impact of
synergies (generation
of additional income)

+ ¥29.2 billion

Beneficial impact 
of rationalization 

(reduction of expenses)

+ ¥49.7 billion

Net operating profit  ¥444.0 billion
Expense ratio 50.2%

0

100

200

300

400

500

Fiscal 2005
(Target)

Fiscal 2004
(Target)

Fiscal 2003
(Target)

Fiscal 2002
(Target)

Fiscal 2001
(Actual)

(¥ billion)

Profit Targets�

Note: Based on total figures for the banks under the holding company
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Beginning in 2003, we will realign the banking operations of

the banks under the holding company. In specific terms, we

will consolidate and realign the branches and other opera-

tions of the Daiwa Bank, the Kinki Osaka Bank, the Nara

Bank, and the Asahi Bank by region and create “regional banks” as well as an “interregional bank”

to supplement the functions of the regional banks. 

As the first step, with a target date of March 2003, we will consolidate and realign the

branches and other offices of the Daiwa Bank and the Asahi Bank to form Saitama Resona Bank, Ltd.,

and Resona Bank, Ltd. Saitama Resona Bank will be established to take over the branches and other

offices of the Asahi Bank in Saitama Prefecture. On the other hand, Resona Bank will be formed

through the merger of the Daiwa Bank and the Asahi Bank, and it will take over the branches of 

the Daiwa Bank and the Asahi Bank, with the exception of those branches assumed by Saitama

Resona Bank. Saitama Resona Bank will develop its business activities with all customer segments

in Saitama Prefecture, building close ties with the local communities and responding to the

needs of its customers with carefully tailored services. Also, through teamwork between Resona Bank

and the Daiwa Trust & Banking, Saitama Resona Bank will provide a broader range of high quality

services. Moreover, the specialized service capabilities of the Daiwa Bank and the Asahi Bank will

be concentrated in Resona Bank, and the Group will work to enhance these capabilities. This will

provide one common platform for the Group as a whole and provide us with a means to offer these

services to all the customers of the Resona Group. 

In the Osaka and Nara areas, beginning during the year ending March 31, 2005, we are giving

consideration to realigning the operations of Resona Bank, the Kinki Osaka Bank, and the Nara Bank

to form Osaka Resona Bank, Ltd., and Nara Resona Bank, Ltd. 

Each of these banks will develop its activities by conducting its marketing activities and providing

services that are closely matched to the special features and requirements of their home regions. Also,

by drawing on the complementary capabilities available within the Resona Group, including

those of the Daiwa Trust & Banking, the Group banks will be well positioned to offer high quality 

services to their customers.

How will you proceed with the realignment
of the Group’s banking operations, which
is the core strategy for the Group?

Question

Rationalization through Business Realignments�

R e s o n a  H o l d i n g s

Resona 
Trust &
Banking

Saitama
Resona
Bank

Kinki
Osaka
Bank

Nara
Bank

R e s o n a  H o l d i n g s

Resona 
Trust &
Banking

Resona
Bank

Osaka
Resona
Bank

Saitama
Resona
Bank

Nara
Resona
Bank

Other regional
financial 
institutions

Split-off

Rationalization through consolidation
(Compared with the actual results for year ended March 2001)

Reduce branches by 236
(To 495 by the end of March 2006)

[March 2003]

[In or after fiscal 2004]

Consolidation and closure of branches
with overlapping coverage

Lower head count by 5,636
(To 17,900 by the end of March 2006)

Reduce personnel

¥37.1 billion
(To ¥448.7 billion for fiscal 2005)

Reduce expenses

Resona
Bank

Daiwa
Bank

Asahi
Bank

Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc., and the Daiwa Trust & Banking Co., Ltd., are scheduled to change their names to Resona Holdings, Inc., on October 1, 2002, 
and Resona Trust & Banking Co., Ltd., on October 15, 2002, respectively.



8

We have positioned retail banking as the most important

activity of the Resona Group, and, at the same time, it is our

strongest business area. Our basic approach in retail bank-

ing is to establish close ties with local communities and to

respond to local needs with carefully tailored services that reflect an emphasis on customer rela-

tionships. At the same time, by sharing and combining the know-how the Group banks have

amassed over the years, we are committed to providing high quality services. Business areas of 

special focus within our retail banking operations include consumer loans, transactions with

SMEs, and sales of investment trusts. 

Looking first at consumer loans, to respond to the full range of customers’ needs for funds,

including home finance loans, we are working to enhance our full range of loan products and 

services. In particular, we have positioned housing loans as a key product for the Resona Group and

are endeavoring to increase the competitiveness of our products and improve related services, while

establishing Resona housing loans as the top brand in this area. 

In our transactions with SMEs, we have actively strengthened our consulting capabilities by 

making full use of our SME Support Center and our Business Support Center, offering M&A advisory

services, providing assistance for IPOs, supporting venture businesses, offering business-related infor-

mation, and making proposals for new business activities. 

To increase sales of investment trusts, we have established sales counters in virtually all the 

branches of the Group and expanded sales channels to include the Internet and other direct market-

ing routes. Also, by concentrating the planning and development functions for investment trust products

in the holding company, we have centralized know-how and information in this area. Similarly, by

standardizing the lineup of these products throughout the Group, we have been able to syndicate

special types of funds that would have been difficult for individual banks. Through these activities,

we are responding to the growing diversity of customers’ needs for these investment products. 

How will you make optimal use of the
Group’s strengths in retail banking?

Question

■■■■ Sales ■■■■ Outstanding balance

Group Sales Targets for Investment Trusts�

0

400

800

1,200

1,600

2,000

Fiscal 2005
(Target)

Fiscal 2004
(Target)

Fiscal 2003
(Target)

Fiscal 2002
(Target)

Fiscal 2001
(Actual)

(¥ billion)

Strengthening Loan Business of the Group�

Strengthening/expansion of
the Housing Loan Center

Systemization of housing 
loan operations

Strengthening of risk control

Development of direct 
channel services

Strengthening sales of 
long-term fire insurance and

other products/services

Increase in amount outstanding: ¥250.0 billion
(approximate)

Increase in income generated: ¥3.0 billion
(approximate)

(Targets for fiscal 2005)
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First, in the areas of pension trusts and corporate trusts, 

to make possible optimal operations suited to the special fea-

tures of trust business activities, substantially strengthen

professionalism, and clarify responsibility for profitability,

we split off the pension and corporate trust operations of the Daiwa Bank, and these operations

began at the Daiwa Trust & Banking in March 2002. Moreover, during the same month, we sold a

portion of the shares held by the holding company in the Daiwa Trust & Banking, thus making it a joint

venture with 12 domestic financial institutions and with SEGESPAR, a subsidiary of Credit Agricole S.A.,

with overall responsibility for the asset management activities of the Credit Agricole Group, the largest

retail banking institution in France. The objectives of this sale of shares were to substantially

strengthen the operating base of the Daiwa Trust & Banking, enhance its capabilities, and, by extension,

raise the financial service capabilities of the Resona Group. In addition, by October 2002, we will

eliminate the overlapping activities in our Group to increase efficiency and combine our know-how by

merging the activities of Asahi Trust & Banking Co., Ltd., with the corresponding departments in the

Daiwa Bank and the Daiwa Trust & Banking. 

The next steps will include aiming to expand our customer base in trust business activities by

making expanded use of trust agency functions, including those of each of our Group banks. In par-

ticular, the Asahi Bank will become an agency for the trust business services of the Daiwa Trust &

Banking and conduct marketing activities on its behalf, thus expanding the number of new pension

trust accounts opened by the customers of the Asahi Bank. 

In addition, through the joint venture with the Credit Agricole Group, we will be able to draw

on that group’s asset management know-how and strengthen our own capabilities, with the aim of

expanding assets entrusted with the Daiwa Trust & Banking. 

At the same time, in real estate and private banking operations, we plan to strengthen teamwork

between the Daiwa Bank and the other banks of the Resona Group and create systems to effectively 

promote these businesses, drawing fully on the Group’s network. 

Could you please explain what steps you
will take to strengthen your trust business
operations?

Question

Image of the Group Promotion Scheme for Trust Business Services�

C u s t o m e r s

Daiwa Trust
& Banking

(Pension and corporate trust business)

Credit Agricole S.A.

Kinki Osaka
Bank

Nara Bank Asahi BankDaiwa Bank

For such trust-related services as testamentary
trusts, rearrangements of inheritance property and
real estate business, Group banks will introduce

Daiwa Bank to their customers.

Provide sophisticated and specialized trust busi-
ness services for customers of the Resona Group

The banks of the Group offer the trust business
services of the Daiwa Bank. Based on customer
requests, Group banks introduce customers to
the Daiwa Bank for such services as testamen-
tary trusts, rearrangements of inheritance prop-
erty, and real estate business.

The Daiwa Trust & Banking agrees to trust agency
contracts with other Resona Group banks and
offers its trust services (excluding the Nara Bank).

The Daiwa Trust & Banking and Credit Agricole
formed a business tie-up in the field of asset
management.

Trust agency contract

Business tie-up
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First, as a result of the management consolidation, we are

looking to realize a ¥29.0 billion increase in income as a

result of synergistic effects in the year ending March 31,

2006, by strengthening our relationships based on the policy

of building close ties with communities and the sharing of know-how, combined with the

expansion of trust business capabilities and cooperative efforts within the Resona Group.

Specifically, we are aiming for an increase of ¥13.4 billion in net interest income, an ¥8.0 billion gain

in income from real estate business, an increase of ¥4.0 billion in income from investment trust 

sales, and an additional ¥2.5 billion in income from pension-related operations. 

In addition, the realignment of the Group banks will result in reductions in personnel, the 

consolidation and closure of branches, the consolidation of computer systems, and other cost-

saving benefits that will enable us to substantially lower operating costs. We are aiming to lower total

expenses about ¥37 billion in comparison with the year ended March 2001, to ¥448.7 billion for 

the year ending March 2006. As a result, we plan to bring down the expense ratio, which stood 

at approximately 62% for the year ended March 2001, by 12 percentage points, to approxi-

mately 50% for the year ending March 2006. Specific rationalization measures we plan to implement

by the end of March 2006 include cutting back on the number of branches, principally those 

with overlapping coverage, by 236 (compared with the number at the end of March 2001), to 

495 as a means of increasing efficiency. We are also planning to reduce personnel by 5,636

(compared with the number at the end of March 2001). Other measures will include realizing 

savings by eliminating duplicate expenditures for systems development and maintenance. As a 

result, we anticipate that systems-related costs will decline approximately ¥16.0 billion if we

compare the projected cost for the year ending March 2006 with the actual result for the year ended

March 2001. 

As a result of the consolidation, we are aiming to report net operating profit for the Resona

Group of ¥444.0 billion and an expense ratio of approximately 50% for the year ending March 2006. 

For the shareholders and customers of the Resona Group to

look to what it can accomplish and give the Group their full

trust and confidence, the banks of the Group must move 

forward to thoroughly implement the management rational-

ization measures they have pursued thus far. At the same time, building a strong financial position

will be one of the most important issues to be addressed. To this end, during the fiscal year ended

March 2002, we implemented decisive measures aimed at bringing the nonperforming loan issue to

a conclusion and substantially reducing the risk of stock price fluctuations. 

To dispose of nonperforming loans, during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002, with the man-

agement consolidation in mind, each of the Group banks conducted more stringent self-assessments

of their loan portfolios than in the past, based on a common awareness. Along with this, the banks

strengthened their reserves for their exposures to watch borrowers, took decisive measures to 

reduce large credit exposures, and implemented other measures. As a consequence, on a consoli-

dated basis, the Group incurred a credit-related loss of more than ¥1 trillion, including additions to 

What results are you expecting to achieve
as a result of the consolidation?

Question

What are your views regarding how the
Group will enhance the soundness of its
assets?

Question
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the general reserve for possible loan losses. As a result, we believe the risk of unexpected losses 

arising from large credit exposures has virtually been eliminated. 

Also during the fiscal year ended March 2002, we sold approximately ¥910.0 billion in equities

from our securities portfolio, and, for stocks whose market prices were 30% or more below their 

original purchase costs, we marked virtually all of these to market value. As a result, we have 

substantially reduced the risk of stock price fluctuations on the banks’ performance.

In the management of our operations, we have established

systems that separate corporate governance functions—

namely management decision making and overall super-

vision—from the day-to-day conduct of business operations.

These systems make management more responsible and

accountable for performance. 

In more specific terms, members of the Board of Directors, with the exception of those that also

hold positions as Executive Officers, have moved away from management of the day-to-day

activities and concentrate on governance, while the Executive Officers focus on management. 

At present, six board members also hold positions as Executive Officers; these are the President,

Deputy President, and the four full-time directors, but looking forward, we are considering having

external directors assume two of the full-time director positions and transfer the executive

authorities from these Board Directors to Executive Officers. 

In addition, we have divided the organization of the holding company into five units: the

Management Planning Unit, the Business Planning Unit, the Management Administration Unit, 

the Business Administration Unit, and the Internal Audit Unit. By having an Executive Officer take 

overall charge of each of these units, we have established a mutual checking function. 

To establish a mutual checking function between the holding company and the Group banks, 

following the realignment of the Group banks, we are considering a system under which the

President and Deputy President of the holding company will become part-time directors of the 

Group banks and the presidents of the Group banks will also become part-time directors of the hold-

ing company. 

Through the arrangements I have described, we will establish governance structures that

hold management responsible, and, through our efforts to provide the timely and appropriate 

disclosure of information, we will make it possible for shareholders to have an accurate under-

standing of the Resona Group’s activities. 

July 2002 

Yasuhisa Katsuta

President

Finally, what will be the stance of the Resona
Group toward corporate governance systems
and the transparency of management?

Question
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Consolidated Statement of Operations

Total income of the Resona Group in fiscal 2001, ended March 31, 2002, amounted to ¥1,373.4 billion.

By source, interest income, principally interest on loans, totaled ¥814.8 billion, and fees and

commissions amounted to ¥188.1 billion. 

Total expenses rose to ¥2,547.1 billion, as all banks in the Group took decisive steps to dispose

of non-performing loans and adopted conservative measures to deal with unrealized losses on secu-

rities to enhance the quality of their equity portfolios. These measures were taken to create a strong

earnings base in fiscal 2002 and subsequent years and, in view of the management consolidation that

led to the Group’s formation, were based on the awareness that the highest priority objective for the

Group was to strengthen its financial position.

As a result, the Group reported a loss before income taxes and minority interests of ¥1,173.7 billion

and a net loss of ¥931.8 billion. 

Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc., on a non-consolidated basis, reported operating income of 

¥2.1 billion and ordinary net profit of ¥0.3 billion for the fiscal year. However, the holding company

sold a portion of its shares in the Daiwa Trust & Banking, accompanying the conversion of that company

to a joint venture, thus realizing an extraordinary gain on the sale of shares amounting to ¥28.9 bil-

lion. As a consequence, the holding company reported net income of ¥19.9 billion.

Consolidated Balance Sheet and Trust Account

Total assets of the Group amounted to ¥44,952.4 billion at the balance sheet date. Loans and bills

discounted were ¥30,021.2 billion and securities amounted to ¥6,864.3 billion. The Group’s

reserve for possible loan losses was ¥1,054.9 billion. The total volume of funds, which is defined as

the sum of deposits and negotiable certificates of deposit, was ¥34,678.3 billion. 

In the trust account, total trust assets amounted to ¥25,142.5 billion, comprising principally

¥8,134.7 billion in money trusts and ¥6,266.9 billion in pension trusts. 

The Group’s net assets amounted to ¥1,289.0 billion. The consolidated capital adequacy ratio 

was 8.73%. 

Dividend Policy

As mentioned previously, the member banks of the Resona Group adopted decisive measures to

enhance the soundness of their asset portfolios and reported a substantial net loss for fiscal 2001.

Management regrets that under the circumstances, the Group must give highest priority to strengthen-

ing its financial position and did not pay a dividend on common shares. Dividends on preferred

shares were paid as originally declared. 
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Consolidated Financial Summary

Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc. 2002

Millions Millions of
Year ended March 31 of yen U.S. dollars

Income statement data
Income
Interest income ........................................................................................................ ¥ 814,876 $ 6,115
Trust fees.................................................................................................................. 44,843 336
Fees and commissions............................................................................................. 188,101 1,411
Trading income........................................................................................................ 10,369 77
Other operating income .......................................................................................... 108,130 811
Other income ........................................................................................................... 207,086 1,554

Total Income .................................................................................................. 1,373,407 10,306

Expenses
Interest expenses ..................................................................................................... 162,631 1,220
Fees and commissions............................................................................................. 70,039 525
Trading expenses..................................................................................................... 37 0
Other operating expenses ....................................................................................... 34,257 257
General and administrative expenses..................................................................... 568,320 4,265
Other expenses ........................................................................................................ 1,711,910 12,847

Total Expenses ............................................................................................... 2,547,197 19,115

Loss before income taxes and minority interests................................................... 1,173,789 8,808

Net loss..................................................................................................................... ¥ 931,876 $ 6,993

Balance sheet data

Total assets .............................................................................................................. ¥44,952,488 $337,354

Total liabilities.......................................................................................................... 43,558,519 326,893

Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries....................................................... 104,911 787

Total shareholders’ equity ....................................................................................... 1,289,058 9,673

Deposits and negotiable certificates of deposit ..................................................... 34,678,319 260,250

Loans and bills discounted...................................................................................... 30,021,204 225,299

Securities .................................................................................................................. 6,864,323 51,514

Yen U.S. dollars

Per share data

Net loss per share .................................................................................................... ¥ 174.57 $ 1.31

�
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Non-Consolidated Financial Summary

Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc. 2002

Millions Millions of
Year ended March 31 of yen U.S. dollars

Income Statement Data
Operating income...................................................................................................... ¥ 2,125 $ 15

Fees from subsidiaries ........................................................................................... 2,091 15 
Interest on loans to subsidiaries ........................................................................... 34 0 

Operating expenses................................................................................................... 1,700 12
Interest expenses ................................................................................................... 34 0 
General and administrative expenses................................................................... 1,666 12 

Operating profit ......................................................................................................... 424 3

Non-operating profit.................................................................................................. 1 0 
Non-operating expenses ........................................................................................... 118 0

Ordinary net profit .................................................................................................... 307 2

Extraordinary profit ................................................................................................... 28,913 216
Gains on sales of investment in subsidiaries ....................................................... 28,913 216

Income before income taxes .................................................................................... 29,221 219
Income taxes—current .............................................................................................. 10,313 77 
Income taxes—deferred ............................................................................................ (993) (7)

Net income................................................................................................................. ¥ 19,901 $ 149

Balance Sheet Data
Total assets ................................................................................................................ ¥1,822,271 $13,675
Total liabilities............................................................................................................ 310,972 2,333
Total shareholders’ equity......................................................................................... 1,511,298 11,341

Yen U.S. dollars

Per Share Data
Net income per share ................................................................................................ ¥ 2.66 $ 0.01
Cash dividends declared per share:

Common stock....................................................................................................... — —

Preferred stock:

Class A No. 1 preferred stock.......................................................................... 24.75 0.18

Class B No. 1 preferred stock.......................................................................... 6.36 0.04

Class C No. 1 preferred stock.......................................................................... 6.33 0.04

Class D No. 1 preferred stock.......................................................................... 10.00 0.07

Class E No. 1 preferred stock.......................................................................... 14.38 0.10

Class F No. 1 preferred stock.......................................................................... 18.50 0.13

�
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Non-consolidated Summary of Operations (Total of the five banks)

Total of the five banks*1 Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31 2002 2001 Difference 2002

Gross operating profit .......................................................... ¥ 800,138 ¥786,296 ¥ 13,841 $ 6,004 
Gross operating profit from domestic operations........... 757,796 744,312 13,484 5,687

Interest income ............................................................. 627,662 604,200 23,461 4,710
Trust fees....................................................................... 44,346 54,833 (10,487) 332
Fees and commissions.................................................. 55,696 61,622 (5,926) 417
Trading income............................................................. 1,993 3,162 (1,169) 14
Other operating income ............................................... 28,098 20,492 7,605 210

Gross operating profit from international operations..... 42,341 41,984 357 317
Interest income ............................................................. 11,762 20,792 (9,030) 88
Fees and commissions.................................................. 4,352 4,195 157 32
Trading income............................................................. 6,407 2,335 4,072 48
Other operating income ............................................... 19,818 14,660 5,157 148

Expenses (excluding extraordinary expenses) ................... 477,324 485,991 (8,667) 3,582
Personnel expenses .......................................................... 187,550 198,777 (11,226) 1,407
Nonpersonnel expenses................................................... 266,293 262,903 3,390 1,998
Taxes ................................................................................. 23,480 24,310 (830) 176 

Provision to general reserve for possible loan losses ........ 112,983 11,696 101,286 847

Disposal of non-performing loans in the trust account ........ 4,034 2,775 1,259 30

Actual net operating profit*2 ................................................ 326,849 303,081 23,767 2,452 

Net operating profit.............................................................. 209,830 288,608 (78,778) 1,574

Other gains or losses............................................................ (1,473,599) (333,449) (1,140,149) (11,058)
Gains or losses on stocks and other securities ............... (607,210) 203,836 (811,047) (4,556)

Gains on sale ................................................................ 41,857 244,207 (202,350) 314
Losses on sale ............................................................... 215,884 6,906 208,977 1,620
Losses on devaluation .................................................. 415,383 33,463 381,919 3,117
Provision to the reserve for possible losses 
on investments ........................................................... 17,800 — 17,800 133

Disposal of non-performing loans................................... 834,977 494,434 340,542 6,266
Write-off of loans.......................................................... 297,970 209,514 88,456 2,236
Provision to specific reserve for possible loan losses.... 404,650 188,606 216,043 3,036
Provision to reserve for possible losses on loans sold ... 9,231 24,653 (15,421) 69
Provision to reserve for the specific borrowers  
under support............................................................. — 22,000 (22,000) —

Losses on sales of claims to CCPC............................... 14,214 15,201 (986) 106
Provision to special reserve for certain overseas loans.... (4,977) (691) (4,286) (37)
Other credit-related expenses ...................................... 113,888 35,151 78,737 854

External standards tax on banks in Tokyo and Osaka..... 11,259 6,201 5,058 84

Ordinary loss ........................................................................ 1,263,768 44,840 1,218,927 9,484

Extraordinary gains or losses ............................................... (14,601) 2,107 (16,709) (109)
Gains or losses on disposition of real estate/
premises and equipment ............................................... (23,808) (5,229) (18,579) (178)
Gains on disposition of real estate/ 
premises and equipment ........................................... 776 5,021 (4,245) 5

Losses on disposition of real estate/ 
premises and equipment ........................................... 24,585 10,250 14,334 184

Loss before income taxes..................................................... 1,278,369 42,732 1,235,637 9,593
Income taxes—current ......................................................... 1,794 14,235 (12,441) 13
Income taxes—deferred....................................................... (239,477) (7,495) (231,982) (1,797)

Net loss ................................................................................. ¥1,040,686 ¥ 49,472 ¥ 991,213 $ 7,810

Notes: 1. Total for the five Group banks is the sum of the non-consolidated figures for the Daiwa Bank, the Kinki Osaka
Bank, the Nara Bank, the Asahi Bank, and the Daiwa Trust & Banking.

2. Actual net operating profit: Net operating profit before transfer to general reserve for possible loan losses and
disposal of non-performing loans in the trust account.

�
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The Resona Group has a corporate philosophy of “conducting sound and transparent activities and

working to maximize corporate value.” Accordingly, the Group is implementing initiatives to

enhance the soundness of its operations. 

In fiscal 2001, in view of the recent consolidation of their activities into a single group and based

on a shared awareness that improving financial position was an issue of the highest priority, the

members of the Resona Group took initiatives to bring the issue of nonperforming loans to a con-

clusion and substantially reduce the impact of fluctuations in stock prices on their performance, with

the aim of building a strong earnings base in fiscal 2002 and subsequent years.

Measures to Dispose of Nonperforming Exposure in Fiscal 2001

To eliminate latent credit risk, the Group conducted significantly stricter self-assessments 

and strengthened its approach to dealing with large loan exposures. Also, as a result of these and

related activities as well as expanded additions to the reserve for possible loan losses, the total

amount of credit-related costs, on a consolidated basis, amounted to ¥901.3 billion during the fiscal

year. This included write-offs of loans in the amount of ¥349.2 billion, provision to the specific

reserve for possible loan losses of ¥375.6 billion, losses on forgiveness of loans to assist borrowers

amounting to ¥66.5 billion, losses in relation to the loans sold to the Cooperative Credit Pur-

chasing Company, Limited (CCPC), of ¥23.4 billion, and losses on the sale of other claims of 

¥47.5 billion. If disposals of ¥4.0 billion of nonperforming exposure in the trust account and

¥103.1 billion in additions to the general reserve for possible loan losses are also included, the Group

incurred ¥1,008.4 billion in losses in relation to the disposal of such nonperforming exposures in the

broadest sense. 

Disclosure of Nonperforming Exposure

The Group discloses its nonperforming exposure according to the definitions of the Law Con-

cerning Emergency Measures for the Early Strengthening of Financial Functions (hereinafter, the

Financial Reconstruction Law) and according to the definitions based on the Banking Law, for risk

management loans (including exposure from the trust account with contracts providing for the 

guarantee of principal). 

Under the Financial Reconstruction Law definitions, the total amounts for the four Group

banks* of classified exposures were as follows: Unrecoverable or valueless claims: ¥442.4 billion; Risk

claims: ¥1,598.2 billion; and Claims in need of special attention: ¥1,315.4 billion. The total for the

three categories was ¥3,356.1 billion, representing an increase of ¥879.0 billion over the previous year.

The coverage ratio for this exposure, including reserves, collateral, and guarantees, was 75.1%. 

Risk management loans on a consolidated basis amounted to ¥3,458.7 billion, and the total for 

the four Group banks was ¥3,300.6 billion. The ratio of risk management loans to total loans and bills

discounted was 11.52% on a consolidated basis. The same ratio for the total of the four Group banks

was 10.84%.

* The total for the four Group banks is the sum of the relevant non-consolidated amounts for the Daiwa Bank, the Kinki Osaka Bank,
the Nara Bank, and the Asahi Bank.
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Breakdown of disposal of non-performing loans (Consolidated) (Billions of yen)

Year ended March 31 2002

Disposal of non-performing loans ......................................................................................................... ¥901.3
Write-off of loans ...................................................................................................................................... 349.2
Provision to specific reserve for possible loan losses............................................................................. 375.6
Provision to reserve for possible losses on loans sold ........................................................................... 9.2
Losses on forgiveness of loans to assist borrowers................................................................................. 66.5
Losses on sales of claims to CCPC ........................................................................................................... 14.2
Provision to special reserve for certain overseas loans .......................................................................... (4.9)
Losses on sales of other claims ................................................................................................................ 47.5
Other credit-related expenses................................................................................................................... 43.8

Claims disclosure according to the Financial Reconstruction Law (Total of the four banks)
(Includes Jointly Operated Designated Money Trust, of which the principal is guaranteed by a Group bank. 
Figures are after partial direct write-offs.) (Billions of yen)

March 31 2002 2001

Unrecoverable or valueless claims................................................................................... ¥     442.4 ¥    430.9
Risk claims......................................................................................................................... 1,598.2 1,125.5
Claims in need of special attention ................................................................................. 1,315.4 920.5

Financial Reconstruction Law subtotal ............................................................................ 3,356.1 2,477.1
Nonclassified claims.......................................................................................................... 29,302.7 34,532.5

Financial Reconstruction Law total .............................................................................. ¥32,658.8 ¥37,009.6

Risk management loans (Consolidated)
(Includes Jointly Operated Designated Money Trust, of which the principal is guaranteed by a Group bank. 
Figures are after partial direct write-offs.) (Billions of yen)

2002

March 31 Risk management loans Ratio to total loans 

Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy................................................ ¥   186.6 0.62%
Past due loans ......................................................................................... 1,891.3 6.30%
Loans past due three months or more .................................................. 121.4 0.40%
Restructured loans .................................................................................. 1,259.3 4.19%

Total..................................................................................................... ¥3,458.7 11.52%

Partial direct write-offs ........................................................................... ¥1,022.7

Reserve for possible loan losses (Consolidated) (Billions of yen)

March 31 2002

General reserve for possible loan losses.................................................................................................. ¥ 344.5
Specific reserve for possible loan losses .................................................................................................. 708.8
Special reserve for certain overseas loans................................................................................................ 1.5

Total reserve for possible loan losses................................................................................................... ¥1,054.9

Reserve for possible losses on loans sold ................................................................................................ ¥ 20.4
Reserve provided in preparation for write-offs in trust account............................................................. 1.3

Percentage of reserves to total risk management loans (Consolidated) (%)

March 31 2002

Before partial direct write-off ........................................................................................................................ 46.39
After partial direct write-off ........................................................................................................................... 30.53

Percentage of reserves = (Total reserve for possible loan losses + Reserve for the specific borrowers under support  
+ Reserve provided in preparation for write-offs in trust account) / Total risk management loans

�

�

�
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Risk management loans (Total of the four banks)
(Includes Jointly Operated Designated Money Trust, of which the principal is guaranteed by a Group bank. 
Figures are after partial direct write-offs.) (Billions of yen)

March 31 2002 2001

Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy .......................................................................... ¥   178.6 ¥ 210.5
Past due loans.................................................................................................................... 1,806.6 1,310.8
Loans past due three months or more ............................................................................. 102.0 134.7
Restructured loans ............................................................................................................. 1,213.3 786.5

Total................................................................................................................................ ¥3,300.6 ¥2,442.6

Partial direct write-offs ...................................................................................................... ¥ 944.2 ¥ 939.4

Ratio to balance of loans (At year-end) (Total of the four banks) (%)

March 31 2002 2001

Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy ................................................................................ 0.58 0.61
Past due loans.......................................................................................................................... 5.93 3.82
Loans past due three months.................................................................................................. 0.33 0.39
Restructured loans ................................................................................................................... 3.98 2.29

Total...................................................................................................................................... 10.84 7.12

Reserve for possible loan losses (Total of the four banks) (Billions of yen)

March 31 2002 2001

General reserve for possible loan losses .............................................................................. ¥326.4 ¥213.2
Specific reserve for possible loan losses .............................................................................. 651.2 457.5
Special reserve for certain overseas loans............................................................................ 2.2 7.0

Total reserve for possible loan losses............................................................................... ¥979.9 ¥677.8

Reserve for the specific borrowers under support .............................................................. ¥ — ¥ 46.6
Reserve for possible losses on loans sold ............................................................................ 20.4 65.3
Reserve provided in preparation for write-offs in trust account......................................... 1.3 1.6

Percentage of reserves to total risk management loans (%)

March 31 2002 2001

Before partial direct write-off................................................................................................ 45.36 49.24
After partial direct write-off................................................................................................... 29.73 29.72

Percentage of reserves = (Total reserve for possible loan losses + Reserve for the specific borrowers under support 
+ Reserve provided in preparation for write-off in trust account) / Total risk management loans

�

�

�
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Problem Exposure Cleared from the Balance Sheet

The four Group banks cleared a total of ¥716.9 billion in exposures to “bankrupt,” “effectively bank-

rupt,” and “doubtful” obligors from their balance sheets during fiscal 2001, but as a result of 

the application of stricter self-assessment criteria and other developments, loans and other assets 

of ¥1,201.1 billion were newly classified as exposures to these categories of borrowers, bringing 

the outstanding balance of exposure to be cleared from the balance sheet to ¥2,040.7 billion as of

the end of March 2002.

The Group is making steady progress toward clearing these problem exposures from its balance

sheet, as the percentage of such exposures cleared from the balance sheet indicates.

Of those claims classified as being extended to “doubtful” or lower obligor categories in or before

the first half of fiscal 2000, 60.7% of such exposures has been cleared from the balance sheet.

Similarly, 32.2% and 40.4% of such exposures newly classified in the second half of fiscal 2000 and

in the first half of fiscal 2001 have been cleared from the balance sheet, respectively.

Problem exposure cleared from the balance sheets

Claims to obligors classified as “doubtful” or lower obligor categories in the self-assessment 
of asset quality (Total of the four banks)
(Includes Jointly Operated Designated Money Trust, of which the principal is guaranteed by a Group bank. 
Figures are after partial direct write-offs.) (Billions of yen)

End of March 2002

Clearance End of End of End of
Ratios September 2001 March 2001 September 2000

Portion in or prior to the first half of fiscal 2000
(existing portion) ......................................................................... ¥   610.1 60.7% ¥   868.7 ¥1,096.7 ¥1,554.9

Unrecoverable or valueless claims ........................................ 238.3 43.2% 292.9 373.0 419.6
Risk claims .............................................................................. 371.7 67.2% 575.8 723.7 1,135.3

Portion in the latter half of fiscal 2000
(existing portion) ......................................................................... 311.5 32.2% 372.1 459.7

Unrecoverable or valueless claims ........................................ 38.0 34.3% 34.1 57.9
Risk claims .............................................................................. 273.5 31.9% 337.9 401.8

Portion in the first half of fiscal 2001
(existing portion)......................................................................... 120.6 40.4% 202.7

Unrecoverable or valueless claims ........................................ 38.0 29.8% 54.2
Risk claims .............................................................................. 82.5 44.3% 148.4

Additional portion in the second half of
fiscal 2001 (newly reported) ....................................................... 998.3 —

Unrecoverable or valueless claims ........................................ 128.0 —
Risk claims .............................................................................. 870.3 —

Total .................................................................................... ¥2,040.7 — ¥1,443.6 ¥1,556.5 ¥1,554.9

Note: Clearance ratios are the percentages of exposure outstanding as of the end of March 2002 compared with the balance at the end of the period
when such exposure was newly classified.

�
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Note: Includes the Jointly Operated Designated Money Trust, of which the principal is guaranteed by a Group bank. 

Disclosure Categories
under the Financial
Reconstruction Law

Normal Claims Category II Claims Category III Claims Category IV Claims
Coverage

Coverage Ratio
under Financial

Reconstruction Law
Criteria

Bankrupt and 
Effectively Bankrupt 

(Total 442.4)

Unrecoverable or
Valueless Claims

442.4
147.3 295.1 Reserve Ratio 

100% Direct Write-Offs

Disclosure Categories under Self-Assessment of Asset Quality

Categories of
ClaimsObligor 

Classification

Reserves
(67.7)

Collateral/Guarantees
(374.7)

Unrecoverable or
Valueless Claims

100%

Doubtful 
(Total 1,598.2)

Risk Claims
1,598.2 744.2 565.2

288.7 Reserves
(581.3)

Collateral/
Guarantees

(728.0)

Risk Claims
81.9%

Reserve Ratio 
66.8%

Special
Attention 

(Total 2,101.7)

Claims in Need of Special
Attention 1,315.4

Subtotal 3,356.1
271.1 1,830.5

Reserves (225.7)
Collateral/Guarantees

(544.3)

Claims in Need of
Special Attention 

58.5%

Other Watch 
(Total 4,359.5) Nonclassified

Claims
29,302.7

Watch 

1,405.5 2,954.0

Coverage Ratio
against Total Claims

75.1%

Normal 
(Total 24,156.8) 24,156.8

Total 
32,658.8

Total
32,658.8

Normal Claims
26,725.1

Category II Claims
5,644.9

Category III Claims
288.7

Category IV Claims
—

Statement of self-assessment of asset quality (Total of the four banks) (Billions of yen)�

Summary of policies for write-offs and reserves by obligor classification�

Normal 

Watch 

Special Attention 

Doubtful

Effectively Bankrupt 

Bankrupt 

Obligor Classification
Summary of Policies for Write-Offs and Reserves (Banking Account)under Self-Assessments

The amount equivalent to the expected loss over the coming one-year period is
added to the General Reserve for Possible Loan Losses. The expected loss is
computed by using expected loan loss ratios that take account of the average
maturities of the loans, actual loan loss experience, and other factors, including
adjustments deemed necessary for future prospects.

The amount equivalent to the expected loss over the coming three-year period
is added to the General Reserve for Possible Loan Losses. The expected loss is
computed by using expected loan loss ratios that take account of the average
maturities of the loans, actual loan loss experience, and other factors, including
adjustments deemed necessary for future prospects.

In principle, an amount equivalent to the outstanding balance of the loan less
the rationally estimated recoverable portion is added to specific reserve for possi-
ble loan losses on an obligor-by-obligor basis. For other obligors, the expected
loss ratio, based on historical loan loss experience after taking account of neces-
sary adjustments for future prospects, is used to compute additions to reserves
for individual loans. 

The amount remaining after subtraction of the expected recoveries from collateral
and guarantees from the balance of the exposures is either written off or an
equivalent amount is added to the Specific Reserve for Possible Loan Losses on 
a loan-by-loan basis.
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Initiatives to Reduce the Impact of Stock Price Fluctuations

The Group has moved forward proactively to sell portions of its stock portfolio and estimated the

possibilities for recovery in the value of its stockholdings conservatively. Specifically, the Group banks

generally marked to market those stocks whose market prices were 30% or more below their orig-

inal purchase costs on their balance sheets. As a result, the Group banks combined reported 

losses on the devaluation of stocks of ¥415.3 billion, bringing the net losses on stocks, including 

losses on the sale of stocks, to ¥607.2 billion.

Accordingly, net unrealized losses on “Other securities” declined to ¥79.1 billion. The total value

of stocks sold during the fiscal year, including ¥144.8 billion in stocks transferred to an employees’

retirement benefit trust, amounted to ¥914.3 billion. 

As a consequence, the Group has significantly reduced its exposure to the risk of stock 

price fluctuations. 

Gains or losses on stocks and other securities (Billions of yen)

Total of the five banks
Year ended March 31

2002

Gains or losses on stocks and other securities.......................................................................................... ¥(607.2)
Gains on sales ......................................................................................................................................... 41.8
Losses on sales ........................................................................................................................................ 215.8
Losses on devaluation............................................................................................................................. 415.3
Provision to reserve for possible losses on investments....................................................................... 17.8

Book value of stock sold (Billions of yen)

Total of the five banks
Year ended March 31

2002

Book value of stock sold............................................................................................................................. ¥914.3
Of which, transferred to employees’ retirement benefit trust ............................................................... 144.8

Unrealized gains or losses on securities (Billions of yen)

Total of the five banks
March 31

2002

Securities held to maturity ........................................................................................................................... ¥ (0.0)
Stocks of subsidiaries and affiliates............................................................................................................. —
Other securities ............................................................................................................................................ (79.1)
Total.............................................................................................................................................................. (79.1)

Bonds........................................................................................................................................................ 23.8
Stocks........................................................................................................................................................ (91.7)
Other......................................................................................................................................................... (11.2)

Note: The totals for the five banks are the sum of non-consolidated figures for the Daiwa Bank, the Kinki Osaka Bank, 
the Nara Bank, the Asahi Bank, and the Daiwa Trust & Banking Company.

�

�
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Basic Approach to Risk Management

As banking activities have become more diverse and financial technology has progressed, financial

institutions are confronted with a wider range of risks. It has become increasingly important for 

financial institutions to control risk within fixed limits and generate stable levels of earnings that are

appropriate to the risks they take. 

The Resona Group believes it must create strong risk management systems, realize soundness

and efficiency in its operations, enhance corporate value, and gain the understanding and trust of

society. The Group aims to create a new style of risk management that is suitable to the nature of

its operations as a super regional bank. 

The holding company decides basic matters related to risk management. The members of the

Group are working together actively to upgrade and create a common basic risk management frame-

work and tools, including methods of measuring risk. Each Group member conducts specific risk

management activities appropriate to the content of its business activities.

The Group has classified risks into seven types (credit, market, liquidity, operations, systems,

legal, and reputation) and manages these in a manner appropriate to each type of risk. The

Group is working to develop systems for integrated risk management, including methods for

measuring quantifiable risks with uniform standards wherever possible. For risks that are difficult to

quantify, the Group is endeavoring to enhance management capabilities through the preparation of

procedures manuals and training as well as guidance programs.

Risk Management Systems of the Resona Group

Credit risk

Market risk

Liquidity risk

Systems risk

Legal risk

Reputation risk

Types of risk Definition

The risk of losses arising when the value of assets declines or is destroyed as a result of the
deterioration of the financial position of obligors

The risk of losses arising when the value of assets declines owing to fluctuations in long- and
short-term interest rates, prices of bonds and stocks, foreign currency exchange rates, and other
indicators. Market risk also includes the risk of losses that may occur when transactions cannot
be consummated due to market turmoil, or transactions must be carried out at much less favor-
able prices than during normal periods (market liquidity risk).

The risk of losses arising when necessary liquidity cannot be obtained and cash needed for the
conduct of operations is unavailable because of deterioration in financial position and other 
circumstances. Liquidity risk also applies to situations where losses are incurred because of the
need to borrow funds at substantially higher interest rates than during normal periods.

The risk of losses arising when management and staff fail to perform operations accurately or
engage in fraudulent or illegal activities

The risk of losses arising when computer systems fail or function improperly, when systems are
used inappropriately, when hackers break into systems, and when information is leaked from 
computer systems

The risk of losses when laws and legal contracts are violated or breached, when improper 
contracts are concluded, and when other adverse circumstances arise for legal reasons

The risk of losses when the trust of others and reputations are damaged due to the circulation
of reports and rumors contrary to fact

Operations risk
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Group Risk Management Systems

Holding Company (Daiwa Bank Holdings)

The Board of Directors and Executive Committee decide on basic risk management frameworks and

policies, including Group risk management policies and risk limits. The holding company has formed

risk management units for each type of risk, which provide guidance and advice after gathering and

analyzing risk conditions at Group banks. The holding company has established the Risk Manage-

ment Division to supervise the risks confronted by the holding company and Group members. 

Group Banks (Daiwa Bank, Kinki Osaka Bank, Nara Bank, Asahi Bank, 

and Daiwa Trust & Banking)

Group banks follow Group risk management policies established by the holding company and con-

duct their own risk management activities appropriate to the risks they confront. In addition, under

the guidance of the holding company, Group banks are endeavoring to enhance the sophistication

of risk management methods and develop common approaches within the Group.

Group Risk Management Systems�

[Holding Company]

[Group Banks]

Departments 
in charge of 
credit risk

Departments in charge of liquidity risk

Departments in charge of market risk

Departments 
in charge of 

operations risk

Departments 
in charge of 
systems risk

Departments 
in charge of 

legal risk

Departments 
in charge of 

reputation risk

Supervision and management through a system of prior consultation and reporting

Credit Planning
Division Risk Management Division Systems and Administration Division Compliance

Division
Corporate

Communications
Division

Management of
Group credit risk

Management of
Group market risk

Management of
Group liquidity

risk

Management of
Group operations

risk
Management of

Group systems risk
Management of
Group legal risk

Management of
Group 

reputation risk

Board of Directors

Executive Committee

Risk Management Division

Departments in charge of risk management
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Credit Risk Management

Holding Company

Credit risk is one of the major risks arising in banking operations. To manage credit risk appro-

priately, the holding company of the Resona Group sets Group risk management policies and works

to upgrade credit risk management within the Group as a whole.

The holding company gathers information from Group banks regarding their risk conditions and

works to supervise and manage risk through consultation on important policies. In addition, the hold-

ing company reviews risk management policies and rules of Group banks and provides guidance

and advice. The holding company is also the focal point of activities to introduce uniform criteria and

methods and to enhance the sophistication of risk management. 

Group Banks

Each of the Group banks has established credit policies and procedures and works to ensure the

soundness of its credit decision and post-transaction management functions. 

To manage credit risk of the asset portfolio as a whole, the Group banks employ a credit rating

system and measure credit risk based on this system. The banks also measure credit cost (the 

average expected loss for the portfolio as a whole) and credit risk (unexpected losses that

exceed credit cost due to the presence of large credit exposures, fluctuations in the default ratio, and

other circumstances) and seek to attain a balance between risk and return through analyses from

many perspectives, with the aim of structuring a high-quality credit portfolio. 

Moreover, the Group banks make use of the results of measurements of credit risk in setting

credit limits and guidelines as well as in loan pricing. 

Credit Risk Management System�

Reports

ReportsConsultation/reports

[Holding Company]

[Group Banks]

Board of Directors

Executive Committee

Risk Management Division

Credit Planning Division

Daiwa Bank Kinki Osaka
Bank Nara Bank Asahi Bank Daiwa Trust &

Banking

Supervision and management through a system of prior consultation and reporting
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Market Risk

Holding Company

The holding company sets Group risk management policies and works to enhance the market risk

management systems for the Group as a whole. The principal upper limits and guidelines for 

market risk are determined through prior consultation among the holding company and Group

banks. The Risk Management Division of the holding company receives reports from Group

banks regarding their market risk conditions, including compliance with upper limits and guidelines

and is responsible for the centralized monitoring and management of market risk as well as for

reporting to management. In addition, by examining the appropriateness of the risk management

policies and regulations of Group banks, the division provides guidance and advice related to their

market operations and market risk management systems. 

Group Banks

Based on Group risk management policies, the Group banks have created appropriate risk 

management systems. The basic approach to market risk management is to establish mutual

checking functions through the establishment of front offices, back offices, and independent

middle offices. The middle offices monitor compliance with the predetermined upper limits and

report risk conditions to management. 

Market Risk Management System�

Reports

Reports

● Market risk conditions

Reports

● Market risk conditions

● Establishment of upper limits 
and guidelines

● Establishment of upper limits 
and guidelines

● Setting of policies and regulations

Discussion

Guidance 
and advice

Prior consultation

[Holding Company]

Board of Directors

Executive Committee

Risk Management Division

[Group Banks]
Daiwa Bank Nara Bank Asahi Bank

Kinki Osaka Bank Daiwa Trust & Banking
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Liquidity Risk

The banking institutions of the Resona Group manage liquidity risk based on the Group risk 

management policies set by the holding company. The Group banks diversify sources of funding and

maintain a sufficient volume of highly liquid assets.

Group banks measure their cash positions appropriately using management indicators 

suited to their liquidity conditions, and, when necessary, guidelines are established for liquidity 

management.

The holding company monitors the liquidity risk condition, including compliance with guidelines,

on a daily basis and provides reports to management. In addition, if necessary, it may provide guid-

ance regarding cash position management to the Group banks. 

Operations Risk

The holding company and Group banks are continuously upgrading their operational regulations and

procedures based on a full awareness of operational risk. Moreover, by periodically monitoring the

occurrence of operational errors and other issues and undertaking comprehensive analysis of

operational risks, the holding company and Group banks work together to prevent the recurrence

of problems and use past experience to establish policies for minimizing operational risk.

Systems Risk

The holding company and Group banks endeavor to minimize systems risk by establishing stan-

dardized policies to prevent failure, errors, and the improper use of computer and other 

systems. Activities also include the preparation and updating of contingency plans in the event of

systems failure. 

Legal Risk

The holding company and Group banks work to minimize legal risk through the implementation of

legal checks, through teamwork with legal counsel, and other measures. In addition, to centralize

information on legal suits and related matters among the Group banks, work is under way to 

create systems that will permit the monitoring of information related to legal risk. 
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Activities to Manage Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, human error,

and systems or from external events.

The banks of the Resona Group are preparing and upgrading systems to monitor and manage

this broad category of risks comprehensively. In addition, active efforts are in progress to increase

the sophistication of operational risk management, including the quantification of this category 

of risks.

Reputation Risk

The holding company and the Group banks are working to expand their disclosure regarding 

their business activities by providing more accurate and pertinent information.

Basic Principle

The Resona Group has strong awareness of the responsibilities of the Group to society and the pub-

lic. The Group defines compliance as to strictly observe not only laws and regulations but also social

norms in order to obtain trust from customers and society in general. The Group is committed to

enhancing compliance in the Group and to putting it into practice.

As was stated in the Resona Group’s Corporate Ideals and Standards of Conduct that the Group

declared in May 2002, the Group defines the soundness and transparency of management as one of

the most important ideals and adherence to the principles and common sense of society as one of

the most essential behavioral norms.

Compliance Monitoring Systems

The holding company newly instituted the Group Compliance Manual in December 2001, which was

based on the existing compliance manuals of the core banks in the Group. The manual provides the

compliance structure of the Group as a whole, and each bank within the Group is required to estab-

lish its compliance system under the direction of the holding company.

Each bank within the Group and the holding company have already appointed deputy general

managers of all branches and departments in the head offices to be Compliance Manager, who are

primarily responsible for compliance matters of each branch and department.

The inspection division of each bank conducts on-site monitoring of the operations as well as

compliance of all branches and departments in the head offices. Moreover, the compliance

department of each bank supervises all compliance matters of each bank by observing and

advising to all branches and departments in the head offices.

Compliance Systems of the Resona Group
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Compliance Programs

The holding company and each bank within the Group have implemented their own annual

compliance programs approved by the Board, which includes plans for reviewing the existing var-

ious manuals and procedures to reflect changes in laws and regulations. The compliance programs

of the Group banks also include action plans for the enhancement of the internal control system and

employee training. Under the quarterly compliance reporting system of the Group banks, all

compliance matters are reported to their compliance department and the Board.

In addition, each bank within the Group is required to report quarterly the status of its com-

pliance program to the Compliance Division of the holding company. 

� Resona Group Compliance Systems

Reports Supervision

Holding Company

Group Banks

Board of Directors

Primary checks

Board of Directors

Compliance Division

Board of Corporate Auditors

Tertiary checks

Secondary checks

● Supervision of compliance within the Group
● Supervision of the preparation and implementation of 

compliance programs of the Group banks
● Updating and expanding compliance manuals and related 

documents

● Building corporate ethics and related systems based on social responsibility 
and public missions

● Preparing basic policies for compliance and compliance programs

● Branches
● Head Office

● Internal audit departments
● Compliance departments 

● Corporate auditors
● External auditors
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The Board of Directors

Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc. and consolidated subsidiaries as of

March 31, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the

year then ended, all expressed in yen. Our audit was made in accordance with auditing standards, procedures and

practices generally accepted and applied in Japan and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records

and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, expressed in yen, present fairly the consolidated

financial position of Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc. and consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2002, and the consoli-

dated results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles

and practices generally accepted in Japan applied on a consistent basis.

The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended

March 31, 2002 are presented solely for convenience. Our audit also included the translation of yen amounts into

U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such translation has been made on the basis described in Note 1 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Tokyo, Japan

June 27, 2002

See Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements which explains the basis of presentation of the consolidated

financial statements of Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc. and consolidated subsidiaries under Japanese accounting 

principles and practices.



Millions of
Millions of U.S. dollars

yen (Note 1)

2002 2002

Assets
Cash and due from banks (Notes 2 (t), 10 and 23) ..................................................................................... ¥ 3,166,039 $ 23,760
Call loans and bills bought (Note 3)............................................................................................................. 102,634 770
Monetary claims bought ................................................................................................................................ 3,740 28
Trading assets (Notes 2 (b), 4 and 10) ......................................................................................................... 651,322 4,887
Money held in trust (Note 26)....................................................................................................................... 43,854 329
Securities (Notes 2 (d), 5, 10 and 26) ........................................................................................................... 6,864,323 51,514
Loans and bills discounted (Notes 6, 10 and 11)......................................................................................... 30,021,204 225,299
Foreign exchange (Note 7) ........................................................................................................................... 180,939 1,357
Other assets (Notes 8, 10 and 12)................................................................................................................. 1,232,565 9,250
Premises and equipment (Notes 2 (f), 9, 10, 17 and 25)............................................................................. 840,198 6,305
Deferred tax assets (Note 24)........................................................................................................................ 832,611 6,248
Consolidation differences (Note 2 (r)).......................................................................................................... 5,124 38
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees (Note 16)................................................................ 2,062,934 15,481
Reserve for possible loan losses (Note 2 (g)) .............................................................................................. (1,054,958) (7,917)
Reserve for possible losses on investments (Note 2 (h)) ............................................................................ (45) (0)

Total Assets........................................................................................................................................... ¥44,952,488 $337,354

Liabilities
Deposits (Notes 10 and 13)........................................................................................................................... ¥33,822,170 $253,824
Negotiable certificates of deposit.................................................................................................................. 856,148 6,425
Call money and bills sold (Notes 3 and 10)................................................................................................. 2,547,782 19,120
Bills sold under repurchase agreements (Note 10)...................................................................................... 281,083 2,109
Commercial paper ......................................................................................................................................... 20,000 150
Trading liabilities (Notes 2 (b) and 4) .......................................................................................................... 219,655 1,648
Borrowed money (Notes 10 and 14) ............................................................................................................ 1,017,404 7,635
Foreign exchange (Note 7) ........................................................................................................................... 8,957 67
Bonds (Note 14)............................................................................................................................................. 597,064 4,480
Due to trust account ...................................................................................................................................... 213,342 1,601
Other liabilities (Notes 10 and 15)................................................................................................................ 1,789,046 13,426
Reserve for employees’ bonuses (Note 2 (i))............................................................................................... 8,797 66
Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits (Notes 2 (j) and 28) ............................................................... 17,012 127
Reserve for possible losses on loans sold (Note 2 (k)) ............................................................................... 20,432 153
Other reserves (Note 2 (l)) ............................................................................................................................ 134 1
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 24)................................................................................................................... 379 2
Deferred tax liabilities on land revaluation ................................................................................................. 74,221 557
Consolidation differences (Note 2 (r)).......................................................................................................... 1,950 14
Acceptances and guarantees (Note 16) ........................................................................................................ 2,062,934 15,481

Total Liabilities ..................................................................................................................................... 43,558,519 326,893

Minority Interests
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries............................................................................................. 104,911 787

Shareholders’ Equity (Note 18)
Capital............................................................................................................................................................. 720,000 5,403
Capital surplus ............................................................................................................................................... 1,377,089 10,334
Land revaluation differences (Note 17) ........................................................................................................ 113,301 850
Deficit (Note 2 (s))......................................................................................................................................... 817,181 6,132
Valuation differences (Note 26) .................................................................................................................... (72,797) (546)
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of taxes ............................................................................... (9,550) (71)
Treasury stock ............................................................................................................................................... (19) (0)
Parent’s stock owned by subsidiaries ........................................................................................................... (21,784) (163)

Total Shareholders’ Equity ................................................................................................................... 1,289,058 9,673

Total Liabilities, Minority Interests and Shareholders’ Equity ............................................................ ¥44,952,488 $337,354

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

C O N S O L I D A T E D  B A L A N C E  S H E E T
Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc.
March 31, 2002
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Millions of
Millions of U.S. dollars

yen (Note 1)

2002 2002

Income

Interest income (Note 19) ............................................................................................................................. ¥ 814,876 $ 6,115

Trust fees........................................................................................................................................................ 44,843 336

Fees and commissions................................................................................................................................... 188,101 1,411

Trading income (Notes 2 (c) and 20) ........................................................................................................... 10,369 77

Other operating income (Note 21) ............................................................................................................... 108,130 811

Other income (Note 22) ................................................................................................................................ 207,086 1,554

Total Income ........................................................................................................................................ 1,373,407 10,306

Expenses

Interest expenses (Note 19) .......................................................................................................................... 162,631 1,220

Fees and commissions................................................................................................................................... 70,039 525

Trading expenses (Note 2 (c)) ...................................................................................................................... 37 0

Other operating expenses (Note 21) ............................................................................................................ 34,257 257

General and administrative expenses........................................................................................................... 568,320 4,265

Other expenses (Note 22) ............................................................................................................................. 1,711,910 12,847

Total Expenses ..................................................................................................................................... 2,547,197 19,115

Loss before income taxes and minority interests......................................................................................... 1,173,789 8,808

Income taxes—current (Note 2 (u)) ............................................................................................................. 14,906 111

Income taxes—deferred (Note 2 (u)) ........................................................................................................... (256,412) (1,924)

Minority interests in net loss ......................................................................................................................... 407 3

Net loss........................................................................................................................................................... ¥ 931,876 $ 6,993

U.S. dollars
Yen (Note 1)

Net loss per share .......................................................................................................................................... ¥174.57 $1.31

Cash dividends declared per share:

Common stock ........................................................................................................................................... — —

Preferred stock:

Class A No. 1 preferred stock ............................................................................................................... 24.75 0.18

Class B No. 1 preferred stock ............................................................................................................... 6.36 0.04

Class C No. 1 preferred stock ............................................................................................................... 6.33 0.04

Class D No. 1 preferred stock............................................................................................................... 10.00 0.07

Class E No. 1 preferred stock ............................................................................................................... 14.38 0.10

Class F No. 1 preferred stock ............................................................................................................... 18.50 0.13

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

C O N S O L I D A T E D  S T A T E M E N T  O F  O P E R A T I O N S
Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc.
Year ended March 31, 2002
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Millions of yen

Number of Number of Land Retained Foreign Parent’s
shares of shares of revaluation earnings Valuation currency stock

common stock preferred stock Capital differences (deficit) differences translation Treasury owned by 
(Thousands) (Thousands) Capital surplus (Note 17) (Note 2 (s)) (Note 26) adjustments stock subsidiaries

Balance at April 1, 2001 .................................... 5,634,904 1,131,356 ¥720,000 ¥1,444,475 ¥127,223 ¥ 57,201 ¥ — ¥(6,229) ¥ — ¥ —
Reversal of capital surplus ................................ — — — (67,385) — 67,385 — — — —
Reversal of land revaluation differences .......... — — — — (13,828) 13,828 — — — —
Reduction in the number of affiliates 
accounted for by the equity method .............. — — — — — 2,017 — — —

Transfer to deferred tax liabilities 
on land revaluation........................................... — — — — (93) — — — — —

Dividends paid.................................................... — — — — — (4,711) — — — —
Directors’ bonuses .............................................. — — — — — (2) — — — —
Transfer of shares ............................................... — — — — — (21,024) — — — —
Changes during the year .................................... — — — — — — (72,797) (3,321) — —
Net loss .............................................................. — — — — — (931,876) — — — —
Treasury stock transactions ................................ — — — — — — — — (19) (21,784)

Balance at March 31, 2002 ............................. 5,634,904 1,131,356 ¥720,000 ¥1,377,089 ¥113,301 ¥(817,181) ¥(72,797) ¥(9,550) ¥(19) ¥(21,784)

Millions of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Number of Number of Land Retained Foreign Parent’s 
shares of shares of revaluation earnings Valuation currency stock

common stock preferred stock Capital differences (deficit) differences translation Treasury owned by 
(Thousands) (Thousands) Capital surplus (Note 17) (Note 2 (s)) (Note 26) adjustments stock subsidiaries

Balance at April 1, 2001 .................................... 5,634,904 1,131,356 $5,403 $ 10,840 $ 954 $ 429 $ — $(46) $— $ —
Reversal of capital surplus ................................ — — — (505) — 505 — — — —
Reversal of land revaluation differences .......... — — — — (103) 103 — — — —
Reduction in the number of affiliates 
accounted for by the equity method .............. — — — — — 15 — — — —

Transfer to deferred tax liabilities 
on land revaluation........................................... — — — — (0) — — — — —

Dividends paid.................................................... — — — — — (35) — — — —
Directors’ bonuses .............................................. — — — — — (0) — — — —
Transfer of shares ............................................... — — — — — (157) — — — —
Changes during the year .................................... — — — — — — (546) (24) — —
Net loss .............................................................. — — — — — (6,993) — — — —
Treasury stock transactions ................................ — — — — — — — — (0) (163)

Balance at March 31, 2002 ............................. 5,634,904 1,131,356 $5,403 $10,334 $850 $(6,132) $(546) $(71) $(0) $(163)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

C O N S O L I D A T E D  S T A T E M E N T  O F  S H A R E H O L D E R S ’  E Q U I T Y
Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc.
Year ended March 31, 2002
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Millions of
Millions of U.S. dollars

yen (Note 1)

2002 2002

Cash flows from operating activities:
Loss before income taxes and minority interests......................................................................................... ¥(1,173,789) $ (8,808)
Depreciation of premises and equipment .................................................................................................... 60,916 457
Amortization of consolidation differences.................................................................................................... 501 3
Equity in losses from investments in affiliated companies.......................................................................... 2,713 20
Increase in reserve for possible loan losses................................................................................................. 319,140 2,395
Decrease in reserve for possible losses on investments.............................................................................. (20) (0)
Decrease in reserve for possible losses on loans sold ................................................................................ (44,684) (335)
Increase in reserve for employees’ bonuses ................................................................................................ 8,557 64
Decrease in reserve for employees’ retirement benefits ............................................................................. (15,320) (114)
Interest income .............................................................................................................................................. (814,876) (6,115)
Interest expenses ........................................................................................................................................... 162,631 1,220
Net losses on securities ................................................................................................................................. 459,974 3,451
Net losses on money held in trust ................................................................................................................ 645 4
Net foreign exchange gains........................................................................................................................... (3,088) (23)
Net losses on sales of premises and equipment .......................................................................................... 24,197 181
Net decrease in trading assets....................................................................................................................... 270,076 2,026
Net decrease in trading liabilities.................................................................................................................. (52,035) (390)
Net decrease in loans and bills discounted.................................................................................................. 3,895,632 29,235
Net decrease in deposits ............................................................................................................................... (273,610) (2,053)
Net decrease in negotiable certificates of deposit ....................................................................................... (4,612,272) (34,613)
Net decrease in borrowed money (excluding subordinated borrowed money) ....................................... (283,884) (2,130)
Net decrease in due from banks (excluding those deposited at BOJ) ....................................................... 994,077 7,460
Net decrease in call loans and other ............................................................................................................ 1,289,572 9,677
Net decrease in cash collateral on bonds borrowed ................................................................................... 4,774 35
Net increase in call money and other........................................................................................................... 923,127 6,927
Net decrease in commercial paper ............................................................................................................... (400,000) (3,001)
Net increase in cash collateral on bonds lent .............................................................................................. 485,806 3,645
Net increase in foreign exchange assets....................................................................................................... (25,699) (192)
Net decrease in foreign exchange liabilities................................................................................................. (8,381) (62)
Net decrease in bonds................................................................................................................................... (22,500) (168)
Net decrease in due to trust account............................................................................................................ (241,775) (1,814)
Interest receipts.............................................................................................................................................. 868,922 6,520
Interest payments........................................................................................................................................... (208,994) (1,568)
Directors’ bonuses ......................................................................................................................................... (5) (0)
Other............................................................................................................................................................... (49,142) (368)

Total .................................................................................................................................................... 1,541,188 11,566
Penalties paid................................................................................................................................................. (2,100) (15)
Income taxes paid ......................................................................................................................................... (13,536) (101)

Net cash provided by operating activities ........................................................................................ 1,525,552 11,448
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of securities ................................................................................................................................. (10,637,859) (79,833)
Proceeds from sales of securities .................................................................................................................. 7,965,902 59,781
Proceeds from maturity of securities ............................................................................................................ 3,113,103 23,362
Payments associated with increase in money held in trust......................................................................... (48,810) (366)
Proceeds from decrease in money held in trust .......................................................................................... 102,905 772
Purchases of premises and equipment......................................................................................................... (42,595) (319)
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment ........................................................................................ 32,056 240
Payments for purchases of equity investments in subsidiaries ................................................................... (0) (0)
Proceeds from sales of equity investments in subsidiaries ......................................................................... 3,013 22

Net cash provided by investing activities ......................................................................................... 487,715 3,660

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from subordinated borrowed money ........................................................................................... 23,500 176
Repayment of subordinated borrowed money ............................................................................................ (226,500) (1,699)
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated bonds .......................................................................................... 48,200 361
Repayment of subordinated bonds............................................................................................................... (66,475) (498)
Proceeds from issuance of stocks ................................................................................................................. 59,946 449
Proceeds from issuance of preferred securities ........................................................................................... 70,600 529
Dividends paid............................................................................................................................................... (4,743) (35)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders ..................................................................................................... (321) (2)
Payments related to acquisition of treasury stock ....................................................................................... (291) (2)
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock .......................................................................................................... 49 0

Net cash used in financing activities ................................................................................................. (96,034) (720)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ................................................................. 892 6
Increase in cash and cash equivalents ......................................................................................................... 1,918,125 14,394
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ......................................................................................... 875,538 6,570
Increase in cash and cash equivalents due to transfer of shares ................................................................ 2,516 18
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents due to exclusion of subsidiaries from consolidation.................. (0) (0)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 23)................................................................................... ¥ 2,796,180 $ 20,984

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

C O N S O L I D A T E D  S T A T E M E N T  O F  C A S H  F L O W S
Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc.
Year ended March 31, 2002
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N O T E  1 .  B A S I S  O F  P R E S E N T A T I O N  

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the accounts maintained by
Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Commer-
cial Code of Japan and in conformity with accounting principles and practices generally accepted and
applied in Japan, which may differ in certain material respects from accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Japan, and are compiled from the consoli-
dated financial statements prepared by the Company as required by the Securities and Exchange Law
of Japan.

In addition, the notes to the consolidated financial statements include information which is not required
under accounting principles generally accepted in Japan but is presented herein as additional information.

Amounts in U.S. dollars are included solely for the convenience of the reader. The rate of ¥133.25=
U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used in translation.
This translation is not intended to imply that yen amounts have been or could be readily converted,
realized or settled in U.S. dollars at that or any other rate. As a result, the totals in U.S. dollars do not
necessarily agree with the sum of the individual amounts.

Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down in the presentation of the accompany-
ing consolidated financial statements. As a result, the totals in yen do not necessarily agree with the
sum of the individual amounts.

N O T E  2 .  S U M M A R Y  O F  S I G N I F I C A N T  A C C O U N T I N G  P O L I C I E S  

(a) Principles of consolidation

Consolidated subsidiaries
1) Consolidated subsidiaries: 54

The principal consolidated subsidiaries were The Daiwa Bank, Ltd., The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd., 
The Nara Bank, Ltd., The Asahi Bank, Ltd. and The Daiwa Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.

2) Non-consolidated subsidiaries
The principal nonconsolidated subsidiary was Asahi S/C Ltda.

Non-consolidated subsidiaries were immaterial with respect to total assets, ordinary income, net
income/loss (based on the owned interest) and retained earnings (based on the owned interest).
They are excluded from consolidation as reasonable judgement on the Group’s financial conditions,
and operating results can be expected even if they are not consolidated.

Affiliated companies accounted for by the equity method
1) The equity method was not applied to any of the non-consolidated subsidiaries.
2) Affiliated companies accounted for by the equity method: 9

The principal affiliated companies accounted for by the equity method were Japan Trustee Services
Bank, Ltd., and The Asahi Retail Securities Co., Ltd.

3) The principal non-consolidated subsidiary not accounted for by the equity method was Asahi S/C Ltda.
4) The principal affiliated company not accounted for by the equity method was Siam City-Showa

Leasing Co., Ltd.
The affiliates not accounted for by the equity method were not material to the consolidated finan-

cial statements with respect to net income/loss (based on the owned interest) and retained earnings
(based on the owned interest).

Fiscal year-ends of consolidated subsidiaries 
1) The fiscal year-ends of the consolidated subsidiaries were as follows:

End of December: 8 subsidiaries
End of March: 46 subsidiaries

2) All subsidiaries have been consolidated based on their accounts at their respective fiscal year-ends. 
Appropriate adjustments have been made for significant transactions during the period from the

respective fiscal year-ends of the above subsidiaries to the date of the Parent’s fiscal year-end.

N O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S
Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc.
Year ended March 31, 2002
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Business combinations
The pooling of interest method was applied to the Daiwa Bank, Ltd., the Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd., and
the Asahi Bank, Ltd. when a holding company was established by exchange of shares and transfer of
shares. The purchase method was applied to the Nara Bank, Ltd.

(b) Trading assets and trading liabilities
Transactions whose purpose is to earn a profit by taking advantage of short-term fluctuations in the
market or discrepancies between interest rates, currency exchange rates, share prices or other indices
(hereinafter referred to as “transactions for trading purposes”) on different markets are included in
“Trading assets” or “Trading liabilities” in the consolidated balance sheets on a trade-date basis. “Trading
assets” and “Trading liabilities” in the case of securities and monetary claims, etc. are stated at market
value as of the consolidated balance sheet date and, in the case of derivatives, including swaps, futures
and options, etc. at the settlement amount assuming settlement on the consolidated balance sheet date.

(c) Trading income and trading expenses
Profits and losses on transactions for trading purposes are included in “Trading income” or “Trading
expenses” in the consolidated statement of operations on a trade-date basis.

Trading income and trading expenses include the interest received or paid during the year plus the
difference between profits or losses on the valuation of securities, monetary assets, etc. as at the end of
the preceding year and those as at the end of the current year, and the profits or losses as if the settle-
ment had been made as at the end of the preceding year and those as at the end of the current year
for derivatives.

(d) Securities
Bonds held to maturity are stated at amortized cost by the moving average method. Equity securities 
of nonconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates to which the equity method is not applied are stated at
cost by the moving average method. Equity securities included in other securities with market value are
stated at fair value based on the average market price for the month prior to the consolidated balance
sheet date. Other securities, other than equity securities, with market value are stated at their respective
market value and the cost of sales of such securities is determined by the moving average method.
Other securities without market value are stated at cost determined by the moving average method or
at their respective amortized cost, and the related net unrealized gain/loss is included as a component
of shareholders’ equity.

Securities held as assets in individually managed money trusts whose principal objective is portfolio
management are stated at market value.

(e) Derivatives
Derivative transactions (excluding “Transactions for Specific Trading Purposes”) are stated at market
value.

(f) Depreciation

Premises and equipment
Depreciation of premises and equipment is mainly calculated by the straight-line method for buildings
and by the declining-balance method for equipment. The useful lives adopted for major premises and
equipment are as follows:

• Buildings: 2~50 years
• Equipment: 2~20 years

Software
Software used by the Company and the consolidated subsidiaries is depreciated by the straight-line
method based on an estimated useful life (mainly 5 years) determined by the Company and the con-
solidated subsidiaries.

(g) Reserve for possible loan losses
The Company and the consolidated subsidiaries have made provisions for possible loan losses as follows:

For loans to insolvent customers who are undergoing bankruptcy or special liquidation (hereinafter,
“borrowers under bankruptcy proceedings”) or who are in a similar financial condition although not yet 
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in bankruptcy (hereinafter, “borrowers substantially in bankruptcy”), the reserve for possible loan losses
is provided at the full amount of the book value of such loans after the deduction of the amount of
direct write-offs (as defined below), and excluding amounts deemed collectible from the disposal of
the collateral pledged and from guarantees that are deemed recoverable.

For the unsecured and unguaranteed portion of loans to customers not presently in the above circum-
stances, but in a high probability of becoming so, the reserve for possible loan losses is provided at the
estimated unrecoverable amounts determined after a valuation of the collateral pledged, the guarantees
and the customer’s overall financial condition.

For other loans, the reserve for possible loan losses is provided at an amount based on the anticipated
loss rates calculated by reasonable methods. The reserve includes a special reserve for certain overseas
loans (including the reserve for possible overseas investment losses as stipulated in Article 55-2 of the
Special Taxation Measures Law) likely to become uncollectible due to political or economic circum-
stances in the relevant countries.

Regarding each loan, the Credit Review Office, which is controlled separately from the operating
divisions, reviews the operating divisions’ asset valuation of each loan for collectibility based on the
self-assessment standards. The provision for possible loan losses is based on the results of these
reviews.

Other consolidated subsidiaries perform self-assessments applying standards similar to the self-
assessment standards and provide a reserve for possible loan losses at the amounts deemed necessary.

For certain consolidated subsidiaries’ loans to borrowers under bankruptcy proceedings and borrow-
ers substantially in bankruptcy that are secured by collateral and guarantees, the unrecoverable portion 
of such loans is determined by subtracting the estimated recoverable balance from the disposal of the
collateral and the amounts deemed recoverable from the guarantors. The unrecoverable amount is 
written off directly against the value of the loan (“direct write-off”). Direct write-offs amounted to
¥1,064,417 million ($7,988 million) for the year ended March 31, 2002.

(h) Reserve for possible losses on investments
The reserve for possible losses on investments is provided for the possible losses from investments.

(i) Reserve for employees’ bonuses
The reserve for employees’ bonuses is provided at the estimated amount of employees’ bonus payments
applicable to the year.

(j) Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits
To provide for employees’ retirement benefits, the Company has recorded a reserve for severance 
payments and pension plans, based on the retirement benefit obligation and the pension plan assets 
at the balance sheet date. Past service cost is amortized by the straight-line method over a certain period
(1~10 years) within the average remaining years of service of the eligible employees. The actuarial differ-
ences are amortized effective the next fiscal year by the straight-line method over a certain period
(5~15 years) within the average remaining years of service of the eligible employees.

With regard to the transition differences at accounting change (¥229,203 million ($1,720 million)), 
the consolidated subsidiaries have charged to operations as follows:

• The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. 10 years
• The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. 15 years
• The Asahi Bank, Ltd. 5 years

(k) Reserve for possible losses on loans sold
The reserve for possible losses on loans sold is provided based on the estimated liability for further
losses on loans collateralized by real estate sold to the Cooperative Credit Purchasing Company, Limited.

(l) Other reserves
The Company has provided legal reserves as follows:

• Reserve for financial futures transactions: ¥0 million ($0 million)
This reserve is provided in accordance with Article 82 of the Financial Futures Transactions Law
and Article 29 of the Implementation Rules for this law.
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• Reserve for contingent liabilities from the brokering of securities transactions: ¥134 million ($1 million).
This reserve is provided to compensate for losses relating to securities futures and other transactions
by the domestic consolidated banking subsidiaries based on Article 51 of the Securities and Exchange
Law and the Article 65-2-7 thereof, and Article 32 of the Cabinet Ordinance with respect to securities
business of financial institutions and by domestic consolidated security dealers subsidiaries based
on Article 51 of the Securities and Exchange Law and Article 35 of the Cabinet Ordinance with
respect to securities companies.

(m) Foreign currency translation 
Foreign-currency-denominated assets and liabilities of the domestic consolidated banking subsidiaries
and overseas branches, with the exception of stock in affiliates for which amounts are translated into
yen equivalents at the exchange rates in effect at the acquisition dates, are translated into yen equiva-
lents, primarily at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date.

For funding-related swaps of the domestic consolidated banking subsidiaries, the Company reports 
the net yen equivalents of the notional principal amounts translated at the exchange rate prevailing 
at the balance sheet date in accordance with “Temporary Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Con-
cerning Accounting for Foreign Currency Transactions in the Banking Industry” (JICPA Industry Audit
Committee, Report No. 20). The difference between the spot and the forward rates, which reflects the
interest rate gap between the different currencies, is reported in the consolidated statement of operations
on an accrual basis over the period from the spot settlement date to the forward settlement date.

Funding-related swaps are foreign exchange swaps executed for the purpose of raising and investing
funds in different currencies. The domestic consolidated banking subsidiaries record the notional principal
amounts of the funds as spot exchange purchased or spot exchange sold, with the notional principal
amounts plus the interest income or interest expense as of the maturity dates being recorded as forward
foreign exchange purchased or forward foreign exchange sold.

For cross currency swaps of the domestic consolidated banking subsidiaries which meet the criteria
indicated in Report No. 20 of the JICPA Industry Audit Committee, the domestic consolidated banking
subsidiaries report the net yen equivalents translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance
sheet date of the notional principal amounts, with the related interest income and interest expense
being accrued and reported in the consolidated statement of operations. The cross currency swaps
mentioned above are entered into by the domestic consolidated banking subsidiaries for the purpose 
of raising and investing funds in different currencies. The notional principal amounts paid or received
at the valuation date correspond to the notional principal amounts to be received or paid at the maturity
of the swap agreements, and the swap rates used for calculating the principal and interest amounts of
the swaps are considered reasonable (including cross currency swaps whose principal in one currency
is updated at each reset date to reflect the spot exchange rate as of that date and, thus, the notional
principal at the spot exchange and the forward exchange rates is identical for each reset period).

Foreign-currency-denominated assets and liabilities of the other consolidated subsidiaries are translated
into yen equivalents at the respective balance sheet dates.

(n) Leases
Noncancelable lease transactions of the domestic consolidated subsidiaries are accounted for as operat-
ing leases regardless of whether such leases are classified as operating leases or finance leases except
that lease agreements which stipulate the transfer of ownership of the leased property to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

(o) Hedge accounting
Certain consolidated banking subsidiaries use the technique of “macro-hedging,” which utilizes derivatives
to comprehensively control the attendant interest risk on its numerous financial assets and liabilities, such
as loans and deposits. Macro-hedging is a risk-management tool based on the risk-adjustment approach
established in “Temporary Treatment for Accounting and Auditing for Application of Accounting Standards
for Financial Instruments in the Banking Industry” (JICPA’s Industry Audit Committee, Report No. 15).
Certain consolidated banking subsidiaries have adopted deferred hedging to account for unrealized gains
or losses arising from the derivatives mentioned above.
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Certain consolidated banking subsidiaries control the risk on derivatives, which form a risk-adjustment
mechanism within the range of permissible risk established in its risk-management policy, and periodi-
cally evaluate the effectiveness of its hedging approach by verifying that the interest risk on the under-
lying hedged item has been nullified. 

Certain consolidated banking subsidiaries have adopted deferred hedging, market value hedging, and
special treatment of interest rate swaps for certain of its assets and liabilities.

Certain consolidated subsidiaries have also adopted deferred hedging and special treatment of interest
rate swaps.

In addition, in order to hedge the risk of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on foreign-currency-
denominated securities excluding bonds, certain consolidated banking subsidiaries designate, at the
inception of each hedge, the names of the foreign-currency-denominated investment securities that will
be hedged based on “Temporary Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerning Accounting for Foreign
Currency Transactions in the Banking Industry” ( JICPA Industry Audit Committee, Report No. 20), and
applied deferred hedge and fair-value hedge accounting to such foreign-currency-denominated investment
securities, to the extent that certain consolidated banking subsidiaries have spot and forward foreign
exchange liabilities exceeding the acquisition costs of the related securities.

(p) Accounting for consumption tax
The Company and domestic consolidated subsidiaries account for consumption tax and local consump-
tion tax by the tax-exclusion method.

(q) Valuation of assets and liabilities of consolidated subsidiaries
Assets and liabilities of the consolidated subsidiaries are valued by the full mark-to-market method.

(r) Amortization of consolidation differences
Consolidation differences are being amortized equally over a period of five years and any immaterial
consolidation differences are charged to operations as incurred.

(s) Retained earnings
The consolidated statement of retained earnings reflects the appropriation of retained earnings approved
at a shareholders’ meeting held during the fiscal year.

(t) Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash represents cash and due from the Bank of Japan in
“Cash and due from banks” in the consolidated balance sheet.

(u) Income taxes
The Company and the consolidated subsidiaries are subject to corporation tax, inhabitants’ taxes and
enterprise tax, which are based on income. Income taxes are provided on the basis of the current tax
liabilities, and reflect the tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and income tax purposes.

With the implementation of the “Metropolitan ordinance regarding the imposition of enterprise 
taxes through external standards taxation on banks in Tokyo” (Tokyo Metropolitan Ordinance No. 145,
April 1, 2000) (“the metropolitan ordinance”), the Tokyo tax base for enterprise taxes of the Daiwa Bank,
Ltd. and the Asahi Bank, Ltd. (“the Banks”), both are subsidiaries of the Company, was changed from
income to gyomu ararieki.

On October 18, 2000, the Banks filed a lawsuit with the Tokyo District Court against the Tokyo
metropolitan government and the Governor of Tokyo seeking to void the metropolitan ordinance. 
The Banks won the case eventually entirely on March 26, 2002 with a decision of the Tokyo District
Court in the Banks’ favor, on the grounds that the metropolitan ordinance was illegal. The District Court
ordered the metropolitan government to return to the Banks advance tax payments of ¥5,191 million
($38 million) and also awarded to the Banks damages of ¥200 million ($1 million). On March 29, 2002,
the metropolitan government lodged an appeal with the Tokyo High Court against the decision.

It is the opinion of the Banks that the metropolitan ordinance is both unconstitutional and illegal.
The Banks have asserted this opinion in the courts and the matter is still in litigation. The fact that during
this term the Banks have applied the same treatment as in the previous term, accounting for enterprise
taxes through external standards taxation on banks in Tokyo in accordance with the metropolitan 
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ordinance, is because the Banks have deemed it appropriate at this stage to continue with the same
accounting treatment as before. This accounting treatment does not constitute in any way an admission
on the part of the Banks either of the constitutionality or of the legality of the metropolitan ordinance.

With the implementation of the municipal ordinance, enterprise taxes relating to banks in Tokyo
were recorded in other expenses in the amounts of ¥6,281 million ($47 million) in this term. As a result,
there was an increase in the ordinary loss of the same amount as compared with the previous standards
under which enterprise taxes were levied on income. Moreover, there was no effect to current income
tax expenses in this term as compared with the previous standards under which enterprise taxes were
levied on income.  Since the enterprise taxes in question are not included in the calculations for account-
ing for tax effects, there was a decrease in deferred tax assets of ¥28,784 million ($216 million) as com-
pared with the amount that it would have been had the enterprise taxes been levied on income instead
of gross profits. There was also a decrease in deferred tax liabilities on land revaluation of ¥3,506 million
($26 million), and an increase in land revaluation differences of the same amount.

With the implementation of the “Municipal Ordinance regarding the imposition of enterprise taxes
through external standards taxation on banks in Osaka” (Osaka Municipal Ordinance No. 131, June 9,
2000) (“the municipal ordinance”), the Osaka tax base for enterprise taxes of the Banks, which were
hitherto levied on income, are now levied on gyomu ararieki.

On April 4, 2002, the Banks filed a lawsuit with the Osaka District Court against the Osaka municipal
government and the Governor of Osaka seeking to void the municipal ordinance. 

It is the opinion of the Banks that the municipal ordinance is both unconstitutional and illegal. 
The Banks have asserted this opinion in the Osaka District Court and the matter is still in litigation. 
The fact that during this term the Banks have applied the treatment accounting for enterprise taxes
through external standards taxation on banks in Osaka in accordance with the municipal ordinance 
is because the Banks have deemed it appropriate at this stage to apply the same accounting treatment
to Osaka as to Tokyo. This accounting treatment does not constitute in any way an admission on the
part of the Banks either of the constitutionality or of the legality of the municipal ordinance.

With the implementation of the municipal ordinance, enterprise taxes relating to banks in Osaka
were recorded in the other expenses in the amounts of ¥4,935 million ($37 million). As a result, there
was an increase in the ordinary loss of the same amount as compared with the previous standards
under which enterprise taxes were levied on income. Moreover, there was no effect to current income
tax expenses as compared with the previous standards under which enterprise taxes were levied on
income. Since the enterprise taxes in question are not included in the calculations for accounting for
tax effects, there was a decrease in deferred tax assets of ¥25,761 million ($193 million) as compared
with the amount that it would have been had the enterprise taxes been levied on income instead of
gross profits. There was also a decrease in deferred tax liabilities on land revaluation of ¥693 million
($5 million), and an increase in land revaluation differences of the same amount.

With the implementation of the “Revision of Municipal Ordinance regarding the imposition of the
enterprise taxes through external standards taxation on banks in Osaka” (Osaka Municipal Ordinance
No. 77 ) (“the revised municipal ordinance”) on May 30, 2002, the special treatment regarding the tax
basis is to be applicable from the fiscal year starting on April 1, 2002.

The enterprise taxes which the banks should pay to the Osaka municipal government this term are
subject to the supplementary provision 2 of the revised municipal ordinance, which provides the banks
shall pay the enterprise taxes based on the lesser of gyomu ararieki or income. The Banks, therefore,
will file and pay the enterprise taxes based on income.

The fact that the Banks will file and pay the enterprise taxes according to the revised municipal ordi-
nance does not constitute in any way an admission on the part of the Banks either of the constitutionality
or of the legality of the revised municipal ordinance as well as the municipal ordinance.

(v) Differences between accounting principles and practices adopted in the accompany-
ing consolidated financial statements and International Accounting Standards

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles and practices generally accepted and applied in Japan. Such principles and practices differ
from International Accounting Standards in several respects, such as the methods for the valuation of
securities, accounting for leases and accounting for the impairment of assets.
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N O T E  3 .  C A L L  L O A N S  A N D  B I L L S  B O U G H T / C A L L  M O N E Y  A N D  B I L L S  S O L D

Call loans and bills bought as of March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Call loans.................................................................................................................................... ¥102,634 $770
Bills bought................................................................................................................................ — —

Total ........................................................................................................................................... ¥102,634 $770

Call money and bills sold as of March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Call money .............................................................................................................................. ¥1,228,982 $ 9,223
Bills sold.................................................................................................................................. 1,318,800 9,897

Total......................................................................................................................................... ¥2,547,782 $19,120

N O T E  4 .  T R A D I N G  A S S E T S  A N D  T R A D I N G  L I A B I L I T I E S

Trading assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Trading assets: 
Trading securities................................................................................................................... ¥ 23,653 $ 177
Derivatives of trading securities............................................................................................ 11 0
Trading-related financial derivatives..................................................................................... 219,753 1,649
Other trading assets ............................................................................................................... 407,904 3,061

Total.................................................................................................................................... ¥651,322 $4,887

Trading liabilities: 
Trading securities sold for short sales .................................................................................. ¥ 6,197 $ 46
Derivatives of trading securities............................................................................................ 18 0
Trading-related financial derivatives..................................................................................... 213,213 1,600
Other trading liabilities.......................................................................................................... 224 1

Total.................................................................................................................................... ¥219,655 $1,648

N O T E  5 .  S E C U R I T I E S

Securities as of March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

National government bonds................................................................................................... ¥3,556,866 $26,693
Local government bonds........................................................................................................ 137,648 1,033
Corporate bonds ..................................................................................................................... 932,238 6,996
Corporate stocks ..................................................................................................................... 1,964,652 14,744
Other securities ....................................................................................................................... 272,916 2,048

Total................................................................................................................................. ¥6,864,323 $51,514

Securities included ¥27,865 million ($209 million) of unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates and
¥233 million ($1 million) of investment money.

Loaned securities totaling ¥120,848 million ($906 million) under loan agreements have been included
in the securities account.

Loaned securities totaling ¥34,065 million ($255 million) under lease agreements have been included
in the securities account.
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Securities loaned to certain consolidated subsidiaries under unsecured loan agreements and securities
loaned to certain consolidated subsidiaries under bills added/purchased with repurchase/resell agreements
or bond loan transactions collateralized with cash included ¥187,137 million ($1,404 million) of securities
collateralized and ¥1,530 million ($11 million) of securities held by certain consolidated subsidiaries. All
were collateralized and their disposition is at the discretion of certain consolidated subsidiaries.

N O T E  6 .  L O A N S  A N D  B I L L S  D I S C O U N T E D

Loans and bills discounted as of March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Bills discounted ................................................................................................................... ¥ 690,845 $ 5,184
Loans on notes .................................................................................................................... 3,867,967 29,027
Loans on deeds ................................................................................................................... 21,641,395 162,411
Overdrafts ............................................................................................................................ 3,820,995 28,675

Total ............................................................................................................................. ¥30,021,204 $225,299

Among loans and bills discounted, the following loans were included.

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy ............................................................................... ¥ 184,365 $ 1,383
Past due loans......................................................................................................................... 1,879,447 14,104
Loans past due three months or more .................................................................................. 119,535 897
Restructured loans .................................................................................................................. 1,243,735 9,333

Total................................................................................................................................. ¥3,427,083 $25,719

The above amounts are stated before the deduction of the reserve for possible loan losses.
Included in the above amount is ¥8,184 million ($61 million) which was entrusted to the Resolution

and Collection Corporation by the Administration Trust Method which leads to a final settlement.
Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy are those for which there is a strong probability that the 

principal will not be recoverable. Specific conditions for inclusion in this category are (1) among those
loans for which nonaccrual of interest has been approved under tax law criteria, those for which the
borrowers have made application for procedures under the Corporate Reconstruction Act, Bankruptcy
Law, Composition Law, liquidation under the Commercial Code, or liquidation under other legal pro-
visions or (2) loans to borrowers for which transactions have been suspended by the Promissory 
Note Exchange. 

Past due loans are those for which there is a high probability that write-offs will be necessary in the
future. Specifically, loans in this category are those for which nonaccrual of interest has been approved
under tax law criteria, but after the exclusion of loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy and loans for
which interest payments have been suspended. Not all of the loans in this category will become unre-
coverable. In certain cases, these loans have been secured by collateral or other measures and reserves
for possible loan losses set aside after consideration of future recoverability.

Loans past due three months or more are defined as those for which principal or interest has been 
in arrears for three months or more from the contract payment date but which are not classified and
disclosed in notes to the balance sheets as loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy or loans past due 
six months or more.

Restructured loans are those for which terms and conditions have been provided that are more
favorable to the borrower than those in the original loan agreement, with the objective of restructuring
and assisting borrowers in economic difficulty and facilitating recovery of such loans. Concessions on
loan terms and conditions include reducing interest rates, rescheduling interest and principal payments,
waiving claims on the borrower, providing cash, and accepting nonmonetary repayments. Restructured
loans must be disclosed in the notes to the balance sheets and include loans for which interest rates
have been reduced or exempted and loans to borrowers that are receiving assistance in restructuring.
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N O T E  7 .  F O R E I G N  E X C H A N G E

Foreign exchange assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Assets:
Due from foreign banks ........................................................................................................ ¥ 86,811 $ 651
Loans to foreign banks.......................................................................................................... 3 0
Foreign bills of exchange bought ......................................................................................... 40,262 302
Foreign bills of exchange receivable.................................................................................... 53,862 404

Total.................................................................................................................................... ¥180,939 $1,357

Liabilities:
Due to foreign banks............................................................................................................. ¥ 2,846 $ 21
Loans from foreign banks ..................................................................................................... 443 3
Foreign bills of exchange sold.............................................................................................. 5,086 38
Foreign bills of exchange payable........................................................................................ 581 4

Total.................................................................................................................................... ¥ 8,957 $ 67

N O T E  8 .  O T H E R  A S S E T S

Other assets as of March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Unsettled exchange receivables............................................................................................. ¥ 317 $ 2 
Prepaid expenses.................................................................................................................... 4,425 33
Accrued income...................................................................................................................... 111,938 840
Deposits for futures transactions ........................................................................................... 799 5
Variation margin for futures transactions .............................................................................. 1,024 7
Securities held in custody and other ..................................................................................... 4,417 33
Financial derivatives ............................................................................................................... 111,038 833
Deferred hedge loss ............................................................................................................... 4,672 35
Cash collateral on bonds borrowed ...................................................................................... 9,126 68
Other ....................................................................................................................................... 984,804 7,390

Total................................................................................................................................ ¥1,232,565 $9,250

N O T E  9 .  P R E M I S E S  A N D  E Q U I P M E N T  

Premises and equipment as of March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Land, buildings and equipment ............................................................................................. ¥1,358,343 $10,193
Less accumulated depreciation .............................................................................................. (663,996) (4,983)
Construction in progress ........................................................................................................ 437 3 

Subtotal............................................................................................................................ 694,784 5,214
Other ....................................................................................................................................... 145,413 1,091 

Total................................................................................................................................. ¥ 840,198 $ 6,305 
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N O T E  1 0 .  A S S E T S  P L E D G E D  A S  C O L L A T E R A L

Assets pledged as collateral and debts collateralized as of March 31, 2002 were as follows:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Assets pledged as collateral:
Cash and due from banks .................................................................................................. ¥ 50,060 $ 375
Trading assets...................................................................................................................... 284,940 2,138
Securities ............................................................................................................................. 3,414,823 25,627
Loans and bills discounted................................................................................................. 1,152,238 8,647
Other assets......................................................................................................................... 19,466 146 

Debts collateralized:
Deposits............................................................................................................................... 81,438 611 
Call money and bills sold................................................................................................... 2,293,318 17,210 
Bills sold under repurchase agreements ........................................................................... 281,083 2,109 
Borrowed money ................................................................................................................ 122,229 917 
Other liabilities.................................................................................................................... 710,444 5,331 

Other than the above, cash and due from banks, trading assets, securities, loans and bills discounted,
and other assets which were valued at ¥1,198 million ($8 million), ¥280 million ($2 million), ¥1,338,142 mil-
lion ($10,042 million), ¥19,633 million ($147 million) and ¥27,092 million ($203 million), respectively, were
pledged as collateral or as substitutes for cash deposits for exchange clearing transactions, derivatives
transactions and other.

Cash and due from banks of ¥15,000 million ($112 million) were pledged as collateral for loans 
of unconsolidated subsidiaries and other.

Premises and equipment stated include guarantee deposits of ¥145,407 million ($1,091 million). 
Other assets stated include deposits for futures transactions in the amount of ¥799 million ($5 million),

and cash collateral on bonds borrowed in the amount of ¥9,126 million ($68 million).

N O T E  1 1 .  C O M M I T M E N T  L I N E  A G R E E M E N T S  

Commitment line agreements related to negative checking accounts and loans represent agreements 
to loan customers up to the amount of the customers’ request as long as no violation of the condition
of the agreement occurs.

The amount of unexercised loans related to such agreements at March 31, 2002 amounted to
¥9,636,871 million ($72,321 million). Of the above, the amounts for which the original agreement period
was within a year or agreements which certain consolidated banking subsidiaries could cancel at any
time without penalty totaled ¥9,481,596 million ($71,156 million).

The unexercised loans do not necessarily affect the future cash flows of certain consolidated banking
subsidiaries because most of these agreements have been terminated without being exercised. In addition,
most agreements contain provisions which stipulated that certain consolidated banking subsidiaries
may deny making loans or decrease the line of credit if there are changes in the financial condition 
or the security of the loans or for other reasons.

When extending loans to customers, certain consolidated banking subsidiaries request collateral such
as premises or securities if necessary. After entering into loans, certain consolidated banking subsidiaries
periodically check the financial condition of the customers based on its internal rules and, if necessary,
take certain measures to ensure the security of the loans.

N O T E  1 2 .  D E F E R R E D  H E D G E  A C C O U N T I N G

Unrealized gains or losses on hedging are included in other assets as a deferred hedge loss at the net
amount. Prior to this offsetting, gross deferred hedge losses and gains amounted to ¥108,279 million
($812 million) and ¥103,606 million ($777 million), respectively.
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N O T E  1 3 .  D E P O S I T S

Deposits as of March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Current deposits .................................................................................................................. ¥ 2,484,121 $ 18,642
Ordinary deposits ................................................................................................................ 15,388,740 115,487
Savings deposits .................................................................................................................. 763,364 5,728
Deposits at notice................................................................................................................ 426,046 3,197
Time deposits ...................................................................................................................... 13,790,522 103,493
Other deposits ..................................................................................................................... 969,374 7,274

Total ............................................................................................................................. ¥33,822,170 $253,824

N O T E  1 4 .  B O R R O W E D  M O N E Y  A N D  B O N D S

As of March 31, 2002, borrowed money and bonds included in subordinated liabilities were as follows:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Subordinated borrowed money............................................................................................. ¥ 710,500 $5,332
Subordinated bonds ............................................................................................................... 519,564 3,899

Total................................................................................................................................. ¥1,230,064 $9,231

N O T E  1 5 .  O T H E R  L I A B I L I T I E S

Other liabilities as of March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Unsettled exchange payables................................................................................................. ¥ 1,691 $ 12
Accrued income taxes ............................................................................................................ 19,107 143
Accrued expenses................................................................................................................... 92,471 693
Income in advance ................................................................................................................. 42,486 318
Deposits for futures transactions ........................................................................................... 1,425 10
Borrowed securities ................................................................................................................ 3,195 23
Financial derivatives ............................................................................................................... 117,024 878
Cash collateral on bonds lent ................................................................................................ 709,821 5,326
Other ....................................................................................................................................... 801,821 6,017

Total................................................................................................................................. ¥1,789,046 $13,426

N O T E  1 6 .  C U S T O M E R S ’  L I A B I L I T I E S  F O R  A C C E P T A N C E S  A N D  G U A R A N T E E S

All contingent liabilities arising from acceptances and guarantees are reflected in “Acceptances 
and guarantees.” As a contra account, “Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees” is 
presented on the assets side of the balance sheets representing the Company’s right of indemnity 
from the applicants.
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N O T E  1 7 .  L A N D  R E V A L U A T I O N  D I F F E R E N C E S

Certain consolidated domestic subsidiaries revalued their land used for business purposes based on 
the Law Concerning Land Revaluation (Law 34, announced on March 31, 1998). Deferred tax liabilities
on land revaluation has been recorded in liabilities, and the remainder has been recorded in share-
holders’ equity.

Revaluation date: March 31, 1998
The revaluation method as stated in Article 3-3 of the Law Concerning Land Revaluation is as follows:
The value of land is based on the official notice prices stated in the Law of Public Notice of Land Prices

(assessed date, January 1, 1998) as stipulated in Article 2-1 of the Ordinance for the Law Concerning Land
Revaluation (Government Ordinance  No. 119, announced on March 31, 1998) after making reasonable
adjustments for the location and quality of the sites.

The difference between the total market value of the land used for business purposes and revalued
based on Article 10 of the Law Concerning Land Revaluation as of the consolidated balance sheet 
date and the total book value of the land after the revaluation as of March 31, 2002: ¥80,051 million
($600 million)

N O T E  1 8 .  S H A R E H O L D E R S ’  E Q U I T Y

Common stock as of March 31, 2002 was as follows:

Number of shares:
Authorized ................................................................................................................................................ 13,000,000,000
Issued and outstanding............................................................................................................................. 5,634,904,065

Preferred stock as of March 31, 2002 was as follows:

Preferred stock:
Number of shares (Class A No. 1 preferred stock):

Authorized ............................................................................................................................................. 10,970,000
Issued and outstanding......................................................................................................................... 10,970,000

Number of shares (Class B No. 1 preferred stock):
Authorized ............................................................................................................................................. 680,000,000
Issued and outstanding......................................................................................................................... 680,000,000

Number of shares (Class C  No. 1 preferred stock):
Authorized ............................................................................................................................................. 120,000,000
Issued and outstanding......................................................................................................................... 120,000,000

Number of shares (Class D No. 1 preferred stock):
Authorized ............................................................................................................................................. 386,000
Issued and outstanding......................................................................................................................... 386,000

Number of shares (Class E No. 1 preferred stock):
Authorized ............................................................................................................................................. 240,000,000
Issued and outstanding......................................................................................................................... 240,000,000

Number of shares (Class F No. 1 preferred stock):
Authorized ............................................................................................................................................. 80,000,000
Issued and outstanding......................................................................................................................... 80,000,000

Total number of shares of preferred stock:
Authorized ............................................................................................................................................. 1,131,356,000
Issued and outstanding......................................................................................................................... 1,131,356,000

Notes: 1. The Company’s Articles of Incorporation state that preferred dividends to preferred shareholders will never be
paid in excess of the following amounts:

Class A No. 1 Preferred Stock ¥24.75 ($0.18) per share
Class B No. 1 Preferred Stock ¥6.36 ($0.04) per share
Class C No. 1 Preferred Stock ¥6.33 ($0.04) per share
Class D No. 1 Preferred Stock ¥10.00 ($0.07) per share
Class E No. 1 Preferred Stock ¥14.38 ($0.10) per share
Class F No. 1 Preferred Stock ¥18.50 ($0.13) per share

2. The Company reversed capital surplus in the year ended March 31, 2002 in accordance with a provision stipulated
in the Article 289-2 of the Commercial Code of Japan. As a result, capital surplus decreased by ¥40,000 million
($300 million) and retained earnings increased by the same amount.
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N O T E  1 9 .  I N T E R E S T  I N C O M E  A N D  E X P E N S E S

Interest income and expenses for the year ended March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Interest income:
Interest on loans and bills discounted.................................................................................. ¥690,226 $5,179
Interest and dividends on securities ..................................................................................... 81,262 609
Interest on call loans and bills bought ................................................................................. 1,893 14
Interest on bills bought under resale agreements ............................................................... 0 0
Interest on due from banks................................................................................................... 22,745 170
Other interest income............................................................................................................ 18,749 140

Total.................................................................................................................................... ¥814,876 $6,115

Interest expenses:
Interest on deposits ............................................................................................................... ¥ 87,772 $ 658 
Interest on negotiable certificates of deposit ....................................................................... 5,993 44 
Interest on call money and bills sold ................................................................................... 2,930 21 
Interest on bills sold under repurchase agreements............................................................ 109 0 
Interest on commercial paper ............................................................................................... 223 1 
Interest on borrowed money ................................................................................................ 24,393 183 
Interest on bonds................................................................................................................... 14,261 107 
Other interest expenses......................................................................................................... 26,947 202 

Total.................................................................................................................................... ¥162,631 $1,220

N O T E  2 0 .  T R A D I N G  I N C O M E

Trading income for the year ended March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Trading income:
Income from trading securities................................................................................................ ¥ 2,899 $21
Income from trading-related financial derivatives.................................................................. 6,440 48
Other trading income............................................................................................................... 1,030 7

Total ...................................................................................................................................... ¥10,369 $77

N O T E  2 1 .  O T H E R  O P E R A T I N G  I N C O M E  A N D  E X P E N S E S

Other operating income and expenses for the year ended March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Other operating income:
Gains on foreign exchange transactions .............................................................................. ¥ 15,800 $118 
Gains on sales of national government bonds and other ................................................... 34,518 259 
Income from financial derivatives ........................................................................................ 493 3
Other ...................................................................................................................................... 57,318 430 

Total.................................................................................................................................... ¥108,130 $811

Other operating expenses:
Losses on sales of national government bonds and other .................................................. ¥ 17,431 $130 
Losses on redemption of national government bonds and other....................................... 192 1 
Losses on devaluation of national government bonds and other....................................... 940 7 
Other ...................................................................................................................................... 15,693 117 

Total.................................................................................................................................... ¥ 34,257 $257
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N O T E  2 2 .  O T H E R  I N C O M E  A N D  E X P E N S E S

Other income and expenses for the year ended March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Other income:
Gains on sales of stocks and other securities ................................................................... ¥ 88,241 $ 662
Gains on establishment of employees’ retirement benefit trust....................................... 37,242 279
Gains on dispositions of premises and equipment .......................................................... 1,459 10
Recoveries of written-off claims......................................................................................... 9,565 71
Gains on termination of Welfare Pension Fund of a subsidiary 

“Cosmo Securities Co., Ltd.” ........................................................................................... 1,039 7
Other.................................................................................................................................... 69,538 521 

Total................................................................................................................................. ¥ 207,086 $ 1,554

Other expenses:
Write-off of loans ................................................................................................................ ¥ 349,288 $ 2,621 
Net addition to reserve for possible loan losses ............................................................... 473,792 3,555 
Net addition to reserve for possible losses on loans sold................................................ 9,231 69
Losses on sales of stocks and other securities .................................................................. 219,251 1,645 
Losses on devaluation of stocks and other securities....................................................... 335,903 2,520 
Losses on forgiveness of loans to assist borrowers .......................................................... 66,580 499 
Losses related to past due loans sold ................................................................................ 49,744 373 
Losses on dispositions of premises and equipment ......................................................... 25,656 192 
Other.................................................................................................................................... 182,462 1,369 

Total................................................................................................................................. ¥1,711,910 $12,847

N O T E  2 3 .  C A S H  F L O W S

The relationship between cash and cash equivalents and cash and due from banks in the consolidated
balance sheets as of March 31, 2002 was as follows:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Cash and due from banks ...................................................................................................... ¥3,166,039 $23,760 
Due from banks except for the Bank of Japan..................................................................... (369,858) (2,775)

Cash and cash equivalents ..................................................................................................... ¥2,796,180 $20,984 
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N O T E  2 4 .  D E F E R R E D  T A X E S

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of March 31, 2002 consisted of the following:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Deferred tax assets:
Reserve for possible loan losses and excessive write-offs of loans................................. ¥ 602,655 $4,522
Tax loss carryforward ......................................................................................................... 292,144 2,192
Devaluation of securities .................................................................................................... 161,685 1,213
Unrealized differences of other securities ......................................................................... 31,753 238
Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits ...................................................................... 15,764 118
Reserve for possible losses on loans sold ......................................................................... 8,102 60
Other.................................................................................................................................... 60,567 454

Gross deferred tax assets ....................................................................................................... 1,172,674 8,800
Less: Valuation allowance ...................................................................................................... (314,139) (2,357)

Total deferred tax assets......................................................................................................... 858,535 6,443

Deferred tax liabilities:
Gains on establishment of employees’ retirement benefit trust....................................... (20,375) (152)
Unearned dividends............................................................................................................ (3,508) (26)
Unrealized differences of other securities ......................................................................... (2,057) (15)
Other.................................................................................................................................... (361) (2)

Total deferred tax liabilities ................................................................................................... (26,303) (197)

Net deferred tax assets ........................................................................................................... ¥ 832,231 $6,245

N O T E  2 5 .  L E A S E S

(Lessee Side)

(1) Finance Leases
Finance leases as of March 31, 2002, except for lease agreements which stipulate the transfer of owner-
ship of the leased property to the lessee, were as follows:

Amounts corresponding to the year-end acquisition costs and accumulated depreciation of the leased
items:

Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars

Equipment Other Total Equipment Other Total

Acquisition costs ...................................................................... ¥29,592 ¥500 ¥30,093 $222 $3 $225
Accumulated depreciation....................................................... 18,473 188 18,661 138 1 140

Net book value......................................................................... ¥11,119 ¥311 ¥11,431 $ 83 $2 $ 85

Future minimum lease payments, exclusive of interest expenses:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Due within one year .................................................................................................................... ¥ 5,645 $42
Due after one year ....................................................................................................................... 5,916 44

Total....................................................................................................................................... ¥11,561 $86

Lease fees and the amounts corresponding to depreciation and interest expenses:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Lease fees...................................................................................................................................... ¥7,922 $59
Depreciation ................................................................................................................................. 7,421 55
Interest expenses.......................................................................................................................... 283 2

Computation of amounts corresponding to depreciation: 
The duration of the lease term is taken as equivalent to the useful lives of the equipment, and the straight-
line method is applied to fully depreciate the assets.
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Computation of amounts corresponding to interest expenses:
The difference between the total amount of the lease payments and the purchase value of the assets is
taken as the amount corresponding to interest expenses and the interest method is used to allocate this
amount to the appropriate consolidated accounting years.

(2) Operating Leases
As of March 31, 2002, future minimum lease payments inclusive of interest expenses under noncancelable
operating leases were as follows:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Due within one year .................................................................................................................... ¥377 $2
Due after one year ....................................................................................................................... 209 1

Total....................................................................................................................................... ¥586 $4

(Lessor Side)

(1) Finance Leases
Finance leases as of March 31, 2002, except for lease agreements which stipulate the transfer of owner-
ship of the leased property to the lessee, were as follows:

Amounts of acquisition costs and accumulated depreciation of the leased items:

Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars

Equipment Other Total Equipment Other Total

Acquisition costs ............................................................ ¥296,240 ¥43,359 ¥339,599 $2,223 $325 $2,548
Accumulated depreciation............................................. 148,274 21,750 170,024 1,112 163 1,275

Net book value .............................................................. ¥147,965 ¥21,609 ¥169,575 $1,110 $162 $1,272

Future minimum lease receipts, exclusive of interest income:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Due within one year .................................................................................................................. ¥ 58,398 $ 438
Due after one year ..................................................................................................................... 113,835 854

Total..................................................................................................................................... ¥172,234 $1,292

Lease fees received, depreciation cost and the amount corresponding to interest income:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Lease fees received....................................................................................................................... ¥23,658 $177
Depreciation ................................................................................................................................. 20,853 156
Interest income............................................................................................................................. 2,431 18

As Asahigin Leasing Co., Ltd. became a consolidated subsidiary effective the end of this consolidated
fiscal year, lease fees received, depreciation and interest income equivalents have not been included
above.

Computation of amounts corresponding to interest income:
The difference between the total amount of the lease payments and the purchase value of the assets 
is taken as the amount corresponding to interest expenses, and the interest method is used to allocate
this amount to the appropriate consolidated accounting years.

(2) Operating Leases
As of March 31, 2002, future minimum lease receipts inclusive of interest expenses under noncancelable
operating leases were as follows:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Due within one year .................................................................................................................... ¥ 955 $ 7
Due after one year ....................................................................................................................... 1,809 13

Total....................................................................................................................................... ¥2,765 $20

Of the future minimum lease receipts contained in (1) and (2) above, ¥111,103 million ($833 million)
had been pledged.
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N O T E  2 6 .  M A R K E T  V A L U E  O F  S E C U R I T I E S  A N D  M O N E Y  H E L D  I N  T R U S T

1. Securities

“Securities” in the consolidated balance sheet, trading securities, negotiable certificates of deposit, 
commercial paper in “trading assets,” negotiable certificates of deposit in “cash and due from banks,” 
and commercial paper in “Monetary claims bought” as of March 31, 2002 were as follows:

(1) Securities held for trading purposes

Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars

Unrealized gain Unrealized gain 
(net) included in (net) included in 

Book value profits and losses Book value profits and losses

Securities held for trading purposes ............................... ¥431,558 ¥375 $3,238 $2

(2) Marketable bonds held to maturity

Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars

Book Market Unrealized Book Market Unrealized
value value gain/(loss) value value gain/(loss)

(X) (Y) (Y – X) Gain (Loss) (X) (Y) (Y – X) Gain (Loss)

National government bonds........... ¥ 9 ¥ 9 ¥ 0 ¥ 0 ¥(—) $ 0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $(—)
Local government bonds................ 381 392 10 10 (—) 2 2 0 0 (—)
Corporate bonds ............................. 500 466 (34) — (34) 3 3 (0) — (0)
Other ............................................... 3,930 3,934 4 61 (57) 29 29 0 0 (0)

Total......................................... ¥4,821 ¥4,802 ¥(18) ¥72 ¥(91) $36 $36 $(0) $ 0 $ (0)

Note: Market values are based on the market prices on March 31, 2002.

(3) As of March 31, 2002, there were no investment securities with market value at subsidiaries 
and affiliates.

(4) Other securities for which market values can be calculated

Millions of yen

Unrealized
Book value Market value gain/(loss)

(X) (Y) (Y – X) Gain (Loss)

Stocks................................................................... ¥1,928,133 ¥1,838,809 ¥(89,324) ¥103,640 ¥(192,964)
Bonds................................................................... 4,394,349 4,418,192 23,843 27,260 (3,417)

National government bonds ........................... 3,538,560 3,556,856 18,296 18,395 (99)
Local government bonds ................................ 130,684 134,157 3,473 3,640 (167)
Corporate bonds ............................................. 725,104 727,178 2,073 5,224 (3,150)

Other.................................................................... 247,645 242,387 (5,257) 2,557 (7,815)

Total ............................................................. ¥6,570,128 ¥6,499,389 ¥(70,738) ¥133,458 ¥(204,197)

Millions of U.S. dollars

Unrealized
Book value Market value gain/(loss)

(X) (Y) (Y – X) Gain (Loss)

Stocks ...................................................................... $14,470 $13,799 $(670) $ 777 $(1,448)
Bonds ...................................................................... 32,978 33,157 178 204 (25)

National government bonds............................... 26,555 26,693 137 138 (0) 
Local government bonds .................................... 980 1,006 26 27 (1)
Corporate bonds ................................................. 5,441 5,457 15 39 (23)

Other ....................................................................... 1,858 1,819 (39) 19 (58)

Total................................................................. $49,306 $48,775 $(530) $1,001 $(1,532)

Note: The market value of stocks is based on the average market prices of the last month of the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2002.

The market value of others is based on the market prices on March 31, 2002.

(5) There were no marketable bonds held to maturity sold during the year ended March 31, 2002.
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(6) Other securities which were sold during the year ended March 31, 2002

Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars

Sold Gain (Loss) Sold Gain (Loss)

Other securities ....................................... ¥7,911,660 ¥79,462 ¥(232,555) $59,374 $596 $(1,745)

(7) The major components of securities whose market value was not available and their respective
balance sheet amounts: 

Millions of Millions of 
yen U.S. dollars

Bonds held to maturity:
Unlisted domestic bonds....................................................................................................... ¥ 5,033 $ 37 
Negotiable certificates of deposit.......................................................................................... 5,595 41 

Other securities: 
Unlisted domestic bonds....................................................................................................... 202,636 1,520
Unlisted stocks (excluding over-the-counter securities)...................................................... 99,773 748 
Unlisted foreign bonds .......................................................................................................... 14,964 112 

(8) As of March 31, 2002, there were no securities whose intent in holding had been changed.

(9) Projected redemption amounts for other securities with maturities and bonds held to maturity 

Millions of yen

One year One to Five to More than
or less five years 10 years 10 years

Bonds ............................................................................................... ¥1,063,813 ¥2,673,406 ¥884,984 ¥ 4,450 
National government bonds........................................................ 854,482 1,949,240 750,143 3,000 
Local government bonds ............................................................ 12,374 55,386 69,887 —
Corporate bonds .......................................................................... 196,956 668,779 64,952 1,449

Other ................................................................................................ 48,711 31,622 16,329 8,220

Total.......................................................................................... ¥1,112,524 ¥2,705,029 ¥901,313 ¥12,671

Millions of U.S. dollars

One year One to Five to More than
or less five years 10 years 10 years

Bonds ...................................................................................................... $7,983 $20,063 $6,641 $33 
National government bonds............................................................... 6,412 14,628 5,629 22
Local government bonds.................................................................... 92 415 524 —
Corporate bonds ................................................................................. 1,478 5,018 487 10

Other ....................................................................................................... 365 237 122 61

Total................................................................................................. $8,349 $20,300 $6,764 $95

2. Money held in trust

(1) Money held in trust for investment purposes

Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars

Unrealized gain Unrealized gain 
(net) included in (net) included in 

As of March 31, 2002 Book value profits and losses Book value profits and losses

Money held in trust for investment purposes .................. ¥43,823 ¥(0) $328 $(0)

(2) As of March 31, 2002, there was no held to maturity money held in trust.

(3) As of March 31, 2002, there was no other money held in trust with market value (excluding 
investment or held to maturity securities).

Other money held in trust without market value is stated at the acquisition cost of ¥30 million 
($0 million).
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3. Net unrealized differences of other securities (Valuation differences)

Millions Millions of
As of March 31, 2002 of yen U.S. dollars

Difference (market value—balance sheet amount) ............................................................... ¥(70,738) $(530)
Other securities ................................................................................................................... (70,738) (530)
Other money held in trust ................................................................................................... — —

Amount equivalent to deferred tax liabilities ......................................................................... 1,285 9
Amount equivalent to unrealized differences of other securities
(before adjustment of amount equivalent to interest) ........................................................ (72,023) (540)

Amount equivalent to minority interests ................................................................................ 731 5
Amount equivalent to parent company interest of amount equivalent
to unrealized differences of other securities owned by the companies
accounted for the equity method ......................................................................................... (41) (0)

Net unrealized differences of other securities ........................................................................ ¥(72,797) $(546)

N O T E  2 7 .  D E R I V A T I V E S

The contract values or notional principal amounts, market values or estimated market value and unrealized
gains/losses on derivative financial instruments are as follows in accordance with the revised Regulations
for Financial Statements (Ordinance promulgated by the Ministry of Finance) as of March 31, 2002.

(a) Interest rate related transactions

Millions of yen

Contract value or notional  
principal amount Market Unrealized

Over 1 year value gain/(loss)

Listed Futures
Sold................................................ ¥ 573,509 ¥ 5,362 ¥ (1,783) ¥ (1,783)
Bought........................................... 345,240 — 1,628 1,628 

Over-the- Swaps
counter Receive fixed/Pay floating............ 2,168,533 1,373,851 47,209 47,209 

Receive floating/Pay fixed............ 2,199,687 1,322,699 (39,279) (39,279)
Receive floating/Pay floating ....... 238,668 174,510 (165) (165)

Caps
Sold................................................ 363,694 288,426 440 2,612
Bought........................................... 329,432 261,220 366 (1,063)

Floors
Sold................................................ 12,000 12,000 528 (422)
Bought........................................... 17,633 17,156 720 528 

Swaptions
Sold................................................ 1,043 43 23 (4)
Bought........................................... 1,000 — 23 15 

Total ......................................................................................... ¥ / ¥ / ¥ 7,726 ¥ 9,275 
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Millions of U.S. dollars

Contract value or notional  
principal amount Market Unrealized

Over 1 year value gain/(loss)

Listed Futures
Sold................................................... $ 4,304 $ 40 $ (13) $ (13)
Bought.............................................. 2,590 — 12 12 

Over-the- Swaps
counter Receive fixed/Pay floating .............. 16,274 10,310 354 354 

Receive floating/Pay fixed .............. 16,507 9,926 (294) (294)
Receive floating/Pay floating .......... 1,791 1,309 (1) (1)

Caps
Sold................................................... 2,729 2,164 3 19 
Bought.............................................. 2,472 1,960 2 (7)

Floors
Sold................................................... 90 90 3 (3)
Bought.............................................. 132 128 5 3

Swaptions
Sold................................................... 7 0 0 (0)
Bought.............................................. 7 — 0 0

Total............................................................................................ $ / $ / $ 57 $ 69

Notes: 1. The above transactions are stated on a marked-to-market basis and unrealized gains/losses are charged to income/
expenses in the consolidated statement of operations. Derivative transactions used for hedge accounting have
been excluded from the above table.

2. The market value of listed contracts is based on the closing prices on the Tokyo International Financial Futures
Exchange and other exchanges. The market value of over-the-counter contracts is based on the discounted value
of their future cash flows, option exchanges or option pricing models.

(b) Currency-related transactions

Millions of yen

Contract value or notional  
principal amount Market Unrealized

Over 1 year value gain/(loss)

Over-the- Currency swaps...................................................... ¥889,482 ¥760,163 ¥(1,634) ¥(1,634)
counter Forward contracts Sold ....................................... 156 — 0 0 

Bought .................................. 953 — (2) (2)

Total............................................................................................ ¥ / ¥ / ¥(1,636) ¥(1,636)

Millions of U.S. dollars

Contract value or notional  
principal amount Market Unrealized

Over 1 year value gain/(loss)

Over-the- Currency swaps...................................................... $6,675 $5,704 $(12) $(12)
counter Forward contracts Sold ....................................... 1 — 0 0

Bought .................................. 7 — (0) (0)

Total............................................................................................ $       / $       / $(12) $(12)

Notes: 1. The above transactions are stated on a marked-to-market basis and unrealized gains/losses are charged to income/
expenses in the consolidated statement of operations. Derivative transactions used for hedge accounting and the
transactions described in Note 3 have been excluded from the above table. 

2. Market value is based on the discounted value of future cash flows.
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3. Currency swap transactions which are accrued in accordance with “Temporary Treatment of Accounting and
Auditing Concerning Accounting for Foreign Currency Transactions in the Banking Industry” ( JICPA Industry
Audit Committee, Report No. 20) have been excluded from the previous tables.

Currency swap transactions accounted for by the accrual method were as follows:

Millions of yen

Contract value
or notional Market Unrealized

principal amount value gain/(loss)

Currency swaps ................................................................................. ¥229,474 ¥(154) ¥(154)

Millions of U.S. dollars

Contract value
or notional Market Unrealized

principal amount value gain/(loss)

Currency swaps ................................................................................. $1,722 $(1) $(1)

4. The following currency forward contracts, currency options and other transactions have been excluded from the
above table:
• Transactions which are marked-to-market and on which unrealized gain or loss is charged to income in the

consolidated statement of operations
• Transactions involving financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and recognized in the

consolidated balance sheet
• Transactions denominated in foreign currencies which have been eliminated in the consolidation process

Currency-related derivatives which were marked-to-market were as follows:

Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars

Contract value Contract value
or notional or notional 

principal amount principal amount

Over-the- Forward contracts Sold ......................................... ¥ 610,865 $ 4,584
counter Bought..................................... 630,602 4,732

Options Sold ......................................... 1,313,282 9,855
Bought..................................... 1,403,453 10,532

(c) Stock-related transactions

Millions of yen

Contract value or notional  
principal amount Market Unrealized

Over 1 year value gain/(loss)

Listed Index futures Sold ..................................................... ¥112 ¥— ¥ 3 ¥ 3
Bought ................................................ — — — —

Total ................................................................................................... ¥ / ¥ / ¥ 3 ¥ 3

Millions of U.S. dollars

Contract value or notional  
principal amount Market Unrealized

Over 1 year value gain/(loss)

Listed Index futures Sold ..................................................... $ 0 $— $ 0 $ 0
Bought ................................................ — — — —

Total ................................................................................................... $ / $ / $ 0 $ 0 

Notes: 1. The above transactions are stated on a marked-to-market basis and unrealized gains/losses are charged to income
in the consolidated statement of operations.  Derivative transactions used for hedge accounting have been exclud-
ed from the above table.

2. The market value of listed contracts is based on the closing prices on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and other
exchanges. 

54



(d) Bond-related transactions

Millions of yen

Contract value or notional  
principal amount Market Unrealized

Over 1 year value gain/(loss)

Listed Futures
Sold.............................................. ¥3,709 ¥— ¥(15) ¥(15)
Bought ......................................... 1,236 — 5 5

Futures options
Sold.............................................. — — — —
Bought ......................................... 546 — 0 0

Total................................................................................................ ¥ / ¥ / ¥(8) ¥ (9)

Millions of U.S. dollars

Contract value or notional  
principal amount Market Unrealized

Over 1 year value gain/(loss)

Listed Futures
Sold.............................................. $27 $— $(0) $(0)
Bought ......................................... 9 — 0 0

Futures options
Sold.............................................. — — — —
Bought ......................................... 4 — 0 0

Total................................................................................................ $ / $ / $(0) $(0)

Notes: 1. The above transactions are stated on a marked-to-market basis and unrealized gains/losses are charged to income
in the consolidated statement of operations. Derivative transactions used for hedge accounting have been exclud-
ed from the above table.

2. The market value of listed contracts is based on the closing prices on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and other
exchanges.

(e) As of March 31, 2002, there were no commodity-related transactions.

(f) As of March 31, 2002, there were no credit derivative transactions.
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N O T E  2 8 .  R E T I R E M E N T  B E N E F I T  P L A N S

(1) Certain consolidated subsidiaries have both lump-sum retirement benefit and defined benefit pension
plans. In addition, retirement benefits not subject to actuarial calculation under the retirement benefit
accounting standard may be paid upon retirement to certain employees. The three consolidated
subsidiaries referred to above have established retirement benefit trusts.

A total of 42 consolidated subsidiaries had lump-sum retirement benefit plans. Three consolidated
subsidiaries had separate welfare pension funds, six consolidated subsidiaries were participating in 
a common welfare pension fund, and eight consolidated subsidiaries had qualified pension plans.

As of March 31, 2002, the Company had no retirement benefit plan. Cosmo Securities Co., Ltd., 
a consolidated subsidiary, terminated the Cosmo Securities Welfare Pension Fund on February 26,
2002 with the approval of the Minister of Welfare and Labor.

(2) The reserve for employee’s retirement benefits as of March 31, 2002 was analyzed as follows:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Retirement benefit obligation................................................................................................... ¥(780,876) $(5,860)
Pension plan assets at fair value.............................................................................................. 648,916 4,869

Unfunded retirement benefit obligation.................................................................................. (131,960) (990)
Unrecognized transition differences at accounting change ................................................... 134,217 1,007
Unrecognized actuarial differences ......................................................................................... 172,060 1,291
Unrecognized past service cost ............................................................................................... 528 3 

Net retirement benefit obligation............................................................................................. 174,846 1,312
Prepaid pension cost ................................................................................................................ 191,858 1,439

Reserve for employee’s retirement benefits ............................................................................ ¥ (17,012) $ (127)

Notes: 1. A portion of the government welfare contributory plan has been included.

2. Extra retirement benefits have not been included.

3. Certain consolidated subsidiaries have adopted a simplified method in calculating their retirement benefit obligation.

4. In addition to the above, there existed ¥4,009 million ($30 million) of pension assets at fair value in a multi-
employers’ plan; however, the portion of these assets belonging to the Company could not be reasonably calculated.

5. Cosmo Securities Co., Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary, terminated the Cosmo Securities Welfare Pension Fund on
February 26, 2002 with the approval of the Minister of Welfare and Labor. The effect of this was as follows:

Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Decrease in retirement benefit obligation............................................................. ¥20,419 $153
Decrease in pension plan assets ........................................................................... 9,276 69
Amortization of transition differences at accounting change .............................. 6,239 46
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial differences............................................. 3,864 28 

Extraordinary profit recognized............................................................................. ¥ 1,039 $ 7

(3) The components of retirement benefit expenses for the year ended March 31, 2002 were as follows:

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Service cost .................................................................................................................................. ¥18,325 $137 
Interest cost.................................................................................................................................. 26,137 196 
Expected return on pension plan assets .................................................................................... (20,535) (154)
Amortization of past service cost................................................................................................ (6,054) (45)
Amortization of actuarial differences.......................................................................................... 7,984 59 
Amortization of transition differences at accounting change.................................................... 27,789 208
Other (such as extra retirement benefits paid).......................................................................... 6,837 51 

Retirement benefit expenses....................................................................................................... ¥60,483 $453 

Notes:1. Contributions by employees to the Welfare Pension Fund have been excluded.

2. Retirement benefit expenses of the consolidated subsidiaries which employed the simplified method have been
included in service cost.
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(4) The assumptions used in accounting for the above plans were as follows:

Discount rates ........................................................................................................................................... 2.5–3.0%
Expected rates of return on plan assets .............................................................................................. 3.5–4.7%
Method of attributing retirement benefits to periods of services....................................................... Straight-line basis

The amortization period of past service cost...................................................................................... 1–10 years
(Past service cost is recognized as income or expenses by the straight-line method 
for a period within the average remaining years of service of the eligible employees 
at the time when the liabilities were incurred.)

The amortization period of unrecognized actuarial differences ........................................................ 5–15 years
(Unrecognized actuarial differences are recognized as income or expenses from the 
next fiscal year by the straight-line method for a period within the average remaining 
years of service of the eligible employees at the time when the liabilities were incurred.)

The amortization period of transition differences at accounting change.......................................... 1–15 years
(Amortization period of major consolidated subsidiaries)
• The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. 10 years
• The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. 15 years
• The Asahi Bank, Ltd. 5 years

N O T E  2 9 .  S E G M E N T  I N F O R M A T I O N

(a) Business segment information
Certain consolidated subsidiaries are engaged in the securities, general leasing and other businesses
in addition to commercial banking and trust banking. As those activities are not deemed material, 
the business segment information for the year ended March 31, 2002 is not shown here. 

(b) Geographic segment information
Since the ordinary income and employed assets of the “Japan” segment constitute more than 90% of 
all the other segments combined, geographical segment information for the year ended March 31, 2002
is not shown here. 

(c) Overseas ordinary income
Since overseas ordinary income of the Bank is less than 10% of total income, overseas ordinary income
for the year ended March 31, 2002 is not shown here.

N O T E  3 0 .  S U B S E Q U E N T  E V E N T

On June 27, 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved the following appropriations of retained
earnings as of March 31, 2002.

Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Cash dividends........................................................................................................................... ¥10,290 $77
Preferred stock:

Class A No. 1 preferred stock (¥24.75 per share)........................................................... 271 2
Class B No. 1 preferred stock (¥6.36 per share) ............................................................ 4,324 32
Class C No. 1 preferred stock (¥6.33 per share) ............................................................ 759 5
Class D No. 1 preferred stock (¥10.00 per share)........................................................... 3 0
Class E No. 1 preferred stock (¥14.38 per share)........................................................... 3,451 25
Class F No. 1 preferred stock (¥18.50 per share)........................................................... 1,480 11
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Risk-Adjusted Capital Ratio (Consolidated, Domestic Standard)

Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc. Billions of yen

March 31 2002

Tier I capital Capital .................................................................................................................................................. ¥ 720.0

Non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock (Note 1) ..................................................................... —

Capital surplus ..................................................................................................................................... 1,377.0

Consolidated retained surplus ............................................................................................................ (827.4)

Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries .................................................................................. 104.9

Preferred securities issued by special-purpose company overseas*............................................. 70.6

Revaluation loss on other securities ................................................................................................... (72.7)

Treasury stock ..................................................................................................................................... (21.8)

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of taxes..................................................................... (9.5)

Goodwill .............................................................................................................................................. —

Consolidation differences.................................................................................................................... (5.1)

Total qualifying Tier I capital (A) .................................... 1,265.2

Preferred securities with interest step-up conditions (Note 2) ..................................................... 70.6

Tier II capital 45% of the difference between land after revaluation 
and the book value immediately before revaluation...................................................................... 84.3

General reserve for possible loan losses............................................................................................ 180.1

Qualifying subordinated debt ............................................................................................................. 1,015.2

Perpetual subordinated bonds (Note 3)......................................................................................... 719.0

Subordinated bonds with maturity dates and 
preferred stocks with maturity dates (Note 4)............................................................................. 296.1

Subtotal ................................................................................................................................................ 1,279.8

Tier II capital included as qualifying capital (B) .................................... 1,265.2

Amount to be deducted Certain stocks and other debt instruments issued by 
other financial institutions (Note 5) (C) .................................... 12.9

Total qualifying capital (A)+(B)–(C) (D) .................................... ¥ 2,517.5

Risk-adjusted assets On-balance-sheet items....................................................................................................................... ¥26,631.1

Off-balance-sheet items....................................................................................................................... 2,199.1

Total risk-adjusted assets (E) .................................... ¥28,830.2

Risk-adjusted capital ratio (D)/(E)�100%...................................................................................................................................... 8.73%

Notes: 1. Since the holding company’s shares cannot be classified by type, the amounts of non-cumulative, perpetual preferred stocks are not shown.

2. Securities specified in Article 13-2 of the Public Ministerial Announcement (kokuji) are stocks with special interest step-up conditions and other
features, which may be subject to call and amortization (including preferred securities issued by special-purpose companies overseas).

3. Financial instruments for raising capital similar in characteristics to liabilities, as specified in Article 14-1-3 of the Public Ministerial Announcement
(kokuji), having all of the following characteristics:
(1) Uncollateralized, lower in seniority than other liabilities and already paid in,
(2) Cannot be called or amortized, except under specified conditions,
(3) Can be used to offset losses while operations are continuing, and 
(4) For which the duty to pay interest may be postponed.

4. Securities specified in Article 14-1-4 and Article 14-1-5 of the Public Ministerial Announcement (kokuji). However, subordinated liabilities with
maturity dates are limited to those with amortization periods of over five years at the time of the contract.

5. The amounts corresponding to financial instruments, as specified in Article 15-1-1 of the Public Ministerial Announcement (kokuji), issued by other
financial institutions for the purpose of raising capital, which are held deliberately and the amounts of investments corresponding to those spe-
cified in Article 15-1-2 of the Public Ministerial Announcement (kokuji).
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*Outline of Preferred Securities
Pursuant to Article 23, paragraph 2 of the Public Ministerial Announcement (kokuji), The Asahi Bank, Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary of

the Company (hereinafter the “Bank”), has issued through its overseas special-purpose company the preferred securities for the purpose

of capital enhancement as described below, and has posted them in its Tier I capital for the purpose of calculating its consolidated capital

adequacy ratio (Domestic standard).

Issuer Asahi Preferred Securities (Cayman), Limited

Type of securities Non-cumulative perpetual preferred securities

Maturity None (perpetual)

Optional redemption The preferred securities may be redeemed at the option of the issuer on any dividend payment
date in or after July 2012, subject to the prior approval of the Financial Services Agency.

Dividend rate Dividends on the preferred securities will be payable at a fixed rate through the dividend payment
date in July 2012. After this date, the dividend rate will become variable and a step-up dividend will
be added.

Amount of issue ¥70.6 billion

Date for payment of March 26, 2002 
the issue price

Details of dividend payments
Dividend payment date: July 5 of each year, provided that if this date in any year falls on a day that is not a business day,

payment will be made on the next business day.

Limitation on If the Bank has not declared payment of full dividends on its preferred shares (Note 1), the dividends 
payment of dividends: on the preferred securities will be limited to an amount that represents the same proportion of full

dividends on the preferred securities as the amount of dividends paid on the Bank’s preferred shares
for the fiscal year bore to the full amount of dividends on such preferred shares for such fiscal year. 

Distributable Dividends on the preferred securities must be within the limits of the Bank’s Available Distributable 
profits limitation: Profits (Note 2) and the Next Year’s Estimated Available Distributable Profits (Note 3).

Conditions for suspension If any one of the following events occurs, payment of dividends will be suspended.  Unpaid dividends 
of dividends will not accrue in the subsequent periods:

(1) If a Loss Absorption Event (Note 4) occurs with respect to the Bank and a Loss Absorption
Certificate is delivered by the Bank to the issuer;

(2) If dividends are not paid on the Bank’s preferred shares; 

(3) If the Bank does not have Available Distributable Profits or Next Year’s Estimated Available
Distributable Profits;

(4) If the Bank delivers a No Dividend Instruction (Note 5).

Liquidation preference The preferred securities rank pari passu with the Bank’s preferred shares as to liquidation 
preference.

Notes: 1. The Bank’s “preferred shares” means the preferred shares issued directly by the Bank ranking most senior as to dividend payments.

2. “Available Distributable Profits” with respect to a fiscal year of the Bank means the Bank’s distributable profits less the aggregate amount of 
dividends paid previously during such fiscal year and proposed to be paid during such fiscal year on the Bank’s preferred shares and other 
dividend parity securities.  

3. “Next Year’s Estimated Available Distributable Profits” means the Available Distributable Profits estimated for the next fiscal year of the Bank.

4. A “Loss Absorption Event” with respect to the Bank means any of the following events: 
(1) the Bank’s total risk-based capital ratio or Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio is less than the minimum percentage required by Japanese banking

regulations, 
(2) the Bank is not able or will not be able to pay its debts as they become due, 
(3) the Bank’s liabilities exceed its assets, or 
(4) there occurs a change of control event (which includes (i) liquidation events (commencement of liquidation proceedings, declaration of bank-

ruptcy, approval of preparation of a reorganization plan for liquidation, or approval of preparation of a rehabilitation plan for liquidation), 
(ii) commencement of corporate reorganization, civil rehabilitation or similar proceedings, or (iii) determination and public declaration by 
the applicable bank regulator that the Bank is not able or will not be able to pay its debts as they become due or that the Bank’s liabilities
exceed its assets, or its declaration to put the Bank under public management). However, if only item (1) above applies, suspension of 
dividends will be at the Bank’s discretion. 

5. “No Dividend Instruction” means an instruction delivered by the Bank to the issuer with respect to a dividend payment date of the preferred 
securities, instructing the issuer not to pay dividends on the preferred securities on such dividend payment date. A No Dividend Instruction 
may not be delivered if the Bank paid dividends on its common stock in the previous year.
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Statement of Trust Assets and Liabilities

Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc. Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 2002 2002 2002

Assets
Loans and bills discounted........................................................................................................................... ¥ 475,878 $ 3,571
Securities........................................................................................................................................................ 1,344,746 10,091
Securities held for investment trusts ............................................................................................................ 93,171 699
Trust beneficiary certificates......................................................................................................................... 21,581,191 161,960
Securities held in custody account............................................................................................................... 128,818 966
Monetary claims ............................................................................................................................................ 895,943 6,723
Premises and equipment .............................................................................................................................. 220,001 1,651
Land lease rights ........................................................................................................................................... 1,857 13
Other claims .................................................................................................................................................. 21,580 161
Call loans....................................................................................................................................................... 39,247 294
Due from banking account .......................................................................................................................... 213,342 1,601
Cash and due from banks ............................................................................................................................ 126,746 951

Total assets .......................................................................................................................................... ¥25,142,526 $188,686

Liabilities
Money trusts .................................................................................................................................................. ¥ 8,134,746 $ 61,048
Pension trusts ................................................................................................................................................ 6,266,942 47,031
Asset formation benefit trusts....................................................................................................................... 2,441 18
Securities investment trusts .......................................................................................................................... 8,715,719 65,408
Pecuniary trusts other than money trusts ................................................................................................... 292,720 2,196
Securities trusts.............................................................................................................................................. 385,701 2,894
Monetary claim trusts.................................................................................................................................... 912,250 6,846
Real estate trusts............................................................................................................................................ 192,546 1,444
Land lease trusts .......................................................................................................................................... 4,902 36
Composite trusts............................................................................................................................................ 234,553 1,760

Total liabilities ..................................................................................................................................... ¥25,142,526 $188,686

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
3. The trusts which were re-entrusted for operations were excluded.
4. Trust beneficiary certificates worth ¥21,574,604 million ($161,910 million) were re-entrusted for asset administration purposes.
5. Co-managed trust funds under other trust bank’s administration amounted to ¥7,607,431 million ($57,091 million).
6. Loans and bills discounted funded by Jointly Operated Designated Money Trust account funds of which the principal is guaranteed by 

a Group bank amounting to ¥444,374 million ($3,334 million) included the following:

Millions of Millions of
of yen U.S. dollars

Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy..................................................................................................................... ¥ 2,279 $ 17
Past due loans .............................................................................................................................................................. 11,914 89
Loans past due three months or more ....................................................................................................................... 1,936 14
Restructured loans ....................................................................................................................................................... 15,566 116

Total.......................................................................................................................................................................... ¥31,696 $237

Jointly Operated Designated Money Trusts 

Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc. Millions Millions of
of yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 2002 2002 2002

Assets
Loans and bills discounted........................................................................................................................... ¥444,374 $3,334
Securities........................................................................................................................................................ 164,880 1,237
Other.............................................................................................................................................................. 91,346 685

Total assets ................................................................................................................................................ ¥700,600 $5,257

Liabilities
Principal......................................................................................................................................................... ¥698,676 $5,243
Special loan loss reserve............................................................................................................................... 1,341 10
Other.............................................................................................................................................................. 583 4

Total liabilities ........................................................................................................................................... ¥700,600 $5,257

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
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Non-consolidated Balance Sheet

Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc. Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 2002 2002 2002

Assets

Current assets................................................................................................................................................... ¥ 32,545 $ 244

Cash and due from banks ........................................................................................................................... 31,482 236

Deferred tax assets....................................................................................................................................... 993 7 

Accrued income ........................................................................................................................................... 34 0 

Other current assets..................................................................................................................................... 35 0

Non-current assets ........................................................................................................................................... 1,789,269 13,427

Tangible fixed assets ................................................................................................................................... 20 0

Intangible fixed assets ................................................................................................................................. 5 0 

Investments in subsidiaries ......................................................................................................................... 1,489,234 11,176

Long-term loans to subsidiaries .................................................................................................................. 300,000 2,251

Other investments ....................................................................................................................................... 8 0

Deferred charges ............................................................................................................................................. 456 3

Organization costs ....................................................................................................................................... 456 3 

Total Assets............................................................................................................................................. ¥1,822,271 $13,675 

Liabilities

Current liabilities.............................................................................................................................................. ¥ 10,972 $ 82 

Accounts payable......................................................................................................................................... 424 3 

Accrued expenses ........................................................................................................................................ 153 1

Income tax payable ..................................................................................................................................... 10,313 77 

Consumption tax payable ........................................................................................................................... 67 0 

Other current liabilities................................................................................................................................ 13 0 

Non-current liabilities ...................................................................................................................................... 300,000 2,251 

Long-term debt............................................................................................................................................. 300,000 2,251

Total Liabilities ....................................................................................................................................... 310,972 2,333 

Shareholders’ Equity

Capital........................................................................................................................................................... 720,000 5,403 

Capital surplus ............................................................................................................................................. 731,417 5,489

Gain from deduction of capital surplus...................................................................................................... 40,000 300

Retained earnings ........................................................................................................................................ 19,901 149 

Treasury stock.............................................................................................................................................. (19) (0)

Total Shareholders’ Equity..................................................................................................................... 1,511,298 11,341

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity............................................................................................. ¥1,822,271 $13,675

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
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Non-consolidated Statement of Income

Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc. Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31, 2002 2002 2002

Operating income................................................................................................................................................. ¥ 2,125 $ 15

Fees from subsidiaries ...................................................................................................................................... 2,091 15 

Interest on loans to subsidiaries ...................................................................................................................... 34 0 

Operating expenses.............................................................................................................................................. 1,700 12

Interest expenses .............................................................................................................................................. 34 0 

General and administrative expenses.............................................................................................................. 1,666 12 

Operating profit .................................................................................................................................................... 424 3

Non-operating profit............................................................................................................................................. 1 0 

Non-operating expenses ...................................................................................................................................... 118 0

Ordinary net profit................................................................................................................................................ 307 2

Extraordinary profit .............................................................................................................................................. 28,913 216

Gains on sales of investment in subsidiaries .................................................................................................. 28,913 216

Income before income taxes................................................................................................................................ 29,221 219

Income taxes—current ......................................................................................................................................... 10,313 77 

Income taxes—deferred ....................................................................................................................................... (993) (7)

Net income............................................................................................................................................................ ¥19,901 $149

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
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Non-consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc. Millions of yen

Number of Number of Gain from
shares of shares of deduction

common stock preferred stock Capital of capital Retained Treasury
Year ended March 31, 2002 (Thousands) (Thousands) Capital surplus surplus earnings stock

Balance at December 12, 2001 ..................................... 2,803,354 810,970 ¥380,000 ¥401,660 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —

Reversal of capital surplus ............................................ — — — (40,000) 40,000 — —

Transfer of shares........................................................... 2,831,549 320,386 340,000 369,756 — — —

Net income .................................................................... — — — — — 19,901 —

Treasury stock transactions ........................................... — — — — — — (19)

Balance at March 31, 2002 ......................................... 5,634,904 1,131,356 ¥720,000 ¥731,417 ¥40,000 ¥19,901 ¥(19)

Millions of U.S. dollars

Number of Number of Gain from
shares of shares of deduction

common stock preferred stock Capital of capital Retained Treasury
Year ended March 31, 2002 (Thousands) (Thousands) Capital surplus surplus earnings stock

Balance at December 12, 2001 ..................................... 2,803,354 810,970 $2,851 $3,014 $ — $ — $—

Reversal of capital surplus ............................................ — — — (300) 300 — —

Transfer of shares........................................................... 2,831,549 320,386 2,551 2,774 — — —

Net income .................................................................... — — — — — 149 —

Treasury stock transactions ........................................... — — — — — — (0)

Balance at March 31, 2002 ......................................... 5,634,904 1,131,356 $5,403 $5,489 $300 $149 $(0)

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
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F I N A N C I A L  I N F O R M A T I O N  O F  T H E  D A I W A  B A N K ,  L T D .

Non-consolidated Balance Sheets

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 2002 and 2001 2002 2001 2002

Assets

Cash and due from banks ............................................................................................. ¥ 1,293,243 ¥ 524,060 $ 9,705

Call loans and bills bought ........................................................................................... 5,576 303,868 41

Monetary claims bought................................................................................................ 20 20 0

Trading assets ................................................................................................................ 66,379 128,704 498

Money held in trust ....................................................................................................... 2,803 34,585 21

Securities ........................................................................................................................ 2,726,073 3,142,138 20,458

Loans and bills discounted............................................................................................ 9,612,764 10,205,796 72,140

Foreign exchange .......................................................................................................... 55,928 70,134 419

Other assets.................................................................................................................... 323,352 260,371 2,426

Premises and equipment............................................................................................... 142,099 147,290 1,066

Deferred tax assets ........................................................................................................ 285,169 178,422 2,140

Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees................................................. 607,839 735,977 4,561

Reserve for possible loan losses ................................................................................... (397,290) (212,774) (2,981)

Total Assets........................................................................................................... ¥14,723,960 ¥15,518,596 $110,498

Liabilities

Deposits.......................................................................................................................... ¥10,963,041 ¥ 9,458,777 $ 82,274

Negotiable certificates of deposit.................................................................................. 553,328 2,513,626 4,152

Call money and bills sold.............................................................................................. 764,464 343,535 5,737

Bills sold under repurchase agreements ...................................................................... 4,099 — 30

Trading liabilities ........................................................................................................... 23,244 28,125 174

Borrowed money........................................................................................................... 407,822 428,217 3,060

Foreign exchange .......................................................................................................... 5,933 9,053 44

Bonds ............................................................................................................................. 70,000 51,800 525

Due to trust account...................................................................................................... 192,446 452,941 1,444

Other liabilities............................................................................................................... 707,482 506,144 5,309

Reserve for employees’ bonuses .................................................................................. 2,300 — 17

Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits ................................................................. — 16,001 —

Reserve for possible losses on loans sold .................................................................... 3,935 23,149 29

Reserve for the specific borrowers under support ...................................................... — 24,662 —

Other reserves................................................................................................................ 0 1 0

Acceptances and guarantees ......................................................................................... 607,839 735,977 4,561

Total Liabilities ..................................................................................................... 14,305,939 14,592,012 107,361

Shareholders’ Equity

Capital ............................................................................................................................ 443,158 465,158 3,325

Capital surplus ............................................................................................................... 404,449 405,419 3,035

Legal reserve .................................................................................................................. 47,854 47,394 359

(Deficit) retained earnings ............................................................................................ (428,786) 8,611 (3,217)

Valuation differences..................................................................................................... (48,654) — (365)

Total Shareholders’ Equity................................................................................... 418,021 926,584 3,137

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity........................................................... ¥14,723,960 ¥15,518,596 $110,498

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
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Non-consolidated Statements of Operations

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 2002 2001 2002

Income

Interest income..................................................................................................................... ¥224,853 ¥250,088 $1,687

Interest on loans and bills discounted ............................................................................ 193,200 204,783 1,449

Interest and dividends on securities ................................................................................ 25,381 32,415 190

Trust fees............................................................................................................................... 42,204 54,833 316

Fees and commissions ......................................................................................................... 67,333 44,518 505

Trading income..................................................................................................................... 3,432 1,047 25

Other operating income....................................................................................................... 17,457 23,466 131

Other income........................................................................................................................ 41,337 72,038 310

Total Income ............................................................................................................... 396,618 445,993 2,976

Expenses

Interest expenses.................................................................................................................. 45,315 76,492 340

Interest on deposits .......................................................................................................... 23,890 46,498 179

Fees and commissions ......................................................................................................... 42,310 15,863 317

Trading expenses ................................................................................................................. 9 5 0

Other operating expenses.................................................................................................... 2,793 5,331 20

General and administrative expenses ................................................................................. 171,882 167,596 1,289

Other expenses..................................................................................................................... 675,376 176,353 5,068

Total Expenses ............................................................................................................ 937,688 441,641 7,037

(Loss) income before income taxes..................................................................................... (541,069) 4,351 (4,060)

Income taxes—current ......................................................................................................... 317 3,721 2

Income taxes—deferred....................................................................................................... (106,747) 11,619 (801)

Net loss ................................................................................................................................. ¥434,639 ¥ 10,989 $3,261

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
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Statements of Trust Assets and Liabilities

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 2002 and 2001 2002 2001 2002

Assets
Loans and bills discounted.............................................................................................. ¥ 475,878 ¥ 560,196 $3,571
Securities........................................................................................................................... 167,084 1,305,361 1,253
Securities held for investment trusts ............................................................................... — 4,347,292 —
Foreign investment held for investment trusts ............................................................... — 461,562 —
Trust beneficiary certificates............................................................................................ 5,742 12,777,902 43
Securities held in custody account.................................................................................. 631 1,262 4
Securities lent ................................................................................................................... — 968 —
Monetary claims ............................................................................................................... 76,499 821,335 574
Premises and equipment ................................................................................................. 214,449 201,139 1,609
Land lease rights .............................................................................................................. 1,857 748 13
Other claims ..................................................................................................................... 8,869 318,793 66
Call loans .......................................................................................................................... — 958,110 —
Due from banking account ............................................................................................. 192,446 452,941 1,444
Cash and due from banks ............................................................................................... 2,098 79,780 15

Total assets ............................................................................................................... ¥1,145,558 ¥22,287,395 $8,597

Liabilities
Money trusts ..................................................................................................................... ¥ 831,362 ¥ 7,897,183 $6,239
Pension trusts ................................................................................................................... — 6,359,275 —
Asset formation benefit trusts.......................................................................................... 2,441 3,107 18
Securities investment trusts ............................................................................................. — 6,876,379 —
Pecuniary trusts other than money trusts ...................................................................... 1,436 295,857 10
Securities trusts................................................................................................................. 631 399,983 4
Monetary claim trusts....................................................................................................... 24,735 49,327 185
Real estate trusts............................................................................................................... 192,546 189,373 1,444
Land lease trusts ............................................................................................................. 4,902 4,929 36
Composite trusts............................................................................................................... 87,502 211,979 656

Total liabilities .......................................................................................................... ¥1,145,558 ¥22,287,395 $8,597

Note: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
3. Co-managed trust funds under other trust banks’ administration as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 amounted to ¥79,598 million ($597 million) 

and ¥8,894,498 million, respectively.
4. Loans and bills discounted funded by Jointly Operated Designated Money Trust account funds that the Bank guarantees the principal 

amounting to ¥444,374 million ($3,334 million) and ¥525,513 million as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 included the following:

Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2002 2001 2002

Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy .................................................................................. ¥ 2,279 ¥ 1,679 $ 17
Past due loans............................................................................................................................ 11,914 11,672 89
Loans past due three months or more ..................................................................................... 1,936 1,759 14
Restructured loans ..................................................................................................................... 15,566 3,095 116

Total........................................................................................................................................ ¥31,696 ¥18,207 $237



Deposits and Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Liquid deposits............................................................................................................................................................. ¥ 6,535.6 ¥ 3,847.1

Time deposits............................................................................................................................................................... 3,984.3 5,323.9

Other deposits.............................................................................................................................................................. 996.3 2,801.2

Total ...................................................................................................................................................................... ¥11,516.3 ¥11,972.4

Note: Liquid deposits = Current deposits + Ordinary deposits + Savings deposits + Deposits at notice
Time deposits = Time deposits + Periodic time deposits

Deposits by Type of Depositor

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Individuals.................................................................................................................................................................... ¥ 4,965.5 ¥4,859.0

Corporations................................................................................................................................................................. 4,660.9 4,065.4

Other............................................................................................................................................................................. 1,338.3 523.4

Total ...................................................................................................................................................................... ¥10,964.9 ¥9,447.9

Note: Domestic depositors only and excluding negotiable certificates of deposit

Loans to SMEs and Individuals (Non-consolidated)

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen Ratio to total loans

March 31 2002 2001 2002 2001

Banking account ..................................................................................................................... ¥6,916.4 ¥7,367.6 72.2% 72.5%

Banking and trust accounts..................................................................................................... 7,318.8 7,846.9 72.8% 73.2%

Loans to Individuals (Non-consolidated, Banking and Trust Accounts)

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001 Change

Consumer loans total ..................................................................................................................................... ¥2,022.9 ¥2,035.1 ¥(12.1)

Housing loans............................................................................................................................................. 1,809.8 1,798.4 11.3

Note: Amount after securitization of housing loans
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Loans and Bills Discounted by Industry (Banking Account)

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Domestic operations

Manufacturing ......................................................................................................................................................... ¥1,523.0 ¥ 1,628.6
15.9% 16.0%

Retail, wholesale, and food services...................................................................................................................... 1,592.3 1,749.1
16.6% 17.2%

Financial services.................................................................................................................................................... 701.3 804.3
7.3% 7.9%

Construction............................................................................................................................................................ 599.4 667.9
6.3% 6.6%

Electric power, gas, and other public enterprises ................................................................................................ 51.6 68.1
0.5% 0.7%

Real estate ............................................................................................................................................................... 1,990.0 2,013.6
20.8% 19.8%

Transportation, communications, and other utilities ............................................................................................ 336.5 326.3
3.5% 3.2%

Services.................................................................................................................................................................... 946.4 1,001.8
9.9% 9.9%

Agriculture, forestry, fishing, and mining.............................................................................................................. 18.1 17.5
0.2% 0.2%

Local governments.................................................................................................................................................. 231.9 238.8
2.4% 2.4%

Other ....................................................................................................................................................................... 1,582.5 1,640.1
16.6% 16.1%

Subtotal................................................................................................................................................................ ¥9,573.6 ¥10,156.0
100% 100%

International operations

Governments........................................................................................................................................................... ¥ 7.6 ¥ 7.3
19.6% 14.7%

Financial institutions............................................................................................................................................... 17.6 17.0
45.1% 34.1%

Other ....................................................................................................................................................................... 13.8 25.5
35.3% 51.2%

Subtotal................................................................................................................................................................ ¥ 39.1 ¥ 49.7
100% 100%

Elimination and intercompany................................................................................................................................... — —

Total..................................................................................................................................................................... ¥9,612.7 ¥10,205.7
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Risk Management Loans (Banking and Trust Accounts)

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Millions of yen

March 31 2002 Change 2001 2000

Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy ........................................ ¥ 71,281 ¥ (26,447) ¥ 97,728 ¥ 103,318

Past due loans.................................................................................. 783,726 374,895 408,830 482,858

Loans past due three months or more ........................................... 9,030 (12,860) 21,891 19,308

Restructured loans ........................................................................... 587,356 321,921 265,435 381,313

Total* ............................................................................................ ¥ 1,451,395 ¥ 657,508 ¥ 793,886 ¥ 986,799

Total loans and bills discounted......................................................... ¥10,057,138 ¥(674,170) ¥10,731,309 ¥10,608,237

Ratio of risk management loans to 
total loans and bills discounted ....................................................... 14.43% 7.04%** 7.39% 9.30%

* Amounts are net of partial direct write-offs.
** Percentage points.

Disclosure according to the Financial Reconstruction Law (Banking and Trust Accounts)

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Millions of yen

March 31 2002 Change 2001 2000

Unrecoverable or valueless claims ................................................. ¥ 205,036 ¥ 30,766 ¥ 174,270 ¥ 197,626

Risk claims ....................................................................................... 690,790 338,617 352,173 437,069

Claims in need of special attention ................................................ 596,387 309,060 287,327 400,621

Financial Reconstruction Law subtotal ............................................... 1,492,214 678,444 813,770 1,035,317

Nonclassified claims ............................................................................ 9,271,885 (1,499,876) 10,771,761 10,433,644

Financial Reconstruction Law total..................................................... ¥10,764,100 ¥ (821,432) ¥11,585,532 ¥11,468,962

Coverage ratio ..................................................................................... 77.46% 3.92%** 73.54% 72.07%

** Percentage points.

Reserve for Possible Loan Losses (Banking and Trust Accounts)

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Millions of yen

March 31 2002 Change 2001 2000

Reserves for possible loan losses............................................................ ¥397,290 ¥184,515 ¥212,774 ¥188,801

General reserve for possible loan losses ............................................ 140,353 73,713 66,640 61,299

Specific reserve for possible loan losses............................................. 254,946 110,925 144,020 124,879

Special reserve for certain overseas loans .......................................... 1,990 (123) 2,113 2,622

Reserve for the specific borrowers under support .................................. — (24,662) 24,662 55,096

Reserve for possible losses on loans sold .............................................. 3,935 (19,214) 23,149 37,033

Reserve provided in preparation for write-offs in trust account ............ 1,341 (273) 1,614 1,900

Securities

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

National and local government bonds ................................................................................................................... ¥1,391.5 ¥1,464.8

Corporate bonds ...................................................................................................................................................... 282.9 168.2

Corporate stocks ...................................................................................................................................................... 993.2 1,449.3

Other securities ........................................................................................................................................................ 58.3 59.6

Total book value .............................................................................................................................................. ¥2,726.0 ¥3,142.1
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Risk-Adjusted Capital Ratio
(1) Consolidated Capital Ratio (Domestic Standard)

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Tier I capital Capital ............................................................................................................................. ¥ 443.1 ¥ 465.0

Non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock ............................................................... 209.4 209.4

Capital surplus ................................................................................................................ — 405.4

Consolidated retained surplus ....................................................................................... 13.9 (53.9)

Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries ............................................................. 21.2 22.6

Revaluation loss on other securities .............................................................................. (49.4) —

Consolidation differences............................................................................................... — —

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of taxes ................................................ (9.5) (5.5)

Total qualifying Tier I capital (A) ...................................................... 419.3 833.6

Tier II capital General reserve for possible loan losses....................................................................... 62.1 69.5

Qualifying subordinated debt ........................................................................................ 406.2 420.9

Subtotal ........................................................................................................................... 468.3 490.5

Tier II capital included as qualifying capital (B) ...................................................... 419.3 490.5

Amount to be deducted Certain stocks and other debt instruments
issued by other financial institutions (C) ...................................................... 8.0 62.1

Total qualifying capital (A)+(B)–(C) (D) ...................................................... ¥ 830.6 ¥ 1,262.1

Risk-adjusted assets On-balance-sheet items.................................................................................................. ¥9,132.8 ¥10,200.1

Off-balance-sheet items.................................................................................................. 803.7 929.7

Total risk-adjusted assets (E)....................................................... ¥9,936.6 ¥11,129.9

Risk-adjusted capital ratio (D)/(E)�100%................................................................................................................. 8.35% 11.33%

(2) Non-consolidated Capital Ratio (Domestic Standard)

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Tier I capital Capital ............................................................................................................................. ¥ 443.1 ¥ 465.1

Non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock ............................................................... 209.4 209.4

Capital surplus ................................................................................................................ — 405.4

Legal reserve ................................................................................................................... 23.5 47.8

Voluntary reserve............................................................................................................ — 0.0

Earned surplus carried forward to the next year.......................................................... 0.2 6.0

Other ............................................................................................................................... 0.0 —

Revaluation loss on other securities .............................................................................. (48.6) —

Total qualifying Tier I capital (A) ...................................................... 418.2 924.4

Tier II capital General reserve for possible loan losses....................................................................... 60.9 66.3

Qualifying subordinated debt ........................................................................................ 406.2 420.9

Subtotal ........................................................................................................................... 467.2 487.3

Tier II capital included as qualifying capital (B) ...................................................... 418.2 487.3

Amount to be deducted Certain stocks and other debt instruments 
issued by other financial institutions (C) ...................................................... 33.0 96.8

Total qualifying capital (A)+(B)–(C) (D) ...................................................... ¥ 803.4 ¥ 1,315.0

Risk-adjusted assets On-balance-sheet items.................................................................................................. ¥8,945.0 ¥ 9,993.2

Off-balance-sheet items.................................................................................................. 803.6 961.1

Total risk-adjusted assets (E)....................................................... ¥9,748.7 ¥10,954.3

Risk-adjusted capital ratio (D)/(E)�100%................................................................................................................. 8.24% 12.00%

Note: In conformity with the guidelines established by the Ministry of Finance of Japan based on Article 14-2 of the Banking Law of Japan, 
both consolidated and non-consolidated capital adequacy ratios are calculated.
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Non-consolidated Balance Sheets

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 2002 and 2001 2002 2001 2002

Assets

Cash and due from banks............................................................................................... ¥ 160,093 ¥ 104,236 $ 1,201

Call loans and bills bought ............................................................................................. — 160,000 —

Monetary claims bought.................................................................................................. 2,300 2,598 17

Trading assets .................................................................................................................. 1,014 950 7

Money held in trust ......................................................................................................... 1,000 3,863 7

Securities .......................................................................................................................... 851,860 815,550 6,392

Loans and bills discounted ............................................................................................. 3,101,019 3,102,974 23,272

Foreign exchange ............................................................................................................ 9,417 10,153 70

Other assets ..................................................................................................................... 85,537 31,235 641

Premises and equipment................................................................................................. 61,703 63,955 463

Deferred tax assets .......................................................................................................... 77,373 77,373 580

Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees .................................................. 84,167 103,791 631

Reserve for possible loan losses ..................................................................................... (43,526) (43,030) (326)

Total Assets ............................................................................................................ ¥4,391,961 ¥4,433,651 $32,960

Liabilities

Deposits ........................................................................................................................... ¥3,812,273 ¥4,036,244 $28,609

Negotiable certificates of deposit ................................................................................... 1,000 — 7

Call money and bills sold ............................................................................................... 22,730 8,834 170

Borrowed money............................................................................................................. 78,358 105,408 588

Foreign exchange ............................................................................................................ 131 121 0

Other liabilities ................................................................................................................ 263,961 82,338 1,980

Reserve for employees’ bonuses .................................................................................... 1,185 — 8

Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits ................................................................... 8,944 7,221 67

Reserve for possible losses on loans sold...................................................................... 5,762 4,382 43

Acceptances and guarantees........................................................................................... 84,167 103,791 631

Total Liabilities....................................................................................................... 4,278,515 4,348,341 32,108

Shareholders’ Equity

Capital .............................................................................................................................. 111,539 81,539 837

Capital surplus ................................................................................................................. 33,770 31,155 253

Deficit ............................................................................................................................... 21,524 27,385 161

Valuation differences....................................................................................................... (10,339) — (77)

Total Shareholders’ Equity .................................................................................... 113,445 85,309 851

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity ............................................................ ¥4,391,961 ¥4,433,651 $32,960

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.

F I N A N C I A L  I N F O R M A T I O N  O F  T H E  K I N K I  O S A K A  B A N K ,  L T D .
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Non-consolidated Statements of Operations

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 2002 2001 2002

Income

Interest income .................................................................................................................... ¥ 93,683 ¥ 90,048 $ 703

Interest on loans and bills discounted............................................................................ 80,547 77,714 604

Interest and dividends on securities ............................................................................... 11,508 10,816 86

Fees and commissions......................................................................................................... 10,519 8,759 78

Other operating income...................................................................................................... 2,026 4,538 15

Other income....................................................................................................................... 14,054 3,340 105

Total Income .............................................................................................................. 120,284 106,688 902

Expenses

Interest expenses ................................................................................................................. 11,645 16,755 87

Interest on deposits ......................................................................................................... 8,986 12,815 67

Fees and commissions......................................................................................................... 6,322 5,394 47

Other operating expenses................................................................................................... 1,257 1 9

General and administrative expenses................................................................................. 68,898 65,464 517

Other expenses.................................................................................................................... 53,580 43,580 402

Total Expenses ........................................................................................................... 141,703 131,196 1,063

Loss before income taxes.................................................................................................... 21,418 24,507 160

Income taxes—current ........................................................................................................ 105 130 0

Income taxes—deferred ...................................................................................................... — 2,747 —

Net loss................................................................................................................................. ¥ 21,524 ¥ 27,385 $ 161

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
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Deposits and Negotiable Certificates of Deposit

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Liquid deposits .............................................................................................................................................................. ¥1,322.2 ¥1,015.0

Time deposits ................................................................................................................................................................ 2,456.7 2,994.7

Other deposits ............................................................................................................................................................... 34.3 26.4

Total ....................................................................................................................................................................... ¥3,813.2 ¥4,036.2

Note: Liquid deposits = Current deposits + Ordinary deposits + Savings deposits + Deposits at notice
Time deposits = Time deposits + Periodic time deposits

Deposits by Type of Depositor

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Individuals ..................................................................................................................................................................... ¥3,034.7 ¥3,203.9

Corporations .................................................................................................................................................................. 726.2 764.4

Other .............................................................................................................................................................................. 51.2 67.8

Total ....................................................................................................................................................................... ¥3,812.2 ¥4,036.2

Note: Domestic depositors only and excluding negotiable certificates of deposit

Loans to SMEs and Individuals (Non-consolidated)

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen Ratio to total loans

March 31 .................................................................................................................................................................. 2002 2001 2002 2001

Loans to SMEs and individuals................................................................................................ ¥2,870.5 ¥2,897.2 92.5% 93.3%

Loans to Individuals (Non-consolidated)

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001 Change

Consumer loans total.................................................................................................................................. ¥1,051.6 ¥1,022.8 ¥28.7

Housing loans ......................................................................................................................................... 836.6 804.9 31.7
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Loans and Bills Discounted by Industry

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Domestic operations

Manufacturing ......................................................................................................................................................... ¥ 425.8 ¥ 451.4
13.73% 14.55%

Retail, wholesale, and food services...................................................................................................................... 430.2 428.4
13.88% 13.81%

Financial services.................................................................................................................................................... 80.0 67.0
2.58% 2.16%

Construction............................................................................................................................................................ 190.8 201.7
6.16% 6.50%

Electric power, gas, and other public enterprises ................................................................................................ 0.6 1.7
0.02% 0.06%

Real estate ............................................................................................................................................................... 449.3 441.2
14.49% 14.22%

Transportation, communications, and other utilities ............................................................................................ 46.9 50.6
1.52% 1.63%

Services.................................................................................................................................................................... 345.5 338.8
11.14% 10.92%

Agriculture, forestry, fishing, and mining.............................................................................................................. 4.1 3.6
0.13% 0.13%

Local governments.................................................................................................................................................. 15.3 16.6
0.49% 0.53%

Other ....................................................................................................................................................................... 1,111.7 1,101.0
35.86% 35.49%

Subtotal................................................................................................................................................................ ¥3,100.7 ¥3,102.5
100% 100%

International operations

Financial institutions............................................................................................................................................... ¥ — ¥ 0
—% 0.69%

Other ....................................................................................................................................................................... 0.2 0.3
100% 99.31%

Subtotal................................................................................................................................................................ ¥ 0.2 ¥ 0.3
100% 100%

Total..................................................................................................................................................................... ¥3,101.0 ¥3,102.9



Risk Management Loans

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 Change 2001

Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy................................................................................. ¥ 36.7 ¥ 3.3 ¥ 33.4

Past due loans ......................................................................................................................... 141.7 (11.2) 153.0

Loans past due three months or more.................................................................................... 13.5 1.7 11.7

Restructured loans ................................................................................................................... 177.9 (0.8) 178.8

Total*..................................................................................................................................... ¥ 370.0 ¥ (7.0) ¥ 377.0

Total loans and bills discounted ................................................................................................. ¥3,101.0 ¥ (1.9) ¥3,102.9

Ratio of risk management loans to 
total loans and bills discounted (%)......................................................................................... 11.93% (0.22)%** 12.15%

* Amounts are net of partial direct write-offs.
** Percentage points.

Disclosure according to the Financial Reconstruction Law

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 Change 2001

Unrecoverable or valueless claims.......................................................................................... ¥ 80.4 ¥ 4.6 ¥ 75.8

Risk claims................................................................................................................................ 103.0 (12.9) 116.0

Claims in need of special attention......................................................................................... 191.4 0.9 190.5

Financial Reconstruction Law subtotal ....................................................................................... 375.0 (7.4) 382.4

Nonclassified claims .................................................................................................................... 2,883.6 (58.5) 2,942.2

Financial Reconstruction Law total ............................................................................................. ¥3,258.6 ¥(66.0) ¥3,324.6

Coverage ratio.............................................................................................................................. 78.19% (1.28)%** 79.47%

** Percentage points.

Reserve for Possible Loan Losses 

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 Change 2001

Reserves for possible loan losses ..................................................................................................... ¥43.5 ¥ 0.4 ¥43.0

General reserve for possible loan losses ..................................................................................... 17.4 1.5 15.9

Specific reserve for possible loan losses...................................................................................... 25.8 (0.9) 26.7

Special reserve for certain overseas loans ................................................................................... 0.2 (0.7) 0.3

Reserve for possible losses on loans sold ....................................................................................... 5.7 1.3 4.3

Securities

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

National and local government bonds...................................................................................................................... ¥284.5 ¥245.7

Corporate bonds ........................................................................................................................................................ 350.1 310.0

Corporate stocks ........................................................................................................................................................ 77.2 103.5

Other securities .......................................................................................................................................................... 139.9 156.2

Total book value ................................................................................................................................................ ¥851.8 ¥815.5
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Risk-Adjusted Capital Ratio
(1) Consolidated Capital Ratio (Domestic Standard)

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Tier I capital Capital ........................................................................................................................ ¥ 111.5 ¥ 81.5

Non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock .......................................................... — —

Capital surplus ........................................................................................................... 33.7 31.1

Consolidated retained surplus .................................................................................. (24.9) (27.5)

Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries ........................................................ — —

Revaluation losses on other securities...................................................................... (10.3) —

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of taxes ........................................... — —

Goodwill .................................................................................................................... (0.1) (0.1)

Consolidation differences.......................................................................................... — —

Total qualifying Tier I capital (A) ................................................. 109.8 85.0

Tier II capital General reserve for possible loan losses.................................................................. 17.4 15.9

Qualifying subordinated debt ................................................................................... 66.0 73.2

Subtotal ...................................................................................................................... 83.4 89.1

Tier II capital included as qualifying capital (B) ................................................. 82.5 85.0

Amount to be deducted Certain stocks and other debt instruments 
issued by other financial institutions (C) ................................................. 0 0.3

Total qualifying capital (A)+(B)–(C) (D) ................................................. ¥ 192.3 ¥ 169.6

Risk-adjusted assets On-balance-sheet items............................................................................................. ¥2,559.9 ¥2,669.7

Off-balance-sheet items............................................................................................. 83.6 51.8

Total risk-adjusted assets (E).................................................. ¥2,643.5 ¥2,721.6

Risk-adjusted capital ratio (D)/(E)�100%............................................................................................................ 7.27% 6.23%

(2) Non-consolidated Capital Ratio (Domestic Standard)

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Tier I capital Capital ........................................................................................................................ ¥ 111.5 ¥ 81.5

Non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock .......................................................... — —

Capital surplus ........................................................................................................... 33.7 31.1

Legal reserve .............................................................................................................. — —

Voluntary reserve....................................................................................................... — —

Earned surplus carried forward to the next year..................................................... (21.5) (27.3)

Revaluation losses on other securities...................................................................... (10.3) —

Goodwill .................................................................................................................... (0.1) (0.1)

Total qualifying Tier I capital (A) ................................................. 113.3 85.1

Tier II capital General reserve for possible loan losses.................................................................. 17.4 15.9

Qualifying subordinated debt ................................................................................... 66.0 73.2

Subtotal ...................................................................................................................... 83.4 89.1

Tier II capital included as qualifying capital (B) ................................................. 82.5 85.1

Amount to be deducted Certain stocks and other debt instruments 
issued by other financial institutions (C) ................................................. 0 0.3

Total qualifying capital (A)+(B)–(C) (D) ................................................. ¥ 195.7 ¥ 169.8

Risk-adjusted assets On-balance-sheet items............................................................................................. ¥2,560.3 ¥2,670.0

Off-balance-sheet items............................................................................................. 83.6 51.8

Total risk-adjusted assets (E).................................................. ¥2,643.9 ¥2,721.9

Risk-adjusted capital ratio (D)/(E)�100%............................................................................................................ 7.40% 6.24%

Note: In conformity with the guidelines established by the Ministry of Finance of Japan based on Article 14-2 of the Banking Law of Japan, 
both consolidated and non-consolidated capital adequacy ratios are calculated.
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Non-consolidated Balance Sheets

The Nara Bank, Ltd. Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 2002 and 2001 2002 2001 2002

Assets

Cash and due from banks................................................................................................... ¥ 11,042 ¥ 3,844 $ 82

Call loans and bills bought ................................................................................................. 6,705 5,300 50

Monetary claims bought...................................................................................................... 1,388 3,600 10

Trading assets ...................................................................................................................... — 25 —

Securities .............................................................................................................................. 35,311 40,602 264

Loans and bills discounted.................................................................................................. 124,236 125,798 932

Other assets.......................................................................................................................... 832 1,014 6

Premises and equipment..................................................................................................... 3,443 3,540 25

Deferred tax assets .............................................................................................................. 1,907 1,609 14

Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees....................................................... 6,498 7,352 48

Reserve for possible loan losses ......................................................................................... (6,671) (5,442) (50)

Total Assets ................................................................................................................ ¥184,693 ¥187,244 $1,386 

Liabilities

Deposits ............................................................................................................................... ¥167,681 ¥168,656 $1,258

Other liabilities .................................................................................................................... 1,074 1,419 8

Reserve for employees’ bonuses ........................................................................................ 120 — 0

Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits ....................................................................... 459 403 3

Reserve for possible losses on loans sold.......................................................................... 138 182 1

Deferred tax liabilities on land revaluation........................................................................ 676 676 5

Acceptances and guarantees............................................................................................... 6,498 7,352 48 

Total Liabilities ........................................................................................................... 176,649 178,690 1,325 

Shareholders’ Equity

Capital .................................................................................................................................. 3,862 3,862 28

Capital surplus ..................................................................................................................... 1,847 1,847 13

Legal reserve ........................................................................................................................ 356 335 2

Land revaluation differences............................................................................................... 934 934 7

Retained earnings ................................................................................................................ 957 1,573 7

Valuation differences........................................................................................................... 86 — 0

Total Shareholders’ Equity......................................................................................... 8,044 8,554 60

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity................................................................. ¥184,693 ¥187,244 $1,386

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.

F I N A N C I A L  I N F O R M A T I O N  O F  T H E  N A R A  B A N K ,  L T D .
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Non-consolidated Statements of Operations

The Nara Bank, Ltd. Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 2002 2001 2002

Income

Interest income........................................................................................................................ ¥3,819 ¥4,043 $28

Interest on loans and bills discounted ............................................................................... 3,267 3,254 24

Interest and dividends on securities................................................................................... 522 718 3

Fees and commissions ............................................................................................................ 452 412 3

Other operating income.......................................................................................................... 391 343 2

Other income .......................................................................................................................... 87 70 0

Total Income.................................................................................................................. 4,750 4,870 35

Expenses

Interest expenses..................................................................................................................... 241 387 1

Interest on deposits............................................................................................................. 236 382 1

Fees and commissions ............................................................................................................ 205 184 1

Other operating expenses ...................................................................................................... 5 64 0

General and administrative expenses .................................................................................... 3,380 3,195 25

Other expenses ....................................................................................................................... 1,758 3,177 13

Total Expenses............................................................................................................... 5,591 7,010 41

Loss before income taxes ....................................................................................................... 841 2,139 6

Income taxes—current............................................................................................................ 12 14 0

Income taxes—deferred.......................................................................................................... (360) (897) (2)

Net loss .................................................................................................................................... ¥ 493 ¥1,256 $ 3

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
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Deposits 

The Nara Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Liquid deposits ................................................................................................................................................................. ¥ 61.4 ¥ 47.6

Time deposits ................................................................................................................................................................... 105.2 120.0

Other deposits .................................................................................................................................................................. 0.9 0.9

Total........................................................................................................................................................................... ¥167.6 ¥168.6

Note: Liquid deposits = Current deposits + Ordinary deposits + Savings deposits + Deposits at notice
Time deposits = Time deposits + Periodic time deposits

Deposits by Type of Depositor

The Nara Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Individuals ........................................................................................................................................................................ ¥130.0 ¥125.0

Corporations ..................................................................................................................................................................... 26.9 31.3

Other ................................................................................................................................................................................. 10.6 12.2

Total........................................................................................................................................................................... ¥167.6 ¥168.6

Note: Domestic depositors only

Loans to SMEs and Individuals (Non-consolidated)

The Nara Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen Ratio to total loans

March 31 2002 2001 2002 2001

Loans to SMEs and individuals ............................................................................................... ¥114.1 ¥114.0 91.91% 90.68%

Loans to Individuals (Non-consolidated)

The Nara Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001 Change

Consumer loans total ......................................................................................................................................... ¥26.1 ¥26.7 ¥(0.5)

Housing loans ................................................................................................................................................ 22.9 23.1 (0.1)

80



Loans and Bills Discounted by Industry

The Nara Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Domestic operations

Manufacturing............................................................................................................................................................... ¥ 14.5 ¥ 13.8
11.73% 11.03%

Retail, wholesale, and food services ........................................................................................................................... 19.7 19.3
15.87% 15.38%

Financial services.......................................................................................................................................................... 6.6 9.1
5.38% 7.28%

Construction.................................................................................................................................................................. 9.8 10.1
7.90% 8.03%

Electric power, gas, and other public enterprises ...................................................................................................... 0.6 0.6
0.51% 0.53%

Real estate..................................................................................................................................................................... 22.3 21.8
18.01% 17.40%

Transportation, communications, and other utilities.................................................................................................. 3.1 2.9
2.55% 2.33%

Services ......................................................................................................................................................................... 13.6 13.7
10.98% 10.91%

Agriculture, forestry, fishing, and mining ................................................................................................................... 0.3 0.3
0.27% 0.29%

Local governments ....................................................................................................................................................... 0.2 0.2
0.20% 0.16%

Other ............................................................................................................................................................................. 33.0 33.5
26.60% 26.66%

Total .......................................................................................................................................................................... ¥124.2 ¥125.7
100% 100%
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Risk Management Loans

The Nara Bank, Ltd. Millions of yen

March 31 2002 Change 2001 2000

Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy .............................................................. ¥ 3,493 ¥ 329 ¥ 3,164 ¥ 2,330

Past due loans........................................................................................................ 7,657 3,257 4,400 2,841

Loans past due three months or more ................................................................. 257 (63) 321 637

Restructured loans ................................................................................................. 3,656 1,091 2,565 1,381

Total* .................................................................................................................. ¥ 15,064 ¥ 4,614 ¥ 10,450 ¥ 7,189

Total loans and bills discounted............................................................................... ¥124,236 ¥(1,562) ¥125,798 ¥119,934

Ratio of risk management loans to 
total loans and bills discounted (%)....................................................................... 12.12 3.82** 8.30 5.99

* Amounts are net of partial direct write-offs.
** Percentage points.

Disclosure according to the Financial Reconstruction Law

The Nara Bank, Ltd. Millions of yen

March 31 2002 Change 2001 2000

Unrecoverable or valueless claims ....................................................................... ¥ 7,809 ¥ 1,811 ¥ 5,998 ¥ 4,255

Risk claims.............................................................................................................. 3,429 76 3,353 3,715

Claims in need of special attention ...................................................................... 3,913 1,743 2,170 2,147

Financial Reconstruction Law subtotal ..................................................................... 15,152 3,631 11,521 10,117

Nonclassified claims .................................................................................................. 115,777 (6,396) 122,173 118,036

Financial Reconstruction Law total ........................................................................... ¥130,929 ¥(2,764) ¥133,694 ¥128,153

Coverage ratio............................................................................................................ 93.99% 5.76%** 88.23% 86.63%

** Percentage points.

Reserve for Possible Loan Losses

The Nara Bank, Ltd. Millions of yen

March 31 2002 Change 2001 2000

Reserves for possible loan losses................................................................................. ¥6,671 ¥1,229 ¥5,442 ¥3,177

General reserve for possible loan losses ................................................................. 1,392 417 975 561

Specific reserve for possible loan losses ................................................................. 5,279 812 4,467 2,616

Reserve for possible losses on loans sold ................................................................... 138 (44) 182 —

Securities

The Nara Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

National and local government bonds .............................................................................................................................. ¥18.6 ¥16.4

Corporate bonds ................................................................................................................................................................. 11.2 16.8

Corporate stocks ................................................................................................................................................................. 0.9 1.2

Other securities................................................................................................................................................................... 4.4 6.0

Total book value ......................................................................................................................................................... ¥35.3 ¥40.6
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Risk-Adjusted Capital Ratio (Non-consolidated, Domestic Standard)

The Nara Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

2002 2001

Tier I capital Capital ............................................................................................................................. ¥ 3.8 ¥ 3.8

Non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock ............................................................... — —

Capital surplus ................................................................................................................ 1.8 1.8

Legal reserve ................................................................................................................... 0.3 0.3

Voluntary reserve............................................................................................................ 0.7 0.7

Earned surplus carried forward to the next year.......................................................... 0.1 0.7

Total qualifying Tier I capital (A) ...................................................... 7.0 7.5

Tier II capital 45% of the difference between land after revaluation 
and the book value immediately before revaluation ................................................... 0.7 0.7

General reserve for possible loan losses....................................................................... 0.6 0.6

Qualifying subordinated debt ........................................................................................ — —

Subtotal ........................................................................................................................... 1.3 1.3

Tier II capital included as qualifying capital (B) ...................................................... 1.3 1.3

Amount to be deducted (C) ...................................................... — —

Total qualifying capital (A)+(B)–(C) (D) ...................................................... 8.3 8.9

Risk-adjusted assets On-balance-sheet items.................................................................................................. 94.4 98.9

Off-balance-sheet items.................................................................................................. 6.4 7.3

Total risk-adjusted assets (E)....................................................... ¥100.9 ¥106.3

Risk-adjusted capital ratio (D)/(E)�100%................................................................................................................. 8.30% 8.43%

Note: In conformity with the guidelines established by the Ministry of Finance of Japan based on Article 14-2 of the Banking Law of Japan, 
both consolidated and non-consolidated capital adequacy ratios are calculated.
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Non-consolidated Balance Sheets

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 2002 and 2001 2002 2001 2002

Assets
Cash and due from banks ............................................................................................. ¥ 1,660,446 ¥ 1,575,845 $ 12,461
Call loans and bills bought ........................................................................................... 91,000 899,400 682
Trading assets ................................................................................................................ 574,134 777,686 4,308
Money held in trust ....................................................................................................... 40,000 60,000 300
Securities ........................................................................................................................ 3,403,577 4,216,032 25,542
Loans and bills discounted............................................................................................ 17,148,723 20,327,355 128,695
Foreign exchange .......................................................................................................... 114,500 74,054 859
Other assets.................................................................................................................... 524,725 481,051 3,937
Premises and equipment............................................................................................... 417,035 451,803 3,129
Deferred tax assets ........................................................................................................ 424,060 300,756 3,182
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees................................................. 1,191,361 1,517,303 8,940
Reserve for possible loan losses ................................................................................... (532,501) (416,570) (3,996)
Reserve for possible losses on investments ................................................................. (17,800) — (133)

Total Assets........................................................................................................... ¥25,039,264 ¥30,264,719 $187,911

Liabilities

Deposits.......................................................................................................................... ¥18,949,733 ¥20,444,811 $142,211

Negotiable certificates of deposit.................................................................................. 339,020 2,981,795 2,544

Call money and bills sold.............................................................................................. 1,765,718 1,272,285 13,251

Bills sold under repurchase agreements ...................................................................... 276,983 — 2,078

Commercial paper ......................................................................................................... 20,000 420,000 150

Trading liabilities ........................................................................................................... 193,786 211,496 1,454

Borrowed money........................................................................................................... 884,166 1,027,207 6,635

Foreign exchange .......................................................................................................... 3,360 8,706 25

Bonds ............................................................................................................................. 87,500 100,000 656

Other liabilities............................................................................................................... 483,705 757,868 3,630

Reserve for employees’ bonuses .................................................................................. 3,229 — 24

Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits ................................................................. 3,950 20,926 29

Reserve for possible losses on loans sold .................................................................... 10,595 37,654 79

Reserve for the specific borrowers under support ...................................................... — 22,000 —

Other reserves................................................................................................................ 0 0 0

Deferred tax liabilities on land revaluation.................................................................. 74,221 83,167 557

Acceptances and guarantees ......................................................................................... 1,191,361 1,517,303 8,940

Total Liabilities ..................................................................................................... 24,287,332 28,905,224 182,268

Shareholders’ Equity

Capital ............................................................................................................................ 605,356 605,356 4,543

Capital surplus ............................................................................................................... 509,486 509,486 3,823

Legal reserve .................................................................................................................. 76,067 75,567 570

Land revaluation differences ......................................................................................... 113,301 127,223 850

(Deficit) retained earnings ............................................................................................ (531,971) 41,860 (3,992)

Valuation differences..................................................................................................... (20,309) — (152)

Total Shareholders’ Equity................................................................................... 751,931 1,359,494 5,643

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity........................................................... ¥25,039,264 ¥30,264,719 $187,911

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
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Non-consolidated Statements of Operations

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 2002 2001 2002

Income

Interest income ............................................................................................................... ¥ 476,014 ¥547,461 $ 3,572

Interest on loans and bills discounted....................................................................... 397,547 444,186 2,983

Interest and dividends on securities .......................................................................... 45,607 53,033 342

Fees and commissions.................................................................................................... 63,404 64,121 475

Trading income............................................................................................................... 4,999 4,455 37

Other operating income................................................................................................. 46,278 26,223 347

Other income.................................................................................................................. 74,919 230,050 562

Total Income ....................................................................................................... 665,616 872,313 4,995

Expenses

Interest expenses ............................................................................................................ 101,966 173,789 765

Interest on deposits .................................................................................................... 54,249 103,651 407

Fees and commissions.................................................................................................... 32,564 30,553 244

Trading expenses............................................................................................................ 21 — 0

Other operating expenses.............................................................................................. 14,180 14,021 106

General and administrative expenses............................................................................ 257,940 259,251 1,935

Other expenses............................................................................................................... 975,038 415,133 7,317

Total Expenses .................................................................................................... 1,381,712 892,749 10,369

Loss before income taxes............................................................................................... 716,096 20,436 5,374

Income taxes—current ................................................................................................... 931 10,368 6

Income taxes—deferred ................................................................................................. (132,343) (20,964) (993)

Net loss............................................................................................................................ ¥ 584,684 ¥ 9,841 $ 4,387

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
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Deposits and Negotiable Certificates of Deposit

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Liquid deposits ........................................................................................................................................................... ¥11,197.9 ¥ 7,989.9

Time deposits ............................................................................................................................................................. 7,262.6 11,646.3

Other deposits ............................................................................................................................................................ 828.1 3,790.3

Total..................................................................................................................................................................... ¥19,288.7 ¥23,426.6

Note: Liquid deposits = Current deposits + Ordinary deposits + Savings deposits + Deposits at notice
Time deposits = Time deposits + Periodic time deposits

Deposits by Type of Depositor

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Individuals .................................................................................................................................................................. ¥11,585.8 ¥12,331.9

Corporations ............................................................................................................................................................... 5,683.3 5,609.5

Other ........................................................................................................................................................................... 1,426.3 763.5

Total..................................................................................................................................................................... ¥18,695.4 ¥18,705.0

Note: Domestic depositors only and excluding negotiable certificates of deposit

Loans to SMEs and Individuals (Non-consolidated)

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen Ratio to total loans

March 31 2002 2001 2002 2001

Loans to SMEs and individuals....................................................................................... ¥13,468.7 ¥15,124.8 78.6% 77.3%

Loans to Individuals (Non-consolidated)

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001 Change

Consumer loans total ............................................................................................................................... ¥6,385.9 ¥6,377.0 ¥ 8.8

Housing loans ...................................................................................................................................... 6,153.8 6,125.5 28.3
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Loans and Bills Discounted by Industry

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

Domestic operations

Manufacturing ........................................................................................................................................................ ¥ 2,035.4 ¥ 2,663.4
11.89% 13.62%

Retail, wholesale, and food services..................................................................................................................... 2,036.5 2,732.4
11.90% 13.97%

Financial services ................................................................................................................................................... 792.7 945.1
4.63% 4.83%

Construction ........................................................................................................................................................... 786.1 1,082.9
4.59% 5.54%

Electric power, gas, and other public enterprises ............................................................................................... 48.0 83.1
0.28% 0.42%

Real estate .............................................................................................................................................................. 1,842.8 2,089.1
10.77% 10.68%

Transportation, communications, and other utilities ........................................................................................... 500.5 604.3
2.92% 3.09%

Services................................................................................................................................................................... 1,649.7 1,943.2
9.64% 9.94%

Agriculture, forestry, fishing, and mining............................................................................................................. 39.5 44.6
0.24% 0.23%

Local governments................................................................................................................................................. 385.0 395.0
2.25% 2.02%

Other ...................................................................................................................................................................... 6,997.4 6,973.8
40.89% 35.66%

Subtotal............................................................................................................................................................... ¥17,114.1 ¥19,557.4
100% 100%

International operations

Governments.......................................................................................................................................................... ¥ 1.2 ¥ 19.2
3.61% 2.50%

Financial institutions .............................................................................................................................................. 10.4 59.8
30.17% 7.77%

Other ...................................................................................................................................................................... 22.9 690.8
66.22% 89.73%

Subtotal............................................................................................................................................................... ¥ 34.6 ¥ 769.9
100% 100%

Total.................................................................................................................................................................... ¥17,148.7 ¥20,327.3
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Risk Management Loans

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. Millions of yen

March 31 2002 Change 2001 2000

Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy ..................................... ¥ 67,081 ¥ (9,082) ¥ 76,163 ¥ 73,432

Past due loans............................................................................... 873,503 128,937 744,566 611,019

Loans past due three months or more ........................................ 79,219 (21,565) 100,784 84,920

Restructured loans ........................................................................ 444,404 104,662 339,741 88,262

Total* ......................................................................................... ¥ 1,464,208 ¥ 202,952 ¥ 1,261,256 ¥ 857,635

Total loans and bills discounted...................................................... ¥17,148,723 ¥(3,178,631) ¥20,327,355 ¥20,547,425

Ratio of risk management loans to 
total loans and bills discounted .................................................... 8.53% 2.33%** 6.20% 4.17%

* Amounts are net of partial direct write-offs.
* Percentage points.

Disclosure according to the Financial Reconstruction Law

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. Millions of yen

March 31 2002 Change 2001 2000

Unrecoverable or valueless claims .............................................. ¥ 149,159 ¥ (25,735) ¥ 174,895 ¥ 186,765

Risk claims .................................................................................... 800,950 147,005 653,945 503,662

Claims in need of special attention ............................................. 523,623 83,097 440,526 173,183

Financial Reconstruction Law subtotal............................................ 1,473,732 204,366 1,269,366 863,611

Nonclassified claims......................................................................... 17,031,450 (3,664,962) 20,696,413 21,067,600

Financial Reconstruction Law total.................................................. ¥18,505,183 ¥(3,460,595) ¥21,965,779 ¥21,931,211

Coverage ratio .................................................................................. 71.83% (0.26)%** 72.09% 74.32%

** Percentage points.

Reserve for Possible Loan Losses

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. Millions of yen

March 31 2002 Change 2001 2000

Reserves for possible loan losses .................................................... ¥532,501 ¥115,930 ¥416,570 ¥398,780

General reserve for possible loan losses .................................... 167,200 37,600 129,600 127,700

Specific reserve for possible loan losses..................................... 365,241 82,907 282,333 266,728

Special reserve for certain overseas loans .................................. 60 (4,576) 4,636 4,351

Reserve for the specific borrowers under support.......................... — (22,000) 22,000 6,603

Reserve for possible losses on loans sold ...................................... 10,595 (27,059) 37,654 64,073

Securities

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

March 31 2002 2001

National and local government bonds..................................................................................................................... ¥1,999.7 ¥1,737.2

Corporate bonds........................................................................................................................................................ 284.9 386.1

Corporate stocks........................................................................................................................................................ 1,010.6 1,802.8

Other securities ......................................................................................................................................................... 108.1 289.8

Total book value ............................................................................................................................................... ¥3,403.5 ¥4,216.0
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Risk-Adjusted Capital Ratio
(1) Consolidated Capital Ratio

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

2002 2001
(Domestic Standard) (BIS Standard)

Tier I capital Capital .......................................................................................................... ¥ 605.3 ¥ 605.3
Non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock............................................ 200.3 201.9

Capital surplus............................................................................................. — 509.4
Consolidated retained surplus .................................................................... 47.9 114.8
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries.......................................... 79.2 8.5

Preferred securities issued by special-purpose company overseas...... 70.6 —
Revaluation loss on other securities........................................................... (18.5) —
Consolidation differences ........................................................................... (5.1) (6.8)
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of taxes............................. 0.0 (0.6)
Total qualifying Tier I capital (A) .................... 708.9 1,230.7

Preferred securities with interest step-up conditions ............................ 70.6 —
Tier II capital 45% of the difference between land after revaluation 

and the book value immediately before revaluation.............................. 84.3 94.6
General reserve for possible loan losses ................................................... 101.3 154.3
Qualifying subordinated debt..................................................................... 592.7 708.1
Subtotal ........................................................................................................ 778.4 957.2

Tier II capital included as qualifying capital (B) .................... 708.9 957.2
Amount to be deducted Certain stocks and other debt instruments 

issued by other financial institutions (C) .................... 4.9 2.9
Total qualifying capital (A)+(B)–(C) (D) .................... ¥ 1,412.9 ¥ 2,185.0
Risk-adjusted assets On-balance-sheet items .............................................................................. ¥14,870.3 ¥18,396.1

Off-balance-sheet items .............................................................................. 1,350.6 1,185.6
Subtotal (E)..................... 16,220.9 19,581.7

Market risk equivalent assets (G)/8% (F)..................... — 31.1
Measure for market risk (G) .................... — 2.4
Total risk-adjusted assets (E)+(F) (H) .................... ¥16,220.9 ¥19,612.8

Risk-adjusted capital ratio (D)/(H)�100%............................................................................................. 8.71% 11.14%

(2) Non-consolidated Capital Ratio

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. Billions of yen

2002 2001
(Domestic Standard) (BIS Standard)

Tier I capital Capital .......................................................................................................... ¥ 605.3 ¥ 605.3
Non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock............................................ 200.3 201.9

Capital surplus............................................................................................. — 509.4
Legal reserve................................................................................................ 53.5 76.0
Voluntary reserve ........................................................................................ — 25.1
Earned surplus carried forward to the next year ...................................... — 13.7
Other............................................................................................................ 70.6 —
Revaluation losses on other securities ....................................................... (20.3) —
Total qualifying Tier I capital (A) .................... 709.2 1,229.7

Tier II capital Land revaluation difference........................................................................ 84.3 94.6
General reserve for possible loan losses ................................................... 98.7 129.6
Qualifying subordinated debt..................................................................... 592.7 708.1
Subtotal ........................................................................................................ 775.8 932.4

Tier II capital included as qualifying capital (B) .................... 709.2 932.4
Amount to be deducted Certain stocks and other debt instruments 

issued by other financial institutions (C) .................... 3.0 0.9

Total qualifying capital (A)+(B)–(C) (D) .................... ¥ 1,415.3 ¥ 2,161.2
Risk-adjusted assets On-balance-sheet items .............................................................................. ¥14,557.2 ¥17,933.4

Off-balance-sheet items .............................................................................. 1,243.7 973.3
Subtotal (E)..................... 15,801.0 18,906.7

Market risk equivalent assets (G)/8% (F)..................... — 30.8
Measure for market risk (G) .................... — 2.4
Total risk-adjusted assets (H) .................... ¥15,801.0 ¥18,937.6

Risk-adjusted capital ratio (D)/(H)�100%............................................................................................. 8.95% 11.41%

Note: In conformity with the guidelines established by the Ministry of Finance of Japan based on Article 14-2 of the Banking Law of Japan, 
both consolidated and non-consolidated capital adequacy ratios are calculated.

Super  Reg iona l  Bank  Group   89



Non-consolidated Balance Sheet

The Daiwa Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 2002 2002 2002

Assets

Cash and due from banks .................................................................................................................................... ¥22,058 $165

Securities................................................................................................................................................................ 11 0

Other assets ........................................................................................................................................................... 6,466 48

Premises and equipment ...................................................................................................................................... 3,535 26

Deferred tax assets................................................................................................................................................ 26 0

Total Assets .................................................................................................................................................. ¥32,098 $240

Liabilities

Deposits ................................................................................................................................................................. ¥ 3,094 $ 23

Other liabilities ..................................................................................................................................................... 3,378 25

Total Liabilities............................................................................................................................................. 6,473 48

Shareholders’ equity

Capital.................................................................................................................................................................... 10,000 75

Capital surplus....................................................................................................................................................... 14,969 112

Retained earnings.................................................................................................................................................. 655 4

Valuation differences ............................................................................................................................................ 0 0

Total Shareholders’ Equity .......................................................................................................................... 25,625 192

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity .................................................................................................. ¥32,098 $240

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
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Non-consolidated Statement of Income

The Daiwa Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31, 2002 2002 2002

Income

Interest income...................................................................................................................................................... ¥ 0 $ 0

Trust fees ............................................................................................................................................................... 2,141 16

Fees and commissions .......................................................................................................................................... 470 3

Other income ........................................................................................................................................................ 0 0

Total Income................................................................................................................................................ 2,612 19

Expenses

Interest expenses................................................................................................................................................... 0 0

Fees and commissions .......................................................................................................................................... 727 5

General and administrative expenses .................................................................................................................. 786 5

Other expenses ..................................................................................................................................................... 42 0

Total Expenses............................................................................................................................................. 1,556 11

Income before income taxes ............................................................................................................................... 1,055 7

Income taxes—current.......................................................................................................................................... 426 3

Income taxes—deferred........................................................................................................................................ (26) (0)

Net income ............................................................................................................................................................ ¥ 655 $ 4

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25=U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
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Statement of Trust Assets and Liabilities

The Daiwa Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. Millions of Millions of
yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 2002 2002 2002

Assets

Securities....................................................................................................................................................... ¥ 1,116,624 $ 8,379

Trust beneficiary certificate.......................................................................................................................... 21,575,448 161,917

Other claims ................................................................................................................................................. 77 0

Total Assets ......................................................................................................................................... ¥22,692,150 $170,297

Liabilities

Money trusts ................................................................................................................................................. ¥ 7,247,479 $ 54,390

Pension trusts ............................................................................................................................................... 6,266,942 47,031

Securities investment trusts.......................................................................................................................... 8,555,022 64,202

Pecuniary trusts other than money trusts ................................................................................................... 232,396 1,744

Securities trusts ............................................................................................................................................. 248,977 1,868

Composite trusts........................................................................................................................................... 141,332 1,060

Total Liabilities.................................................................................................................................... ¥22,692,150 $170,297

Notes: 1. Amounts of less than one million yen have been rounded down.
2. The rate of ¥133.25 = U.S.$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2002, has been used.
3. Trust beneficiary certificates worth ¥21,574,604 million ($161,910 million) were re-entrusted for asset administration purposes.
4. Co-managed trust funds under other trust banks’ administration amounted to ¥7,527,833 million ($56,494 million).
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Risk-Adjusted Capital Ratio (Non-consolidated, Domestic Standard)

The Daiwa Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. Millions of yen

2002

Tier I capital Capital .............................................................................................................................................. ¥10,000

Capital surplus ................................................................................................................................. 14,969

Earned surplus carried forward to the next year........................................................................... 5

Total qualifying Tier I capital (A) ....................................................................... 24,975

Tier II capital Subtotal (B) ....................................................................... —

Amount to be deducted (C) ....................................................................... —

Total qualifying capital (A)+(B)–(C) (D) ....................................................................... ¥24,975

Risk-adjusted assets On-balance-sheet items................................................................................................................... ¥11,449

Off-balance-sheet items .................................................................................................................. —

Total risk-adjusted assets (E) ....................................................................... ¥11,449

Risk-adjusted capital ratio (D)/(E)�100% ................................................................................................................................. 218.13%

Note: In conformity with the guidelines established by the Ministry of Finance of Japan based on Article 14-2 of the Banking Law of Japan, 
both consolidated and non-consolidated capital adequacy ratios are calculated.
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B O A R D  O F  D I R E C T O R S ,  C O R P O R A T E  A U D I T O R S ,  A N D  E X E C U T I V E  O F F I C E R S
As of July 1, 2002

Board of Directors

Post Name Concurrent Post

Director and Chairman Takashi Kaiho

Director and President* Yasuhisa Katsuta President of the Daiwa Bank, 
Director of the Daiwa Trust & Banking Company

Director and Deputy President* Yukio Yanase President of the Asahi Bank

Director and Senior Executive Officer Akiyoshi Otani

Director and Senior Executive Officer Yoshinari Demura

Director and Senior Executive Officer Osamu Monoe

Director and Senior Executive Officer Kenji Kawada

* President and Deputy President also serve as Executive Officers

Post Name Concurrent Post

Director (part-time) Yasuhiro Takatani President of the Kinki Osaka Bank

Director (part-time) Masao Nomura President of the Nara Bank

Director (part-time) Atsumu Kuroishi President of the Daiwa Trust & Banking Company 

Director (part-time) Tadahiro Tone Senior Managing Director of the Asahi Bank

Corporate Auditors

Post Name Concurrent Post

Corporate Auditor Isao Kimura

Corporate Auditor Hideo Yoda Corporate Auditor of the Asahi Bank

Corporate Auditor (Outside) Masataka Ide Chairman of West Japan Railway Company

Corporate Auditor (Outside) Hidenao Toyoshima Lawyer, Corporate Auditor of the Asahi Bank

Executive Officers

Post Name

Executive Officer Koji Nishijima

Executive Officer Masaaki Nomura

Executive Officer Minoru Takahashi

Executive Officer Hiroshi Kawasaki

Executive Officer Tomoyuki Uchiyama



D O M E S T I C  N E T W O R K
As of June 30, 2002
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Fukuoka Prefecture

Nagasaki Prefecture

Kumamoto Prefecture

Hokkaido

Miyagi Prefecture

Aichi Prefecture

Shizuoka Prefecture

Mie Prefecture

Nagano Prefecture

Yamanashi Prefecture

Niigata Prefecture

Osaka Prefecture

Nara Prefecture

Hyogo Prefecture

Kyoto Prefecture

Shiga Prefecture

Wakayama Prefecture

Saitama Prefecture

Tokyo Metropolis

Kanagawa Prefecture

Chiba Prefecture

Tochigi Prefecture

Ibaraki Prefecture

Gunma Prefecture

Total offices:

Kyushu

10
Chugoku/

Shikoku

2

Kansai region

716

Chubu region

36 Tokyo
metropolitan

area

901

Hokkaido/
Tohoku region

3

Kanto region excluding 
Tokyo metropolitan area

22

6

3

2

2

1

Kochi Prefecture

Hiroshima Prefecture

1

1

538

78

68

23

7

2

14

2

1

449

312

110

30

2

1

8

1

1
17

1,685

Domestic Branches (As of June 30, 2002)

Total  Tokyo
Daiwa Kinki Osaka Nara Asahi of the metropolitan Kansai
Bank Bank Bank Bank five banks area region

Manned offices .................................. 183 186 25 297 691 288 369

Nonmanned offices ........................... 257 44 32 661 994 613 347

Total offices ....................................... 440 230 57 958 1,685 901 716



■ EUROPE

Daiwa Bank (Capital Management) Plc
Level 18, City Tower, 
40 Basinghall Street,
London EC2V 5DE, 
United Kingdom
Phone: 44-20-7256-5661
Telex: 8956907
Fax: 44-20-7256-5662

London Representative Office
Level 18, City Tower, 
40 Basinghall Street,
London EC2V 5DE, 
United Kingdom
Phone: 44-20-7256-5002
Fax: 44-20-7256-5005

■ ASIA

Hong Kong Representative Office
Room 1103A, 11th Floor, 
Far East Finance Centre, 
16 Harcourt Road, 
Hong Kong, S.A.R., 
The People’s Republic of China
Phone: 852-2521-6433
Fax: 852-2522-5378

Singapore Representative Office
3 Temasek Avenue,
#20-06 Centennial Tower,
Singapore 039190,
Republic of Singapore
Phone: 65-6836-0300
Fax: 65-6836-0400

Shanghai Representative Office
Room No. 2709, 
Shanghai International 
Trade Centre, 
2201 Yan An Xi Lu, Shanghai, 
The People’s Republic of China
Phone: 86-21-6275-5198
Fax: 86-21-6275-5229

Bangkok Representative Office
13th Floor, 
Regent House Building, 
183 Rajdamri Road, Pathumwan, 
Bangkok 10330, Thailand
Phone: 66-2-254-7555
Fax: 66-2-254-7557

P.T. Bank Daiwa Perdania 
Head Office
JL. Jend. Sudirman Kav. 40-41,
Jakarta, Indonesia
Phone: 62-21-5701958
Telex: 65658
Fax: 62-21-5701936
Cable: JOINT BANK, JAKARTA
SWIFT: BPIAIDJA

Kota Sub-Branch
JL. Raya Mangga Besar No. 7,
Jakarta, Indonesia
Phone: 62-21-6260408
Telex: 41120
Fax: 62-21-6592164

Thamrin Cash Office
1st Floor, Skyline Building, 
JL. M.H. Thamrin No. 9,
Jakarta, Indonesia
Phone: 62-21-327309
Telex: 44532
Fax: 62-21-323308

Surabaya Branch
JL. Raya Darmo No. 31, 
Surabaya, East Java, Indonesia
Phone: 62-31-5674326
Telex: 32145
Fax: 62-31-5674840

Bandung Branch
JL. Wastukencana No. 87, 
Bandung, West Java, Indonesia
Phone: 62-22-4241742
Telex: 28018
Fax: 62-22-4241207

Cikarang Sub-Branch
JL. Jababeka Raya Block B 
No. 14-15, Cikarang Industrial
Estate, Bekasi, West Java, 
Indonesia
Phone: 62-21-8934347
Fax: 62-21-8934346

Makassar Branch
4th Floor, BII Building, 
JL. Kajaolalido No. 6, Makassar, 
South Sulawesi, Indonesia
Phone: 62-411-330570
Telex: 71161
Fax: 62-411-330574

P.T. Daiwa Lippo Finance
5th Floor, 
Bank Daiwa Perdania Building, 
JL. Jend. Sudirman Kav. 40-41, 
Jakarta, Indonesia
Phone: 62-21-5701956
Fax: 62-21-5701961

■ JAPAN

Head Office
2-1, Bingomachi 2-chome,
Chuo-ku, Osaka 540-8610, Japan
Phone: 81-6-6271-1221
Telex: J64051 DAIBANK
Cable: DAIBANK
SWIFT: DIWAJPJS

Tokyo Office
1-1, Otemachi 2-chome, 
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8110, 
Japan
Phone: 81-3-3231-1231
Telex: J64052 DAIBANK
Cable: DAIBANK
SWIFT: DIWAJPJT

Internet Address
http://www.daiwabank.co.jp/

■ THE AMERICAS

New York Representative Office
546 Fifth Avenue, 19th Floor,  
New York, NY 10036, 
U.S.A.
Phone: 1-212-997-7830
Fax: 1-212-997-7835

Los Angeles Representative Office
350 South Grand Avenue, 
Suite 3800, 
Los Angeles, CA 90071, 
U.S.A.
Phone: 1-213-473-3300
Fax: 1-213-624-0172

São Paulo Representative Office
Rua Boa Vista 176-12, Andar, 
01014-919 São Paulo, 
S.P., Brazil
Phone: 55-11-3247-1969
Fax: 55-11-3247-1968

■ EUROPE

London Representative Office
Suite 1, 8th Floor,
Bucklersbury House,
3 Queen Victoria Street,
London EC4N 8NH, U.K.
Phone: 44-20-7329-7766
Fax: 44-20-7329-6086

■ ASIA

Hong Kong Representative Office
Level 32, One Pacific Place,
88 Queensway, Hong Kong, S.A.R.,
The People’s Republic of China
Phone: 852-2532-0500
Fax: 852-2868-4503

Singapore Representative Office
3 Temasek Avenue,
#20-05 Centennial Tower,
Singapore 039190, 
Republic of Singapore
Phone: 65-6333-0378
Fax: 65-6333-0797

Shanghai Representative Office
Room 2001, Jin Mao Tower,
88 Century Boulevard,
Pu Dong New Area,
Shanghai 200120, 
The People’s Republic of China
Phone: 86-21-5047-1188
Fax: 86-21-5047-0808

Bangkok Representative Office
31st Floor, Abdulrahim Place, 
990 Rama 4 Road, 
Silom, Bangrak, 
Bangkok 10500, 
Thailand
Phone: 66-2-636-2311
Telex: 22061 ASHBK TH
Fax: 66-2-636-2316

■ JAPAN

Head Office
1-2, Otemachi 1-chome,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8106, 
Japan
Phone: 81-3-3287-2111
Telex: J24275 ASAHI TKI
Cable: ASAHIBANK TOKYO
SWIFT: SAIBJPJT

Internet Address
http://www.asahibank.co.jp/
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I N T E R N A T I O N A L  N E T W O R K
(As of August 1, 2002)

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. The Asahi Bank, Ltd.

■ JAPAN

Head Office
4-27, Shiromi 1-chome,
Chuo-ku, Osaka 540-8560, Japan
Phone: 81-6-6945-2063
Telex: 63936 kinkibk j
SWIFT: OSAB JP JS

Internet Address
http://www.kinkiosakabank.co.jp/

The Kinki Osaka Bank, Ltd.
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O R G A N I Z A T I O N  C H A R T  A N D  O U T L I N E  O F  T H E  G R O U P
As of March 31, 2002

Management 
Planning Unit

Planning 
Division

Finance and
Accounting
Division

Corporate
Communications
Division

Affiliated
Businesses Division

Executive Officer

Director

Business 
Planning Unit

Business
Development
Division

Corporate Banking
Division

Personal Banking
Division

Trust Business
Planning Division

Market Planning
Division

Executive Officer

Director

Management
Administration Unit

Risk Management
Division

Credit Planning
Division

Compliance
Division

Executive Officer

Director

Executive Committee

Board of Directors

General Meeting of Stockholders

Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc.

Corporate Auditors/
Board of Corporate Auditors

Corporate 
Auditing Office

Business 
Administration Unit

Human Resources
Division

Systems and
Administration
Division

General Affairs
Division

Executive Officer

Director

Internal Audit Unit

Internal Audit
Division

Secretariat

Executive Officer

Director
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The Daiwa Bank,
Ltd.

Daiwa Bank Holdings’
Ownership: 100%

The Kinki Osaka
Bank, Ltd.

Daiwa Bank Holdings’
Ownership: 100%

The Nara Bank, 
Ltd.

Daiwa Bank Holdings’
Ownership: 100%

The Asahi Bank, 
Ltd.

Daiwa Bank Holdings’
Ownership: 100%

The Daiwa Trust &
Banking Co., Ltd.

Daiwa Bank Holdings’
Ownership: 83.2%

Banking and trust banking
business

Banking business Banking business Banking business Banking and trust
banking business

■ Principal Subsidiaries and Affiliates

Equity
ownership
by Group

Name Address Capital Operations Established companies
(Millions) (%)

Banking and trust banking business
■ Asahi Trust and Banking Saitama-shi, ¥10,000 Banking and trust Mar. 6, 1996 100.0

Co., Ltd. Saitama banking business

■ Asahi Bank Research Institute Chuo-ku, ¥400 Research and business Oct. 1, 1986 50.0
Co., Ltd. Tokyo consulting services

■ Daiwa Research Institute, Inc. Chuo-ku, ¥500 Research and business June 27, 1987 57.5
Osaka-shi consulting services

▲ Kinki Osaka Research  Nishi-ku, ¥30 Research and business Apr. 1, 1974 25.0
Institute for Small and  Osaka-shi consulting services
Medium Business Ltd.

■ D & I Information Systems Inc. Toyonaka-shi, ¥100 Systems development, Mar. 26, 1998 25.0
Osaka maintenance, and 

administration

▲ Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. Chuo-ku, ¥50,000 Banking and trust June 20, 2000 50.0
Tokyo banking business

■ P.T. Bank Daiwa Perdania Jakarta, IDR 203,120 Banking business Feb. 15, 1956 48.0
Indonesia

Securities business
■ Cosmo Securities Co., Ltd. Chuo-ku, ¥32,366 Securities business Dec. 18, 1917 60.4

Osaka-shi

▲ The Asahi Retail Securities Chuo-ku, ¥4,727 Securities business Aug. 27, 1947 20.3
Co., Ltd. Tokyo

■ Asahi Tokyo Investment Chuo-ku, ¥780 Sales of investment trust Nov. 18, 1987 50.6
Trust Management Co., Ltd. Tokyo products and investment 

advisory services

Finance-related business
■ Asahi Card Co., Ltd. Chuo-ku, ¥200 Credit card administration Feb. 12, 1983 47.5

Tokyo

■ Daiwagin Card Co., Ltd. Chuo-ku, ¥200 Credit card administration Apr. 1, 1983 57.1
Osaka-shi

■ Asahigin Leasing Co., Ltd. Chuo-ku, ¥710 General leasing Apr. 2, 1976 42.3
Tokyo

■ The Daiwa Factor and Chuo-ku, ¥500 General leasing  Jan. 12, 1982 35.0
Leasing Co., Ltd. Osaka-shi and factoring

▲ Kinki Osaka Leasing Chuo-ku, ¥1,800 General leasing Aug. 3, 1973 20.8
Co., Ltd. Osaka-shi

■ Asahi Bank Retail Finance Toshima-ku, ¥10,200 Financing for individuals, July 5, 1979 100.0
Co., Ltd. Tokyo financing for small and 

medium-sized businesses

■ Consolidated subsidiaries
▲ Affiliates accounted for by the equity method
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Head Office
2-1, Bingomachi 2-chome, 
Chuo-ku, Osaka 540-8608, Japan
Tel: 81-6-6268-7400

Tokyo Office
1-2, Otemachi 1-chome, 
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 108-8107, Japan
Tel: 81-3-3287-2131

Paid-in Capital 
¥720,000 million

Number of Shareholders 
(Common stock)

192,556

Common Stock (Thousands)
Authorized: 13,000,000 shares
Issued: 5,634,904 shares

Preferred Stock (Thousands)
Authorized: 1,131,356 shares
Issued: 1,131,356 shares

Class A No. 1 10,970 shares
Class B No. 1 680,000 shares
Class C No. 1 120,000 shares
Class D No. 1 386 shares
Class E No. 1 240,000 shares
Class F No. 1 80,000 shares

Stock Price Range on 
the Tokyo Stock Exchange

(First section)

2001 2002

Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar.

High ¥99 ¥86 ¥114 ¥106

Low 62 81 70 83

The Company’s common shares were listed on
the First sections of the Osaka Securities Exchange
Co., Ltd., and the Tokyo Stock Exchange Co.,
Ltd., on December 11, 2001.

Accordingly, the high and low prices for the
Company’s shares are based on data covering
the period from December 11, 2001, through
the end of the fiscal year. In addition, the high
and low prices for the month of December 2001
are based on data covering the period from
December 11 through the last trading day of
December 2001.

Stock Exchange Listings
Tokyo, Osaka

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Daiko Shoken Business Co., Ltd.
4-6, Kitahama 2-chome, Chuo-ku, 
Osaka 541-8535, Japan

Independent Accountants
Shin Nihon & Co.

Number of Employees 
25,506 (Consolidated)

385 (Non-consolidated)

I N V E S T O R  I N F O R M A T I O N
As of March 31, 2002

Major Shareholders 

Number of shares held Percentage of
(Thousands) total shares issued

The Daiwa Bank, Ltd. ...................................................................................................................................... 183,181 3.25

The Dai-ichi Mutual Life Insurance Company ............................................................................................... 117,899 2.09

Mitsui Asset Trust and Banking Co., Ltd. ....................................................................................................... 104,808 1.85

The Nomura Securities Co., Ltd. ..................................................................................................................... 80,482 1.42

Asahi Mutual Life Insurance Company ........................................................................................................... 79,935 1.41

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. .................................................................................................................. 79,074 1.40

Daido Life Insurance Company ...................................................................................................................... 71,000 1.26

Nippon Life Insurance Company .................................................................................................................... 64,860 1.15

The Fuji Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. .................................................................................................... 64,589 1.14

Nichido Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. .................................................................................................... 62,875 1.11

Total ................................................................................................................................................................. 908,707 16.12



Contact:
Corporate Communications Division
Daiwa Bank Holdings, Inc.
2-1, Bingomachi 2-chome, Chuo-ku, Osaka 540-8608, Japan
Tel: 81-6-6268-7400
http://www.daiwabankholdings.co.jp

On October 1, 2002, accompanying the change in our corporate
name, we are scheduled to move to a new domain, as follows:
http://www.resona-hd.co.jp
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